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NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
HYDERABAD BENCH, HYDERABAD
CA (CAA) N0.08/230/2024

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Re Sustainability
Limited, Mumbai Waste Management Limited and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited
and their respective shareholders and creditors:

BETWEEN

RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED,
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,
and having its registered office at Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081
... Applicant Company / Amalgamated Company

AND

MUMBAI WASTE MANAGEMENT LIMITED,

A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
and having its registered office at Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,

Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081

... Amalgamating Company

AND

RAMKY SUSTAINABILITY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and having its registered office at 15th Floor Ramky Grandios, Opp. Aphb,
Anjaiah Nagar Gachibowli Seri Lingampally K.V. Rangareddy TG 500 032
... Resulting Company



CA (CAA) N0.08/230/2024
Re Sustainability Limited (Applicant)

NOTICE CONVENING THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE SECURED
CREDITORS OF RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated May 6, 2024 (read with corrigendum dated May 9,
2024), the Hyderabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) has directed a
meeting to be held of secured creditors of Re Sustainability Limited (“Applicant Company /
Amalgamated Company”) (“Order”) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving with or without modification, the arrangement proposed to be made between the
Applicant Company, Mumbai Waste Management Limited (“Amalgamating Company”) and
Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) and respective
shareholders and creditors, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, Section 2(1B), 2(19AA), 2(19AAA), 2(41A),
conditions, if any, notified under sub-section (5) of Section 72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT
Act”) and other relevant provisions of the IT Act (the “Scheme” or “Scheme of
Arrangement”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting

of secured creditors of the Applicant Company will be held at Avasa, Madhapur - Survey No. 64,
15, 24, 25 & 26, Hitech City Rd, HUDA Techno Enclave, HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana

500081 on Thursday, July 4, 2024 at 11:15 a.m. (1115 hours) (“Tribunal Convened Meeting” or
“Meeting”), at which place, date and time, the secured creditors are requested to attend.

Copies of the said Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the Act can be
obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Applicant Company. Persons entitled to attend
and vote at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, may vote in person or by proxy, provided that all proxies
in the prescribed form are deposited at the registered office of the Applicant Company at Level 11B,
Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081
not later than 48 hours before the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting.

Forms of proxy can be had at the registered office of the Applicant Company.The Hyderabad Bench
of NCLT has appointed Sri T.V. Narasimham, Advocate, as the chairperson and CS. Gopinath
Surey, PCS as scrutinizer of the said Tribunal Convened Meeting. The above mentioned
Scheme of Arrangement, if approved by the Tribunal Convened Meeting, will be subject to the
subsequent approval of the Hyderabad Bench of the NCLT.

TAKE NOTICE that the following resolutions is proposed under Sections 230(3) of the Act
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the
provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company,
for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the
arrangement proposed in the Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), as applicable, and other rules,
circulars and notifications made thereunder as may be applicable, and relevant provisions of
applicable laws, the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Re
Sustainability Limited, and subject to the approval of the Hyderabad Bench of the National Company
Law Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other
authorities or tribunal, as may be necessary, and subject to such conditions and modifications as may
be prescribed or imposed by the Hyderabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal, or by any




regulatory or other authorities or tribunal, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions,
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of Re Sustainability Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any other person authorised by it to exercise its powers
including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the proposed arrangement embodied in the
composite scheme of arrangement and amalgamation between Re Sustainability Limite,d Mumbai
Waste Management Limited and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme of Arrangement ™) placed before this meeting, be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution and for
removal of any difficulties, the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, expedient, usual or proper, and to
settle any questions or difficulties that may arise, including passing of such accounting entries and or
making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary to give effect to the above
resolution, or to carry out such modifications as may be required and/or imposed by the Hyderabad
Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal if and when applicable while sanctioning the
arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement by any tribunal, regulatory or other
authorities under law, as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that
may arise in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

A copy of the Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) of the Act, and Rule 6(3) of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Merger Rules™), the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Form of Proxy and the Attendance Slip are enclosed.

Dated at this June 1, 2024

Sd/-

Govind Singh
Company Secretary
Authorised by a board resolution dated
January 18, 2024 on behalf of the Board
of Directors

Registered Office:

Re Sustainability Limited

Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,

Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081

Notes:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Act and Rule 6(3) of the Merger
Rules is enclosed herewith and forms part of this Notice.

2. A secured creditor entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy(ies)

to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxies need not be a secured creditor
of the Applicant Company. Proxies, to be effective shall be in the prescribed form, duly filed,
stamped, signed and deposited by the person entitled to attend and vote at the said Meeting, or



10.

11.

12.

13.

by his authorised representative, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company.

The secured creditors / Proxies are requested to bring the Attendance Slip/proxy form duly
filled in, sent herewith alongwith the notice of the Tribunal Convened Meeting at the
Meeting.

Secured creditors are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power
of Attorney authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting.

For security reasons, no article/baggage will be allowed at the venue of the Meeting. The
secured creditors/attendees are strictly requested not to bring any article/baggage, etc. at the
venue of the Meeting.

The Notice, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent by permitted
mode to all the secured creditors of the Applicant Company as on January 27, 2024, whose
names appear in the certificate dated January 31, 2024 issued by Appireddy and Associates.

All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will be available for
inspection at the Applicant Company’s registered office during normal business hours
between 11:00 A.M. and 1:00 P.M. on the working days upto the day prior to the date of the
Meeting.

The secured creditors to whom the notice is sent may vote in the Tribunal Convened Meeting
either in person or by proxies.

The Notice convening the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting will be published through
advertisement in  Nava Telangana (Vernacular Newspaper) and Business Standard
(English Newspaper) indicating the day, date, place and time of the Meeting and stating that
the copies of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Explanatory Statement required to be
furnished pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and the form of proxy shall be provided
free of charge at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company.

The Tribunal has appointed CS Gopinath Surey, PCS as the scrutinizer for the Meeting.

It may be noted that the polling paper or ballot will be provided at the Tribunal Convened
Meeting and secured creditors attending the Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be entitled to
exercise their right at the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

The scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairperson after completion of the scrutiny of
the ballots. The results, together with the scrutinizer’s Report, will be displayed at the
Registered Office of the Applicant Company and on the website of the Applicant Company
(www.resustainability.com).

The Route Map for the Tribunal Convened Meeting of the Applicant Company alongwith the
Landmark forms part of this Notice.

Encl: As above



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER 230(3) READ WITH RULE 6 oF THE
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES,
2016 TO THE NOTICE OF THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE SECURED

CREDITORS OF RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED

Pursuant to an order dated May 6, 2024 passed by the Hyderabad Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) in the abovementioned CA (CAA) No0.08/230/2024
(“Order”), a meeting of the secured creditors of Re Sustainability Limited (the “Applicant
Company”) is being convened at on Thursday, July 4, 2024 at 11:15 a.m. (1115
hours) (“Tribunal Convened Meeting” or “Meeting”) for the purpose of considering,
and if thought fit, approving, the composite scheme of arrangement and amalgamation
between the Applicant Company, Mumbai Waste Management Limited (“Amalgamating
Company”) and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (“Resulting
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors, pursuant to the provisions of
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, Section 2(1B), 2(19AA), 2(19AAA), 2(41A), conditions,
if any, notified under sub-section (5) of Section 72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT
Act”) and other relevant provisions of the IT Act (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) (the “Scheme” or “Scheme of
Arrangement”). A copy of the Scheme which has been, inter alia, approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company at their respective
meetings held on January 18, 2024 is enclosed as Annexure 1.

The Scheme, inter alia, provides for: as a first step, the amalgamation of the Amalgamating
Company into and with the Amalgamated Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section
232 of the Act, Section 2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the IT Act and the Act
(“Amalgamation”), and as a second step, followed immediately by the demerger of the
Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of the Demerged Company into and with
the Resulting Company and in consideration, the consequent issuance of compulsorily
convertible securities by the Resulting Company to all the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in accordance with the Share Entitlement Ratio (as defined under the Scheme),
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Sections 2(19AA), 2(19AAA)
read with Section 2(41A) and other relevant provisions of the IT Act and the Act
(“Demerger”); and various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected
therewith.

The proposed Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee of the Applicant Company at
its meeting held on January 18, 2024. The Audit Committee of the Applicant Company took
into account the valuation report, dated September 30, 2023 provided by Katla & Associates
(Firm Reg.N0.020835S) for the purposes of the Scheme (“Valuation Report”). On the basis
of its evaluation and independent judgment, the Audit Committee has approved and
recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company.

The Board of Directors of the Applicant Company, at their meeting dated January 18,
2024, took into account the Valuation Report and the independent recommendations of
the Audit Committee. Based on the aforesaid recommendation and after considering the
background, benefits and rationale of the Scheme and on the basis of their independent
judgment, the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company had, at its meeting held on
January 18, 2024, approved the Scheme. Further, the Board of Directors of the Applicant
Company has passed a resolution on January 18, 2024 authorizing Mr. Masood Mallick
(Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director), Mr. Pankaj Maharaj (Chief Financial
Officer), Mr. Shujath Bin Ali (General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer), and
Mr. Govind Singh (Company Secretary) from the Applicant Company to file the
Scheme before National Company Law Tribunal to undertake actions in relation to the
Scheme.



(i)

In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be as per the
Act. In case the quorum as noted above for the Meeting is not present, then the Meeting shall
be adjourned by half an hour, and thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to
constitute the quorum. Further, in terms of the said Order, the NCLT, has appointed Sri T.V.
Narasimham, Advocate, as the chairperson and CS. Gopinath Surey, PCS as scrutinizer of the
said Tribunal Convened Meeting.

This statement explaining the terms of the Scheme is being furnished as required under
Section 230(3) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Merger Rules™).

The Scheme of Arrangement shall be considered approved by the secured creditors if the
resolutions mentioned in the Notice have been approved by majority of persons representing
three-fourth in value of the secured creditors, voting in person, or by proxy.

Details as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

Details of the order of the Tribunal directing the calling, convening and conducting of the
Meeting:

Please refer to paragraph no. 1 of this Explanatory Statement for date of the Order, date, time
and venue of the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

Details of the Applicant Company, Amalgamating Company and Demerger Company

shujath@resustainab

S. Particulars Re Sustainability | Mumbai Waste Ramky
No. Limited Management Sustainability
Limited Solutions Private
Limited
1. |Corporate U74140TG1994PLC | U90001TG2001PLC |U38210TS2023PTC
Identification 018833 037829 176073
Number
2. |Permanent Account| AAACR9626A AADCMO0026A AAMCR9188B
Number
3. |Date of | November 28, 1994 | September 20, 2001 |August 16, 2023
Incorporation
4, |Type of the | Public limited | Public unlisted | Private limited
company(ies) company company company
5. |Registered  office|Level 11B, | Level 11B,|15th Floor Ramky
address and e-mail | Aurobindo Galaxy, | Aurobindo Galaxy, | Grandios, Opp.
address Hyderabad Hyderabad Aphb, Anjaiah
Knowledge City, | Knowledge City,|Nagar  Gachibowli
Hitech City Road, |Hitech City Road,|Seri Lingampally
Hyderabad, Hyderabad, K.V. Rangareddy
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500081 | TG 500 032
Telangana, India,
500081 mchaitanyarao@res |iwvijayakumar@ra

ustainability.com

mky.com
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(iii)

S. Particulars Re Sustainability | Mumbai Waste Ramky
No. Limited Management Sustainability
Limited Solutions Private
Limited
ility.com
6. |Name of the stock|Not listed on any|Not listed on any|Not listed on any
exchange(s) where|stock exchange stock exchange stock exchange
securities of
company(ies) are
listed

Other Particulars of the Applicant Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

()

Summary of the main objects as per the memorandum of association and main
business carried on by the Applicant Company

To treat, process, purify and control industrial pollutants like effluents, air,
chemicals, noise, solid wastes including all types of hazardous wastes by establishing
treatment plants in India and abroad;

To manufacture, trade, buy, sell, erect, construct, install, maintain, service,
distribute, export, import and deal with package sewerage treatment plants, effluent
treatment plants and all types of pollution control equipment, machinery,
components, spares and stores and materials used for processing, treating, required
the statutory regulations for controlling the pollutants, turnkey contracts for pollution
control and civil projects;

To undertake research in establishing water and wastewater treatment plants and
marketing newer indigenous technologies for manufacturing pollution control
equipment such as incinerators, dissolved air flotation systems, slow speed and high
speed mixers, clarifies and clariflocculators, fixed and floating aerators, wet
scrubbers ventilation systems, bag filters, cyclones, multi clones and electro-static
precipitators;

To create laboratory facilities with sophisticated equipment for analysis of water, air,
noise, soil, waste-water, solid wastes and to carry out treatability studies for waste-
water treatment and all other types of pollutants and also preparation of
environmental impact assessment, environmental audits, risk assessment and all
other works pertaining to environmental engineering and management;

To carry on the business of engineers, civil contractors, mechanical contractors,
design engineers, turnkey contractors and all other engineering work as may be
necessary or incidental thereto;

To undertake and carry on, in India or abroad, the business of commercial cleaning,
conservancy cleaning, conventional and automated car park maintenance, public
cleansing, mechanical street sweeping, external fagade i.e., cleaning of high rise
buildings, pest control, housekeeping management, facilities management, railway
coaches cleaning, waste collection, land scaping and such environmental and other
related activities;
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(b)

To undertake and carry on, in India or abroad, the business of generation,
transmission, distribution, measurement, testing, utilization, stabilization and
conversion including mining of all forms of energy such as conventional energy
based on fossil fuels such as oil, coal, naphtha or natural gas, atomic energy and
non-conventional / renewable energy-based on hydel, solar, wind, bio-mass, biogas,
begasse, hydrogen, other fuel gases, alcohol and its derivatives, geothermal, fuel-
cells, bio liquid fuels from fuel crops, wave-energy from nature directly or otherwise,
and wastes such as municipal / urban, industrial, bio-medical, waste wood; and

To undertake and carry on, in India or abroad, the business of execution of projects
based on engineering, procurement and construction basis or build, own, operate,
maintain and/or transfer basis all types of projects including both conventional and
non-conventional power projects, either on its own or in collaboration, and to sell,
trade, distribute such energy / products.

Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Applicant Company
during the last five years

Change of Name: The Applicant Company was incorporated vide a certificate of
incorporation dated November 28, 1994 as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited under
the Companies Act, 1956. The certificate for commencement of business was issued
to the Amalgamated Company on December 13, 1994. The name of the
Amalgamated Company was changed to its current name i.e. ‘Re Sustainability
Limited’ vide fresh certificate of incorporation dated February 10, 2022.

Change of Registered Office: The Registered Office of the Applicant Company was
changed from 13th Floor, Ramky Grandiose, Ramky Towers Complex, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad- 500032, Telangana to Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad
Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Hyderabad, Telangana, India,
500081 on April 22, 2022.

Change of objects: The shareholders of the Applicant Company have passed a special
resolution under Section 13(1) of the Act, on February 4, 2022 for change in name of
the Applicant Company, and on January 20, 2024 to alter the object clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Applicant Company.

Details of the capital structure of the Applicant Company including authorised,
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

The authorised share capital of the Applicant Company as on May 31, 2024 is as
under:

S. Class of Security Number of Face Authorised
No. Securities Value Share Capital
1. Class A Equity Shares 20,25,22,450 INR 10 INR

2,02,52,24,500
2. Class B Equity Shares 100 INR 10 INR 1,000
3. Class A Preference Shares 1,00,000f INR 100| INR 1,00,00,000
4, Optionally Convertible 13,44,000 INR 15| INR 2,01,60,000
Redeemable Preference
Shares (“OCRPS”)
5. Redeemable Preference 71,145| INR100| INR 71,14,500




(©)

S. Class of Security Number of Face Authorised
No. Securities Value Share Capital
Shares
Total INR
2,06,25,00,000

The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Applicant Company as on
May 31, 2024 is as under:

S. Class of Securities Number of Face Paid up Share
No. Securities Value Capital

1. |Class A Equity Shares 42,29,575 INR 10| Rs. 422,95,750

2. |Class B Equity Shares 100 INR 10 Rs. 1000

3. |OCRPS 2,28,563 INR 15| Rs. 34,28,445

Total Rs.

4,57,25,195

Details of the Promoters and Directors along with their addresses

The details of the promoters of the Applicant Company as on May 31, 2024 are as set

forth below:
S. No. Name of the Promoter Address
1. Metropolis Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. |12 Marina View #11-01, Asia

Square Tower 2, Singapore -
018961

Alla Ishaan Reddy

8, Martin Place, #08-02 Martin
Modern, Singapore, 237992

The Applicant Company has 8 (eight) directors as on May 31, 2024, mentioned as
under. The details of such directors are set forth below:

S. No.  |Name of the Designation Address
Director

1. Shantharaju Director Villa 270, Adarsh Palm Retreat
Bangalore (Independent) Outer Ring Road, Devarabeesana
Siddaiah Halli, Bellandur Bangalore 560103

2 Narayan Director Flat No. 51, Block No. 4, HILL
Keelveedhi (Independent) Park, A. G. Bell Marg, Opp.
Seshadri Malabar Hill MTNL Exchange,

Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400006

10




3 Goutham Reddy |Managing Villa No-11, Ramky CEO Enclave,
Mareddy Director Near- Ramky Towers, Gachibowli,
Rangareddy Hyderabad 500032

4 Masood Alam CEO and Whole |Vill No. 6, Ramky CEO Enclave,
Mallick Time Director Gachibowli, Rangareddy,
Hyderabad - 500032.

5 Hwee Hua Lim  [Nominee 7, Margoliouth Road, Singapore
Director 258534, SIngapore
6 Rohan Rakesh Nominee C-15, Sector- 30, Gautam Buddha
Suri Director Nagar, Sector-30, Noida, Uttar

Pradesh, 201301

7 Suveer Sinha Nominee C/O P-75, Badhwar Park Colaba,
Director Mumbai Maharashtra - 400005
3 Simrun Mehta Nominee Sarabjit Singh, House No- 1817,
Director Sector 17A, Gurgaon, Haryana-
122001

(d) The date of the board meeting of the Applicant Company at which the Scheme was
approved by the board of directors including the name of the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or
participate on such resolution:

Details of the Directors who voted for/ against in the resolution passed on January 18,

2024:
S. Names of the Directors Votes

No.

1. |Shantharaju Bangalore Favour
Siddaiah

2. | Narayan Keelveedhi Seshadri Favour

3. |Goutham Reddy Mareddy Favour

4, |Masood Alam Favour
Mallick

5. |Hwee Hua Lim Favour

6. |Rohan Rakesh Favour
Suri

7. |Suveer Sinha Favour

8. |Simrun Mehta Favour

(e) As on January 27, 2024, the Applicant Company has 5 secured creditors, and amount
due to secured creditors is Rs. 152,42,53,416. As on January 27, 2024, the Applicant
Company has 914 unsecured creditors and amount due to such unsecured creditors is
Rs. 57,56,96,477.

11



()

(9)

(h)

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and
rules formed thereunder) of the Applicant Company and their respective Relatives (as
defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) have any interests, financial or
otherwise in the Scheme, except to the extent of their respective shareholding.

Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key
managerial personnel, (KMP) and debenture trustee

Please refer to point no. (h) below for the effect of the Scheme on material interests
of directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and debenture trustee.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:

S. Persons Effect of the Scheme

No.

1. Key Managerial Personnel Nil; except to the extent of their
respective shareholding and the effect
thereon is detailed in point no. 4 below in
this table.

2. Directors Nil; except to the extent of their
respective shareholding and the effect
thereon is detailed in point no. 3 & 4
below in this table.

3. Promoters The existing shares of shareholders of the

4, Non-Promoter Members Amalgamating Company shall stand

cancelled and extinguished without any
further act, instrument or deed.

Applicant Company has Class A and
Class B equity shares and optionally
convertible redeemable preference shares
in issuance. Upon the Scheme becoming
effective and in consideration of vesting
of the Demerged Undertaking of
Applicant Company in the Resulting
Company in terms of the Scheme, the
Resulting Company shall allot the
following shares, credited as fully paid-
up, to the members of Applicant
Company, holding fully paid up shares in
Applicant Company and whose names
appear in the register of members of
Applicant Company on the Record Date
or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal
representative or other successors in title
as on the Record Date in the following
manner:

A) For Class A Equity Shareholders of
Applicant Company:

“89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six

12




Persons

Effect of the Scheme

Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A
Compulsorily  Convertible Preference
Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Resulting
Company of INR 10/- each, fully paid up
for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A
equity shares of Applicant Company of
INR 10/- each, fully paid up”.

B) For Class B Equity Shareholders of
Applicant Company:

“89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six
Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A
Compulsorily  Convertible Preference
Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Resulting
Company of INR 10/- each, fully paid up
for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B
equity shares of Applicant Company of
INR 10/- each, fully paid up”.

C) For Preference Shareholders of
Applicant Company:

“896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety-Six)
Class B Compulsorily  Convertible
Preference Shares (Class B CCPS) of
Resulting Company each of INR 10/-
each, fully paid up for all the 2,28,563
(Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five
Hundred and Sixty Three) Optionally
Convertible  Redeemable  Preference
Shares of Applicant Company of INR
15/- each fully paid up.”

Depositors

NA

Creditors

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme
and with effect from the Appointed Date
(as defined in the Scheme), all Demerged
Liabilities (as defined in the Scheme)
whether or not recorded in the books of
the Demerged Company, shall, under
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section
2(19AA) and other relevant provisions of
the IT Act, the Act and all other
applicable provisions of applicable law, if
any without any further act, instrument or
deed be and stand transferred to and
vested in and be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company, and the same shall be assumed
by the Resulting Company to the extent
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Effect of the Scheme

that they are outstanding as on the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme)
so as to become the Liabilities of the
Resulting Company which it undertakes
to meet, and discharge.

The Demerged Liabilities transferred to
the Resulting Company in terms of the
Scheme shall without any further act,
instrument or deed, become Liabilities of
the Resulting Company, and all rights,
powers, duties and obligations in relation
thereto shall stand transferred to and
vested in and shall be exercised by or
against the Resulting Company as if it
had entered into such Liabilities. Thus,
with effect from the Effective Date (as
defined in the Scheme), the primary
obligation to redeem or repay such
Demerged Liabilities shall be that of the
Resulting Company.

Save as mentioned in the Scheme, no
other term or condition of the Demerged
Liabilities transferred to the Resulting
Company as part of the Scheme is
modified by virtue of the Scheme except
to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication.

Upon the coming into effect of the
Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date (as defined under the
Scheme), the Demerged Company alone
shall be liable, to perform all obligations
in respect of all Liabilities pertaining to
its Retained Business (as defined under
the Scheme) and the Resulting Company
shall not have any obligations in respect
of the Liabilities of the Retained Business
(as defined under the Scheme). Further,
upon the coming into effect of the
Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date (as defined under the
Scheme), the Resulting Company alone
shall be liable to perform all obligations
in respect of the Demerged Liabilities,
which have been transferred to it in terms
of the Scheme, and the Demerged
Company shall not have any obligations
in respect of such Demerged Liabilities.

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme
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and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Liabilities (as defined in the Scheme)
of the Amalgamating Company, whether
or not recorded in the books of the
Amalgamating Company, shall, under
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section
2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the
IT Act, the Act and all other applicable
provisions of Applicable Law, if any
without any further act, instrument or
deed be and stand transferred to and
vested in and be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the
Amalgamated Company, and the same
shall be assumed by the Amalgamated
Company to the extent that they are
outstanding as on the Effective Date (as
defined in the Scheme) so as to become
the Liabilities of the Amalgamated
Company which it undertakes to meet
and discharge.

All borrowings of the Amalgamating
Company shall without any further act,
instrument or deed, become borrowings
of the Amalgamated Company, and all
rights, powers, duties and obligations in
relation thereto shall stand transferred to
and vested in and shall be exercised by or
against the Amalgamated Company as if
it had incurred such borrowings. Thus,
with effect from the Effective Date (as
defined in the Scheme), the primary
obligation to redeem or repay such
borrowings pertaining to the
Amalgamating Company’s business shall
be that of the Amalgamated Company.

Save as mentioned in the Scheme, no
other term or condition of the Liabilities
transferred to  the  Amalgamated
Company as part of the Scheme is
modified by virtue of the Scheme except
to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication.

Upon the coming into effect of the
Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date (as defined in the
Scheme), the Amalgamated Company
alone shall be liable to perform all
obligations in respect of Liabilities
transferred from the Amalgamating
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S. Persons Effect of the Scheme
No.
Company.
7. Debenture Holders NA
8. Deposit Trustee and Debenture NA
Trustee
9. Employees On the Scheme becoming effective, all

the Demerged Undertaking Employees
(as defined in the Scheme) shall be
deemed to have become employees of the
Resulting Company, with effect from the
Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme), in the same capacity as they
were employed with the Demerged
Company, without any break or
interruption in their service and with the
benefit of continuity of service, and the
terms and conditions of their employment
with the Resulting Company shall not be
less favourable than those applicable to
them with reference to their employment
in the Demerged Company immediately
prior to the Effective Date and in
compliance with Applicable Law.

The Resulting Company agrees that the
past service of all Demerged Undertaking
Employees shall be taken into account for
the purpose of any retirement benefits
that may be applicable to them in the
Demerged Company immediately prior to
coming into effect of the Scheme and
which continue to be available to them as
employees of the Resulting Company the
Resulting Company further agrees that
for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment or redundancy
compensation, gratuity or other terminal
benefits, as may be applicable, such past
service with the Demerged Company
shall also be taken into account and
agrees to pay the same as and when
payable in compliance with Applicable
Law. After the Effective Date, the
Resulting Company alone shall be liable
for any and all dues to Demerged
Undertaking  Employees and  the
Demerged Company shall have no
liability whatsoever for any dues towards
any Demerged Undertaking Employee.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so
far as the provident fund, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund or any other special
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fund or trusts, if any, created by the
Demerged Company or existing for the
benefit of the staff and employees of the
Demerged Company are concerned, such
proportion of the investments made in the
funds and liabilities which are
attributable/referable to the Demerged
Undertaking Employees (collectively
referred to as the “Demerged
Undertaking Employee Funds”) shall
be transferred to the similar funds or
trusts created and/or nominated by the
Resulting Company and shall be held for
their benefit pursuant to the Scheme, or at
the sole discretion of the Resulting
Company, maintained as separate funds
or trusts by the Resulting Company
pending the transfer as aforesaid, the
Demerged Undertaking Employee Funds
may be continued to be deposited in the
existing relevant funds or trusts of the
Demerged Company. Without prejudice
to the aforesaid, the Board of the
Resulting Company, if it deems fit and
subject to Applicable Laws, shall be
entitled to: (a) retain separate trusts or
funds within the Resulting Company for
the erstwhile fund(s) or trusts of the
Demerged Company; or (b) merge the
pre-existing funds or trusts of the
Demerged Company with other similar
funds of the Resulting Company; or (c)
provision for the Demerged Undertaking
Employee Funds, in any other manner, as
determined by the Resulting Company,
subject to Applicable Law.

The Boards of the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company may at their
respective discretions undertake such
measures as they respectively consider
appropriate to protect the interest of
individuals holding Demerged Company
ESOPs (as defined in the Scheme).
Without prejudice to the generality of the
forgoing sentence, these measures may
include: (i) the issuance of Resulting
Company ESOPs by the Resulting
Company to the extent permissible under
Applicable Law, (ii) issuance of
additional ESOPs by the Demerged
Company, (iii) compensatory
modifications to the terms of the vested
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and/or unvested Demerged Company
ESOPs as the Board of the Demerged
Company may deem  appropriate
including but not limited to modifications
to their exercise price, exercise period,
vesting periods and/ or conversion ratio;
(iv) continuation of vesting periods and
continued vesting of unvested Demerged
Company ESOPs to  Demerged
Undertaking Employees after cessation of
employment with Demerged Company
(in  accordance with modifications
pursuant to (iii) above).

On the Scheme becoming effective, all
employees of the Amalgamating
Company immediately prior to the
Effective Date (“Amalgamating
Company Employees™) shall be deemed
to have become employees of the
Amalgamated Company, with effect from
the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme), in the same capacity as they
were employed with the Amalgamating
Company, without any break or
interruption in their service and with the
benefit of continuity of service, and the
terms and conditions of their employment
with the Amalgamated Company shall
not be less favourable than those
applicable to them with reference to their
employment in the Amalgamating
Company immediately prior to the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme)
and in compliance with Applicable Law.

The Amalgamated Company agrees that
the past service of all the Amalgamating
Company Employees shall be taken into
account for the purpose of any retirement
benefits that may be applicable to them in
the Amalgamating Company immediately
prior to coming into effect of the Scheme
and which continue to be available to
them as employees of the Amalgamated
Company. The Amalgamated Company
further agrees that for the purpose of
payment of any retrenchment or
redundancy compensation, gratuity or
other terminal benefits, as may be
applicable, such past service with the
Amalgamating Company shall also be
taken into account and agrees to pay the
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S. Persons Effect of the Scheme

same as and when payable in compliance
with Applicable Law.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so
far as the provident fund, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund or any other special
fund or trusts, if any, created or existing
for the benefit of the staff and employees
of the Amalgamating Company are
concerned, the investments made in the
funds and liabilities which are
attributable/referable to the
Amalgamating Company Employees
(collectively  referred to as the
“Amalgamating Company Funds”) shall
be transferred to the similar funds or
trusts created and/or nominated by the
Amalgamated Company and shall be held
for their benefit pursuant to the Scheme,
or at the sole discretion of the
Amalgamated Company, maintained as
separate funds or trusts by the
Amalgamated Company. Pending the
transfer as aforesaid, the Amalgamating
Company Funds may be continued to be
deposited in the existing relevant funds or
trusts of the Amalgamating Company.
Without prejudice to the aforesaid, the
Board of the Amalgamated Company, if
it deems fit and subject to Applicable
Laws, shall be entitled to: (a) retain
separate trusts or funds within the
Amalgamated Company for the erstwhile
fund(s) or trusts of the Amalgamating
Company; or (b) merge the pre-existing
funds or trusts of the Amalgamating
Company with other similar funds or
trusts of the Amalgamated Company; or
(c) provision for the Amalgamating
Company Funds, in any other manner, as
determined by the Amalgamated

Company, subject to Applicable Law.

(iv)  Other Particulars of the Amalgamating Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

(@)

Summary of the main objects as per the memorandum of association and main
business carried on by Amalgamating Company

The Amalgamating Company is engaged inter-alia, in the business of collecting,

transporting, treating, storing and disposing wastes generated by various industries,
health care establishments and commercial establishments including solids, semi-
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solids, aqueous, non-aqueous liquids by establishing treatment storage disposal
facilities.

The main objects, inter alia, as stated in the Memorandum of Association, are set out
hereunder:

To collect, transport, treat, store and dispose wastes generated by various
industries, health care establishments and commercial establishments including
solids, semi-solids, aqueous, non-aqueous liquids by establishing treatment
storage disposal facilities.

To store, trade, import and export industrial and commercial wastes for
beneficial uses after treatment at treatment storage disposal facilities.

To undertake research work in establishing hazardous waste treatment storage
disposal facilities and marketing newer indigenous technologies for
manufacturing pollution control equipments such as incinerators, landfill liners
and other related equipment.

To create laboratory facilities with sophisticated equipment for analysis of
water, air, noise, soil, waste water, hazardous, solid wastes and to carry out
treatability studies for wastewater treatment and all types of pollutants and also
preparation of environmental impact assessments, environmental audits, risk
assessments pertaining to environmental management.

To process and transport residues to landfill, recycle, re-use, storage, process,
treatment and disposal of Municipal Solid Waste in Chennai city or elsewhere,
conforming to the provisions of Municipal Solid Waste (Management and
Handling) Rules, 2016 as amended from time to time. To undertake recycle, re-
use, store, process, treatment, and disposal of municipal solid wastes;
development, construction, operation & maintenance of processing facilities,
landfill facilities including post closure activities of landfill facilities, improve,
manage, operate, alter, carryon, control of waste processing units like Material
Recycle Facility; composting; Refused Derived Fuel (RDF); Waste to Energy
Power Plant; Recycling, Reuse, Recovery plants; Leachate Treatment plant and
Solvent Extraction Facility. ”

Details of change of name, registered office and objects of Amalgamating
Company during the last five years

Change of Name: NIL

Change of Registered Office: The Registered Office of the Amalgamating Company
was changed from 13th Floor, Ramky Grandiose, Ramky Towers Complex,
Gachibowli, Hyderabad- 500032, Telangana to Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Hyderabad, Telangana,
India, 500081 on April 29, 2024.

Change of objects: The shareholders of the Amalgamating Company have passed a
special resolution under Section 13(1) of the Act, on April 6, 2022 and on January 20,
2024 to alter the objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of the
Amalgamating Company.

Details of the capital structure of Amalgamating Company including authorised,
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
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The share capital structure of Amalgamating Company, as on May 31, 2024, is as

under:
A. Authorised Share Capital Amount in INR
50,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 5,00,00,000
Total 5,00,00,000
B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Amount in INR
49,90,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 4,99,00,000
Total 4,99,00,000

Details of the Promoters and Directors along with their addresses

The details of the promoters of Amalgamating Company as on May 31, 2024 are as
set forth below:

S. No.

Name of the Promoter

Address

1.

Re Sustainability Limited

Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad  Knowledge  City,
Hitech City Road, Hyderabad,
Telangana, 500 081

Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions
Private Limited

Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad  Knowledge  City,
Hitech City Road, Hyderabad,
Telangana, 500 081

Amalgamating Company has 4 (four) directors as on May 31, 2024, mentioned as
under. The details of such directors are set forth below:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation Address
1. Somnath Sharnappa | Whole-time Radhe Krishna, Plot No.6, Flat No.
Malgar Director B-1101, Sector 17, Roadpali, Navi
Mumbai, Kalamboli Road, Navi
Mumbai, Maharashtra — 410218
2. Sanjiv Kumar Director C-8/294, Block-C, PKT-8, Rohini
Sector-8, Delhi-110085
3. Pankaj Maharaj Director 701/702, Serena, Senroofs, Mulund,
Goregaon Link Road, Near Nahur
Railway Station, Nahur East,
Mumbai -400081
4, Aarthi Lakshmi Additional H. No 37-116, Plot No 113, RD No
Kesiraju Director 3, Shree Colony, Neredmet Cross
Road, Medchal, Hyderabad,
Telangana — 500047, India

The date of the board meeting of Amalgamating Company at which the Scheme
was approved by the board of directors including the name of the directors who
voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not

vote or

participate on such resolution:

Details of the Directors who voted for in the resolution passed on January 18, 2024.
No director voted against the resolution, and all directors participated in the meeting.

LS. |

Names of the Directors |

Votes
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No.

1. |Somnath Sharnappa Malgar Favour
2. | Sanjiv Kumar Favour
3. |Pankaj Maharaj Favour
4. | Aarthi Lakshmi Kesiraju Favour

As on January 27, 2024, the Amalgamating Company has 1 secured creditor and
amount due to such secured creditors is Rs. 55,82,94,442. As on January 27, 2024,
the Amalgamating Company has 337 unsecured creditors and amount due to such
unsecured creditors is Rs. 11,59,76,964.

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and
rules formed thereunder) of the Amalgamating and their respective Relatives (as
defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) have any interests, financial or
otherwise in the Scheme, except to the extent of their respective shareholding.

Please refer to point no. (i) below for the effect of the Scheme on material interests of
directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and debenture trustee.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons

Effect of the Scheme

el

The KMPs of the Amalgamating Company
would cease to exist as the Amalgamating
Company would stand dissolved without
being wound-up and without any further act,
instrument or deed

Pursuant to Clause 23 of the Scheme, upon
coming into effect of the Scheme, on the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme),
pursuant to the Amalgamation, the
Amalgamating Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound-up and without any
further act, instrument or deed. Accordingly,
the board of directors of the Amalgamating
Company will cease to exist.

S. No. Persons

1. Key Managerial Personn
2. Directors

3. Promoters

Upon the Scheme coming into effect,
promoters of the Amalgamating Company
will cease to be the promoters of the
Amalgamating Company due to dissolution.
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Persons

Effect of the Scheme

Non-Promoter Members

Pursuant to Clause 21 of the Scheme,
notwithstanding anything contained under the
Act, pursuant to the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 of the Act, the existing shares of
shareholders of the Amalgamating Company
shall stand cancelled and extinguished without
any further act, instrument or deed.

Depositors

NA

Creditors

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and
with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Liabilities (as defined in the Scheme) of the
Amalgamating Company, whether or not
recorded in the books of the Amalgamating
Company, shall, under Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, Section 2(1B) and other relevant
provisions of the IT Act, the Act and all other
applicable provisions of Applicable Law, if
any without any further act, instrument or
deed be and stand transferred to and vested in
and be deemed to have been transferred to and
vested in the Amalgamated Company, and the
same shall be assumed by the Amalgamated
Company to the extent that they are
outstanding as on the Effective Date (as
defined in the Scheme) so as to become the
Liabilities of the Amalgamated Company
which it undertakes to meet and discharge.

All  borrowings of the Amalgamating
Company shall without any further act,
instrument or deed, become borrowings of the
Amalgamated Company, and all rights,
powers, duties and obligations in relation
thereto shall stand transferred to and vested in
and shall be exercised by or against the
Amalgamated Company as if it had incurred
such borrowings. Thus, with effect from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the
primary obligation to redeem or repay such
borrowings pertaining to the Amalgamating
Company’s business shall be that of the
Amalgamated Company.

Save as mentioned in the Scheme, no other
term or condition of the Liabilities transferred
to the Amalgamated Company as part of the
Scheme is modified by virtue of the Scheme
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Effect of the Scheme

except to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme
and with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined in the Scheme), the Amalgamated
Company alone shall be liable to perform all
obligations in respect of Liabilities transferred
from the Amalgamating Company.

7. Debenture Holders NA
8. Deposit Trustee and NA
Debenture Trustee
9. Employees On the Scheme becoming effective, all

Amalgamating Company Employees shall be
deemed to have become employees of the
Amalgamated Company, with effect from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), in
the same capacity as they were employed with
the Amalgamating Company, without any
break or interruption in their service and with
the benefit of continuity of service, and the
terms and conditions of their employment
with the Amalgamated Company shall not be
less favourable than those applicable to them
with reference to their employment in the
Amalgamating Company immediately prior to
the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme)
and in compliance with Applicable Law.

The Amalgamated Company agrees that the
past service of all the Amalgamating
Company Employees shall be taken into
account for the purpose of any retirement
benefits that may be applicable to them in the
Amalgamating Company immediately prior to
coming into effect of the Scheme and which
continue to be available to them as employees
of the Amalgamated Company. The
Amalgamated Company further agrees that
for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment or redundancy compensation,
gratuity or other terminal benefits, as may be
applicable, such past service with the
Amalgamating Company shall also be taken
into account and agrees to pay the same as
and when payable in compliance with
Applicable Law.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so far
as the provident fund, gratuity fund,
superannuation fund or any other special fund
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S. No. Persons Effect of the Scheme

or trusts, if any, created or existing for the
benefit of the staff and employees of the
Amalgamating Company are concerned, the
investments made in the funds and liabilities
which are attributable/referable to the
Amalgamating Company Employees
(collectively referred to as the “Amalgamating
Company Funds”) shall be transferred to the
similar funds or trusts created and/or
nominated by the Amalgamated Company and
shall be held for their benefit pursuant to the
Scheme, or at the sole discretion of the
Amalgamated Company, maintained as
separate funds or trusts by the Amalgamated
Company. Pending the transfer as aforesaid,
the Amalgamating Company Funds may be
continued to be deposited in the existing
relevant funds or trusts of the Amalgamating
Company. Without prejudice to the aforesaid,
the Board of the Amalgamated Company, if it
deems fit and subject to Applicable Laws,
shall be entitled to: (a) retain separate trusts or
funds within the Amalgamated Company for
the erstwhile fund(s) or trusts of the
Amalgamating Company; or (b) merge the
pre-existing funds or trusts of the
Amalgamating Company with other similar
funds or trusts of the Amalgamated Company;
or (c¢) provision for the Amalgamating
Company Funds, in any other manner, as
determined by the Amalgamated Company,
subject to Applicable Law.

Other Particulars of the Resulting Company as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

(@)

Summary of the main objects as per the memorandum of association and main
business carried on by Resulting Company

The Resulting Company is engaged inter-alia, in the business of developing and
implementing scientifically managed integrated municipal solid waste management
system, waste to energy (WTE), construction and destruction debris services,
biomedical waste services and other waste management, collecting and disposal
related services in Delhi or any other place, including door to door collecting,
segregating, transferring and transportation of biodegradable, nonbiodegradable waste
from generators / producers of concession area, lifting and transportation of sweeping
silt, garden waste and tree branches from the concession area to processing / landfill
site by using auto lifter, refuse compactors and closed tippers in India or worldwide.
The main objects, inter alia, along with serial numbers as stated in the Memorandum
of Association, are set out hereunder:

(@ To carry on the business to develop and implement scientifically managed
integrated municipal solid waste management system, waste to energy (WTE),
construction and destruction debris services, biomedical waste services and
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other waste management, collection and disposal related services in Delhi or
any other place, including door to door collection, segregation, transfer and
transportation of biodegradable, nonbiodegradable waste from generators /
producers of concession area, lifting and transportation of sweeping silt,
garden waste and tree branches from the concession area to processing /
landfill site by using auto lifter, refuse compactors and closed tippers in India
or worldwide.

To establish an integrated municipal solid waste processing and engineered
sanitary landfill facility (SLF) wherein the municipal solid waste is duly
processed and the residual inert/non-degradable solid wastes disposed in an
engineered sanitary landfill, providing top soil cover on the closed portions of
landfill and developing green cover for setting up of a engineered SLF in India
or worldwide.

To carry on the business, in India or worldwide, of construction, operation and
maintenance of waste transfer stations in each zone/vehicle parting site(s),
integrated processing facility and engineered sanitary landfill (SLF) site in
compliance to MSW (M&H) Rules, 2000, to set up control room to monitor the
movement of every vehicle by using real time GPS (Global Positioning System)/
GSM (Global System for Mobile Communication), ULB (Urban Local Body
Control Room) to set up ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) system to
monitor the complete enterprise set up.

To develop and operate the waste processing units with a combination of
technologies/ systems including material recycling facility (MRF), compositing
and refuse derived fuel (RDF), waste to energy power plant as well as new
processing technologies, which would maximize waste recycling / treatment
and would ensure that minimum quantity of insert goes to landfill and to
conduct public awareness programmes for ensuring segregation / separate
collection of waste in India or worldwide.

Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Resulting Company
during the last five years

Change of Name: NIL

Change of Registered Office: NIL

Change of objects: The shareholders of the Resulting Company have passed a special
resolution under Section 13(1) of the Act, on January 20, 2024 to alter the object
clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company.

Details of the capital structure of the Resulting Company including authorised,
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

The share capital structure of the Resulting Company, as on May 31, 2024 is as

under:
A. Authorised Share Capital Amount in INR
1,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000
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B. Issued and Subscribed Share Capital Amount in INR
1,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000

C. Paid-up Share Capital Amount in INR
1,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000

Details of the Promoters and Directors along with their addresses

Alla Ishaan Reddy is the promoter of the Resulting Company as on May 31, 2024,
and resides at 8, Martin Place, #08-02 Martin Modern, Singapore, 237992.

The Resulting Company has 2 (two) directors as on May 31, 2024, mentioned as
under. The details of such directors are set forth below:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation Address
1. Isaac Wesley Director Villa no. 24, Infinity Homes,
Vijayakumar Tellapur Village,

Ramachandrapuram Mandal,
Near Manthan School,
Amme, Hyderabad- 502032,
Telangana, India.

2. Sanikommu Director Flat no. 309, Manjeera Trinity
Srikanthreddy Homes, 3rd Phase, KPHB
Colony, Kukatpally, JNTU,
Kukatpally, KV Rangareddy,
Hyderabad-500085,
Telangana, India.

The date of the board meeting of the Resulting Company at which the Scheme was
approved by the board of directors including the name of the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not or
participate on such resolution:

Details of Directors of the Resulting Company who voted for/ against the resolution
passed on January 18, 2024:

S. Names of the Directors Votes
No.
1. Isaac Wesley Vijayakumar Favour
2. | Sanikommu Srikanthreddy Favour

As on January 27, 2024, the Resulting Company has no secured creditors and 1
unsecured creditor and amount due to such unsecured creditor is INR 30,000/-.

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and
rules formed thereunder) of the Resulting Company and their respective Relatives (as
defined under the Act and rules formed thereunder) have any interests, financial or
otherwise in the Scheme, except to the extent of their respective shareholding.
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Please refer to point no. (i) below for the effect of the Scheme on material interests of
directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and debenture trustee.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons:

S. No.

Persons

Effect of the Scheme

1.

Key Managerial Personnel

The key managerial personnel of the Resulting
Company shall continue as key managerial
personnel of the Resulting Company even after
the effectiveness of the Scheme and the
Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the
key managerial personnel of the Resulting
Company.

Directors

Post effectiveness of the Scheme, the existing
directors shall continue on the board.

However, the board of directors of the
Resulting Company may consider
reconstituting the board.

w

Promoters

Non-Promoter Members

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in
consideration of vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking of Applicant Company in the
Resulting Company in terms of the Scheme,
the Resulting Company shall allot the
following shares, credited as fully paid-up, to
the members of Applicant Company, holding
fully paid up shares in Applicant Company and
whose names appear in the register of members
of Applicant Company on the Record Date (as
defined in the Scheme) or to such of their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or
other legal representative or other successors in
title as on the Record Date in the following
manner:

A) For Class A Equity Shareholders of
Applicant Company:

“89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred
and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS)
of the Resulting Company of INR 10/- each,
fully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred)
Class A equity shares of Applicant Company
of INR 10/- each, fully paid up”.

B) For Class B Equity Shareholders of
Applicant Company:

“89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred
and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS)
of the Resulting Company of INR 10/- each,
fully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred)
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Class B equity shares of Applicant Company of
INR 10/- each, fully paid up”.

C) For Preference Shareholders of Applicant
Company:

“896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety-Six) Class B
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(Class B CCPS) of the Resulting Company
each of INR 10/- each, fully paid up for all the
2,28,563 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand
Five Hundred and Sixty Three) Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of
Applicant Company of INR 15/- each fully
paid up.”

The existing shareholders of the Resulting
Company shall continue to remain as
shareholders of the Resulting Company even
after the effectiveness of the Scheme and the
Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the
existing shareholders of the Resulting
Company.

Depositors

NA

Creditors

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and
with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined in the Scheme), all Demerged
Liabilities (as defined in the Scheme) whether
or not recorded in the books of the Demerged
Company, shall, under Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, Section 2(19AA) and other relevant
provisions of the IT Act, the Act and all other
applicable provisions of applicable law, if any
without any further act, instrument or deed be
and stand transferred to and vested in and be
deemed to have been transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company, and the same shall
be assumed by the Resulting Company to the
extent that they are outstanding as on the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme) so as
to become the Liabilities of the Resulting
Company which it undertakes to meet, and
discharge.

The Demerged Liabilities transferred to the
Resulting Company in terms of the Scheme
shall without any further act, instrument or
deed, become Liabilities of the Resulting
Company, and all rights, powers, duties and
obligations in relation thereto shall stand
transferred to and vested in and shall be
exercised by or against the Resulting Company
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as if it had entered into such Liabilities. Thus,
with effect from the Effective Date (as defined
in the Scheme), the primary obligation to
redeem or repay such Demerged Liabilities
shall be that of the Resulting Company.

Save as mentioned in the Scheme, no other
term or condition of the Demerged Liabilities
transferred to the Resulting Company as part of
the Scheme is modified by virtue of the
Scheme except to the extent that such
amendment is required by necessary
implication.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and
with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined under the Scheme), the Demerged
Company alone shall be liable, to perform all
obligations in respect of all Liabilities
pertaining to its Retained Business (as defined
under the Scheme) and the Resulting Company
shall not have any obligations in respect of the
Liabilities of the Retained Business (as defined
under the Scheme). Further, upon the coming
into effect of the Scheme and with effect from
the Appointed Date (as defined under the
Scheme), the Resulting Company alone shall
be liable to perform all obligations in respect of
the Demerged Liabilities, which have been
transferred to it in terms of the Scheme, and the
Demerged Company shall not have any
obligations in respect of such Demerged
Liabilities.

7. Debenture Holders NA
8. Deposit Trustee and Debenture NA
Trustee
9. Employees On the Scheme becoming effective, all the

Demerged Undertaking Employees (as defined
in the Scheme) shall be deemed to have
become employees of the Resulting Company,
with effect from the Effective Date (as defined
in the Scheme), in the same capacity as they
were employed with the Demerged Company,
without any break or interruption in their
service and with the benefit of continuity of
service, and the terms and conditions of their
employment with the Resulting Company shall
not be less favourable than those applicable to
them with reference to their employment in the
Demerged Company immediately prior to the
Effective Date and in compliance with
Applicable Law.
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The Resulting Company agrees that the past
service of all Demerged Undertaking
Employees shall be taken into account for the
purpose of any retirement benefits that may be
applicable to them in the Demerged Company
immediately prior to coming into effect of the
Scheme and which continue to be available to
them as employees of the Resulting Company
the Resulting Company further agrees that for
the purpose of payment of any retrenchment or
redundancy compensation, gratuity or other
terminal benefits, as may be applicable, such
past service with the Demerged Company shall
also be taken into account and agrees to pay the
same as and when payable in compliance with
Applicable Law. After the Effective Date, the
Resulting Company alone shall be liable for
any and all dues to Demerged Undertaking
Employees and the Demerged Company shall
have no liability whatsoever for any dues
towards any Demerged Undertaking Employee.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so far as
the  provident  fund, gratuity  fund,
superannuation fund or any other special fund
or trusts, if any, created by the Demerged
Company or existing for the benefit of the staff
and employees of the Demerged Company are
concerned, such proportion of the investments
made in the funds and liabilities which are
attributable/referable  to the  Demerged
Undertaking Employees (collectively referred
to as the “Demerged Undertaking Employee
Funds”) shall be transferred to the similar
funds or trusts created and/or nominated by the
Resulting Company and shall be held for their
benefit pursuant to the Scheme, or at the sole
discretion of the Resulting Company,
maintained as separate funds or trusts by the
Resulting Company pending the transfer as
aforesaid, the Demerged Undertaking
Employee Funds may be continued to be
deposited in the existing relevant funds or
trusts of the Demerged Company. Without
prejudice to the aforesaid, the Board of the
Resulting Company, if it deems fit and subject
to Applicable Laws, shall be entitled to: (a)
retain separate trusts or funds within the
Resulting Company for the erstwhile fund(s) or
trusts of the Demerged Company; or (b) merge
the pre-existing funds or trusts of the
Demerged Company with other similar funds
of the Resulting Company; or (c) provision for
the Demerged Undertaking Employee Funds,
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S. No.

Persons

Effect of the Scheme

in any other manner, as determined by the
Resulting Company, subject to Applicable
Law.

The Boards of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company may at their respective
discretions undertake such measures as they
respectively consider appropriate to protect the
interest of individuals holding Demerged
Company ESOPs (as defined in the Scheme).
Without prejudice to the generality of the
forgoing sentence, these measures may include:
(i) the issuance of Resulting Company ESOPs
by the Resulting Company to the extent
permissible under Applicable Law, (ii)
issuance of additional ESOPs by the Demerged
Company, (iii) compensatory modifications to
the terms of the vested and/or unvested
Demerged Company ESOPs as the Board of
the Demerged Company may deem appropriate
including but not limited to modifications to
their exercise price, exercise period, vesting
periods and/ or conversion ratio; (iv)
continuation of vesting periods and continued
vesting of unvested Demerged Company
ESOPs to Demerged Undertaking Employees
after cessation of employment with Demerged
Company (in accordance with modifications
pursuant to (iii) above).

Other details regarding the Scheme required as per Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules

(@)

(b)

Relationship between the Applicant Company, Amalgamating Company and
Resulting Company:

74% shares of the Amalgamating Company are held by Applicant Company and the
remaining 26% are held by Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited
(previously known as Ramky IWM Private Limited), which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Applicant Company.

Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date:

Effective Date: The Effective Date is the date on which the last of the conditions and
matters referred to in Clause 43 of the Scheme have occurred or have been fulfilled,
obtained or waived, as applicable, in accordance with that Clause.

Appointed Date: The appointed date for the Scheme is the Effective Date.

Record Date: The record date means a date mutually agreed between the Board of
the Demerged Company and the Board of the Resulting Company for the purpose of
determining the shareholders of the Demerged Company to whom compulsorily
convertible preference shares of the Resulting Company would be issued and allotted
pursuant to the Demerger in accordance with Clause 37 of the Scheme.
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(d)

(€)

(f)

Consideration, Share Exchange and Share Entitlement Ratio:

Since the Amalgamating Company is a subsidiary of the Amalgamated Company,
with shares of the Amalgamating Company held by the Amalgamated Company, a
subsidiary of the Amalgamated Company, and their respective nominees, and since
shares of a holding company cannot be held by its subsidiaries pursuant to provisions
of Section 19 of the Act, no consideration shall be payable pursuant to the
Amalgamation, and therefore no shares of the Amalgamated Company shall be
allotted in lieu or exchange of the holding of shareholders in the Amalgamating
Company (held directly and jointly with the nominee shareholders).

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of transfer and vesting of
the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company in terms of the Scheme, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application, act or deed, issue and allot,
credited as fully paid-up, to the members of the Demerged Company, whose names
appear in the register of member on the Record Date or to such of their respective
heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in
title as on the Record Date in the following manner:

“For Class A Equity Shareholders of Demerged Company: 89,625 (Eighty-Nine
Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of Resulting Company of INR 10/- each, fully paid
up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A equity shares of Demerged Company of INR
10/- each, fully paid up.

For Class B Equity Shareholders of Demerged Company: 89,625 (Eighty-Nine
Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of Resulting Company of INR 10/- each, fully paid
up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares of Demerged Company of INR
10/- each, fully paid up.

For Preference Shareholders of the Demerged Company: 896 (Eight Hundred and
Ninety-Six) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (Class B CCPS) of
Resulting Company each of INR 10/- each, fully paid up for all the 2,28,563 (Two
Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty Three) Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Demerged Company of INR 15/- each fully paid
up.” (“Share Entitlement Ratio”).

Summary of the Valuation Report
The Valuation Report is attached as Annexure 2.

Detail of capital restructuring — There would not be any change in the capital
structure of the Applicant Company pursuant to the Scheme. Pursuant to the
Demerger and Amalgamation, the Resulting Company would be issuing shares to the
shareholders of the Applicant Company. The shares of the Amalgamating Company
would stand cancelled.

Rationale of the Scheme of Arrangement, and the benefit of the Scheme of
Arrangement as perceived by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company

The Amalgamated Company and/ or its subsidiaries are involved in the following

different waste management businesses, Retained Business and the Demerged
Business (as defined in the Scheme), and similarly, the Amalgamated Company and/
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(9)

or its subsidiaries currently have operations in various different jurisdictions,
including: India; Bangladesh; Indonesia; Malaysia; Oman; Philippines; Saudi Arabia;
Singapore; The United Arab Emirates; The United States of America; and Tanzania.

Each of these businesses and jurisdictions have different market dynamics which
require differentiated strategies and directions to grow and deliver value. The
proposed Scheme would be in the best interest of the Companies and their respective
shareholders, employees, creditors and other stakeholders as the proposed
restructuring pursuant to the Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in the following
benefits:

Benefits of the Demerger

@ The profile, operations, management risk and return associated with the
Demerged Businesses are distinct from those of the Retained Business and the
Demerger would therefore lead to sharper focus on the two sets of businesses.

(b) Segregation of the Retained Business from the Demerged Businesses will
allow simplification of the organization, better resource allocation and an independent
focus on the Demerged Business and the Retained Business by the managements of
the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company respectively.

(©) Synergies in operational processes and creation of efficiencies by reducing
time to market and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operations and
capital expenditure.

(d) The growth and expansion of the Demerged Business would require a
differentiated strategy aligned to its industry specific risks, market dynamics and
growth trajectory. The Demerged Business has now reached a meaningful scale and
will be able to benefit by becoming an independently focused company.

Benefits of the Amalgamation

@) Integration of the Amalgamated Company and the Amalgamating Company’s
business activities under a single entity through the amalgamation will result inter alia
in focused management attention, operational efficiencies, revenue and cost
synergies, optimization of capital, and simplification of overlapping infrastructure.

(b) The amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with the Amalgamated
Company would bring about synergy of operations and benefit of scale, and also
result in the legal and regulatory compliance requirements of both the entities being
unified and streamlined.

(c) Consolidates the managerial expertise of the Amalgamating Company and
the Amalgamated Company thereby giving additional strength to the operations and
management of the Amalgamated Company resulting in expansion of the combined
business.

(d) Results in the reduction of and/ or optimization in overhead costs,
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalization,
organizational efficiency and optimal utlisation of various resources.

Details of availability of the following documents for obtaining extracts from or
making or obtaining copies
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(h)

The following documents will be available for obtaining extract from or for making
or obtaining copies of or for inspection by the members and creditors of the Applicant
Company at its Registered Office at Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad
Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Hyderabad, Telangana, India,
500081 between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on any working day up to the day prior
to the date of the meeting:

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Certified copy of the orders passed by the Hyderabad Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal, CA (CAA) No0.08/230/2024, to convene the
Tribunal Convened Meeting;

Copy of the Scheme;

Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Companies;

Copies of the latest audited financial statements of the Applicant Company,
and Amalgamated Company (the Resulting Company was incorporated in
August 2023 and does not have audited financial statements);

Copy of the valuation report Valuation report dated September 30, 2023
issued by Katla & Associates (Firm Reg.N0.020835S);

The certificates issued by Auditor(s) to the effect that the accounting
treatment, if any, proposed in the Scheme of Arrangement is in conformity
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other
governmental authorities

(i)

(ii)

(i)

The Companies are in the process of an application with the Competition
Commission of India in relation to the transactions proposed under the
Scheme.

The Scheme was filed by the Companies with the NCLT on February 10,
2024, and the Hyderabad Bench of NCLT has given directions to convene
Meetings(s) vide an Order dated May 6, 2024 (read with corrigendum dated
May 9, 2024).

The transactions contemplated under the Scheme are subject to the approval
of various governmental concessioning authorities who are counterparties to
contracts entered into by the Companies and their group companies.

Salient Features of the Scheme

The salient features of the Scheme are as follows:

The capitalised terms used herein below, shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the

Scheme

(@)

In furtherance of the rationale of the Scheme mentioned this Explanatory Statement,
the Scheme provides for the Business Transfer, the Demerger and the Amalgamation
and various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith
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(b)

(©)

pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and in compliance with the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Amalgamation shall precede the Demerger.

Demerger

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(ii)

The Demerger is sought to be in accordance with the provisions of Section
2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the Scheme provides for
the transfer of the undertakings, business, activities and operations of the
Applicant Company pertaining to its Demerged Undertaking.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, loans raised
and used, obligations incurred, as on the Appointed Date, shall be transferred
to the Resulting Company to the extent that they are outstanding as on the
Effective Date.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, all legal, taxation or other
proceedings, relating to the Demerged Undertaking, shall be continued and
enforced by or against the Resulting Company after the Effective Date.

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date (as defined in the Scheme), all Demerged Liabilities (as defined in the
Scheme) whether or not recorded in the books of the Demerged Company,
shall, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section 2(19AA) and other
relevant provisions of the IT Act, the Act and all other applicable provisions
of applicable law, if any without any further act, instrument or deed be and
stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in the Resulting Company, and the same shall be assumed by the
Resulting Company to the extent that they are outstanding as on the Effective
Date (as defined in the Scheme) so as to become the Liabilities of the
Resulting Company which it undertakes to meet, and discharge.

The Retained Business shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be
managed by the Applicant Company subject to the provisions of the Scheme.

In consideration of the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking, the Resulting
Company shall issue and allot shares to each member of the Applicant
Company in accordance with the Share Entitlement Ration set out under this
Explanatory Statement.

Amalgamation

(i)

As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the authorised share capital of the Amalgamating Company shall stand
transferred to and combined with the authorised share capital of the
Amalgamated Company. The authorized share capital of the Amalgamated
Company will automatically stand increased to INR 2,11,25,00,000 (Two
Hundred and Eleven Crores Twenty Five Lakhs only) by filing the requisite
forms with the Governmental Authority and no separate procedure or
instrument or deed shall be required to be executed and/ or process shall be
required to be followed under the Act. The filing fees and stamp duty already
paid by the Amalgamating Company on its authorised share capital shall be
deemed to have been so paid by the Amalgamated Company on the combined
authorised share capital and accordingly the Amalgamated Company shall
not be required to pay any fees/stamp duty on the authorised share capital so
increased.
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(i) Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, if any Proceedings, by or against
the Amalgamating Company, whether pending on the Effective Date or
which may arise or be instituted any time thereafter shall not abate or be
discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or by
anything contained in the Scheme, but the said Proceedings shall be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Amalgamated
Company, as the case may be, after the Effective Date, in the same manner
and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted
and enforced by or against the Amalgamating Company as if the Scheme had
not been made.

(iii)  The existing shares of shareholders of the Amalgamating Company shall
stand cancelled and extinguished without any further act, instrument or deed.

(iv) On the Effective Date, pursuant to the Amalgamation, the Amalgamating
Company shall stand dissolved without being wound-up and without any
further act, instrument or deed.

(V) On and with effect from the Effective Date, the status of the Amalgamating
Company shall be changed to ‘amalgamated’ in the records of the Registrar
of Companies, Hyderabad. The Amalgamated Company and the
Amalgamating Company will make the necessary filings in this regard.

General Conditions

Q) The Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to: (a) the
fulfilment, satisfaction or waiver (as the case may be) of any approvals or
consents from third parties, as may be mutually agreed by the Companies as
being required for completion of the transactions contemplated under the
Scheme; (b) the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of each
class of members and/or creditors (where applicable) of the Companies in
accordance with the Act and as may be directed by the NCLT; (c) the
Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT(s) in terms of Section 230 to Section
232 and other relevant provisions of the Act on terms acceptable to the
Companies; (d) the certified copies of the sanction order(s) of the NCLT(s)
approving the Scheme being filed with the relevant RoCs having jurisdiction
over the Companies. Upon the sanction of the Scheme and upon the Scheme
becoming effective pursuant to Clause 43 of the Scheme, the Amalgamation
shall take effect and subsequently the Demerger shall be made effective.

The features set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme, the secured
creditors are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme (annexed herewith) to get
fully acquainted with the provisions thereof and the rationale and objectives of the
Scheme.

Documents required to be circulated for the Meeting under Section 232(2) of the Act:

As required under Section 232(2) of the Act, the following documents are being circulated
with this notice and the explanatory statement:

@) Scheme of Arrangement, enclosed as Annexure 1;
(b) Valuation report enclosed as Annexure 2;

(c) Report of the Board of Directors of the Companies enclosed as Annexure 3; and
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(d) Supplementary un-audited accounting statement of the Applicant Company for the
period ending November 30, 2023, enclosed as Annexure 4.

Further, the Scheme of Arrangement has been filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Hyderabad.

This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) and Section 102 of
the Act and the statement for the purposes of Rule 6(3) of the Merger Rules. A copy of the Scheme,
Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy may be obtained from the Registered Office of the
Applicant Company on all days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays).

Dated at this June 1, 2024

Sd/-
Govind Singh
Company Secretary

Registered Office: Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,
Hyderabad, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500081
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Annexure |

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT

AMONGST

RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED
AND
MUMBAI WASTE MANAGEMENT LIMITED
AND
RAMKY SUSTAINABILITY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230-232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013




B PREAMBLE

1.1 This composite scheme of aivangement (“Scheme”, miore particularly defined hereinafier)
is presented pursvant to the provisions of Sections 230 0 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Act (s defined hereinafier) read with the Companies (Comprotnises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, Section 2(1B), 2(19AA), 2(19AAA),
2(31A), conditions, if any, notified under sub-section (5) of Section 72A of the [T Act and
other celevant provisions ofthe IT Act amongst Re Sustainability Linaited (“*Amalgamated
Company" or, upon Awmalgamation, the “Demerged Company"), Mumbai Waste
Management Limited (“Amalgamating Company™), Ramky Sustaiaability Solutions
Puaivate Limited (“Resulting Company™) and their cespective shareholders and creditors.

1.2 The Scheme, inter alia, provides G

(a) as a first step, the amalgamation of the Amalgamatiag Company into and with the
Amalgamated Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 232 of the Act,
Section 2(1 B} and other relevant provisions of the [T Act and the Act (as defined
hereinafier) (*Amalgamation™)

{b) as a second step, followed unmediately by the demerger of the Demerged
Uandertaking (¢s defined hereinafier) of the Demerged Company into and with the
Resulting Company and ia consideration, the consequent issuance of compulsorily
convertible securities by the Resulting Company to all the shareholders of the
Demerged Company n accordsnce with the Shace Eatitlement Ratio (ax defined
hereunder), pursuaat to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Sections
2(194A), 2(19AAA) read with Section 2(41 A) and other relevant provisions of the
Il Act and the Act (ax defined hereinafter) (“Demerger™), and

() vanous other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith,
each in the manner as more particularly described in this Scheine.
2. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIFTION OF THE COMPANIES

2.1 The Amalgamated Company is a public limited compaay with corporate identification
number U74140TG19954PLCO18833. Amalgamated Company was incorporated vide a
certificate of incorpotation daied November 28, 1994 as Ramky Eaviro Engineers Limited
under the Companies Act, 1956, The certificate for commencement of business was issued
to the Amalgamated Company on Decewber 13, 1994, The name of the Awmalgamated
Company was changed to its current name e, *Re Sustainability Limited® vide fresh
certificate of incorporation dated February 10, 2022,

22  The Amalgamated Company curreatly has its registered office at Level 118, Aurobindo
Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Telangana, $00081.

23 The objects of the Amalgamated Compaay as stated in its memorandum of association
include the following:

(a) To treat. process, purify and control industrial pollwants like effluents, air,
chemicals, noise, solid wastes including all ppes of hazardous wastes by
establishing treatment plants in lndia and abroad:

vy To monufacture, trade, buy, sell. erect, construct. install, maintain, service.
distribute, export, import and degl with package sewerage treatment plufk o, ;i.'f
effluent treatment plants and @il Lonn 1 foclution control equipment, ma m.vv
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2.5

(d)

(e)

6

(2)

®

components, spares and stores and materials used for processing, treating,
reguired the statutory regudations for controlling the pollutants, turnkey contracts
Jor pollution contral and civil projects:

To undertake research in establishing water and wastewater treatment plants and
marketing newer indigenous technologies for manufucturing pollution control
equipment such as incinerarors. dissolved air flotation systems, slow speed and
high speed mixers, clarifies and clarviflocculators, fixed and floating aevators, wet
scrubbers vewtilation syscems, bag filters, cyclones, nmulti clones and electro-seatic
precipitators,

To create laboratory facilities with sophisticated equipment for analvsis of water,

air, noise, soil, waste-water, solid wastes and to carry out weatability studies for

wasteswaier treatment and all other tvpes of poltutants and also preparation of
environmentd dnpact assessment, environmental avdits, risk assessment and all
other works pertaining to envivonmental engineering and management;

To cany on the business of engineers, civil contraciors, mechanical contractors,
design engtneers, tankey contractors and all other engineering wark as meuy be
necessary or incidental theveto,

To undertake and carry on, in India or abroad. the business of commercial
cleaning. conservancy cleaning, conventional and automated car park
maintenance, public cleansing, mechanical street sweeping, external fu¢ade ie.,
cleaning of high rise buildings. pest control, housekeeping management, facilities
management, railway coaches cleaning, waste collection, land scaping and such
envivonmental and other related activities,

To undertake and carvy on, in India or cbroad. the business of generation,
transmission, distribution, measurement, testing, utilization, stubdlization and
conversion including nining of all forms of energy such as conventional energy
based on fossil fuels such as oil, coal, naphiha or natural gas, atomic eneryy and
non-conventional / renewable energy-based on hydel, solar, wind, hio-mass,
biogas. begasse, hydrogen. other fuel gases, alcohol und its derivatives,
geotliermal, fieel-cells, bio liguid fuels from fuel crops, wave-energy from nature
divectly or otherwise, and wastes such as nupticipal . wban, industrial, bio-
wmedical, waste wood: and

To underiake and carvy on, in ludia or ubroad, the business of execution of projects
based on engineering, procurement and construction basis or build, ovwn, operace,
waineain and/or transfer basis all types of profects including bod: conventional
and non-conventional power projects, either on its own or in collaboration, and to
sell, trade, distribute such energy / products.

The Amalgamating Compsny s a public limited company with corporate identification
aunber US0001 TG2001PLCO37829 and was (ncorporated vide a certificate of
incorporation dated Septewber 20, 2001 as Mumbai Waste Management Limited under the
Companies Act, 1956, The centificate for commencement of business was issued to the
Amalgamating Company on October 3, 2001,

The Amalgamating Compaay currently has its registered office at Level 11B, Aurobindo
Galaxy, Hydcrabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, lelangana, SO0081.
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@ To collect. transport, treat, store and dispose wastes generated by variows
industries, health care establishments and commercial establishments including
solids, semissolids, aqueous, non-aqueous liquids by estublishing treatment
storage disposal facilities.

b) o store, wade, import and export industrial and commercial wustes for beneficial
uses dfter treatment at treatment storage disposal facilities.

(¢) To undertake vesearch work in establishing hazardous waste treatment storage
disposal facilities and marketing newer indigenous technologies for manufacturing
pollution control equipments such as incinerators, lundfill liners and other rvelated
equipment,

(d) To create laboratory facilities with sophisticated equipment for analysis of water,
adr, noise, soi, waste water, hacardous, solid wastes and 10 cariy out treatability
studies for wastewater treatment and all tvpes of pollutants and also preparation
of environmental impuct assessments, environmental audits, risk assessments
perttining to environmental management,

(e} To pracess and wansport residues to landfill, recycle, re-use, storage, process.
treatiment and disposal of Municipal Solid Waste in Chennai city or elsewhere,
conforming to the provisions of Municipal Solid Waste (Management and
Handling) Rules, 2016 as amended from time to time, To undertake recycle, ve-use,
store, pracess, treatment, and disposal of numicipal salid wastes: development,
canstruction, operation & maintenance of processing facilities, landfill facilitics
including post closure activities of landfill facilities, improve, manuge, operate,
alter, carrvon, control of waste processing units like Material Recyele Facility;
composting; Refused Derived Fuel (RDF); Waste to Energy Power Plant:
Recyeling, Reuse, Recovery plants: Leachate Treutment plunt and Solvent
Extraction Facility.

The Resulting Company is a private lisnited company with corporate identification aumber
U38210TS2023PTC 76073 and was incorporated vide a certificate ot incorporation dated
August 16, 2023 under the Act.

The Resulting Company currentty has its registered office at 15® Floor Ramky Geandios
Opp. Aplib, Anjaish Nagar, Gachibowli, Sen Lingampally K.V.Rangaceddy, Telaagana -
300032

The objects of the Resulting Company as stated in its memoraadum of association include
the following:

@) To carry on the business to develop and implement scientifically managed
integrated municipal solid waste management system, wasic to energy (WTE),
construction and destruction debris services, biomedical waste sermvices and other
waste management, collection and disposal velated services in Delhi or uny other
place, including door to door collection, segregation, transfer and transportation
of bivdegradable, nonbiodegraduble waste from genervators / producers of
concession area, lifting and transportation of sweeping silt, garden waste and tree
branches from the concession area o processing / landfill site by using auto lifter,
refiuse conipaciors and closed tippers tn India or worldwide.

th) To establish an integrated municipal solid waste processing and engineered ==
sanitary landfill faciliey (SLF} wherein-the municipal solid waste is duly pwoesdga g, -
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and the residucl inert/non-degrodahit! W&m‘&!&' disposed in an enginde@i )
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sanitary landfll, providing top soil cover on the closed portions of landfl and
developing green cover for setting up of a engineered SLE in India or worldwide.

To carry on the business, in lndia or worldwide, of construction, operation and
matneenanece of waste transfer stations @t each 2oneivehicle parting site(s),
integrated processing facility and engineered sanitary landfill (SLF) site in
compliance to MSW (M&H) Rules, 2000, to set up control voont to monitor the
movement of every vehicle by using real time GPS (Global Positioning Systentyc
GSM (Globad System for Mobile Communication), ULB (Urban Local Body
Control Roomy} to set up ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) system (o monitor
the complete enterprise set up.

To develop and operate the waste processing wnits with a combination of
technologies/ svstems including material recveling fuciliov (VMIRF), compositing
and vefive devived fuel (RDF), waste to energy power pilant as well as new
processing techmologies, whick would maxtmise waste recyeling / weatment and
wotld ensure that minimum quantity of insert goes (o landhll and to conducet public
awareness progranunes for ensuring segregation / separate collection of waste in
{ndia or worldwide.

RATIONALE AND OBJECTIVE OF THE SCHEME

The Amalgamated Company aad/ ot its subsidiaries are involved in the following different
waste managenent businesses:

(a)

“Retained Businesses™ wiz.,

) Industrial waste management busincss: the business of handling,
teansporting, storing and processing waste produced by occupiers, as aa
operator of conunon treatinent, stocage and disposal, Altemate Fuel and
Raw Matenal (AFR), recyeling and vesource recovery tacilities in tenms of
the Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary
Moavement) Rules, 2016, issued under the Enviconment {Protection) Act,
1986,

(it} Bio-medical waste management business: the business of collecting,
receiving storing, teansporting, treating, disposing ot athenvise handling
bio-tedical waste, as an operatar of conunon bio«nedical waste treannent
facilities in tenns of the Bio-iedical Waste Management Rules, 2016,
1ssued under the Environent (Protection) Act, 1986;

() Recycling business: waste recycling, e-waste management, battery waste
management, plastic waste managetent, construction & demolition waste
management, cecyeling/ resource recovery from other commodities/
teedstock’ waste and Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) services;

(iv) Enviconmental services business: conunercial cleaning, public
cleansing, towaship cleaning, extemal fagade cleaning, pest control
services, waste collection services, pneumatic waste conveyance systetns
and MARPOL waste collection! treatment/ recyeling services;

Facilities and auxiliary services business: integrated facilities

management, bus stop maintenance, custodian services, office wuopue e

services and event SUppPart St MR, C e managaTIent e s gl TR

management echnologies o
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(b)

Vi)

(vii)

Eavironmental and sustainability consultancy secvices; and

all other businesses of the Awalgamated Company excluding the
Demerged Undertaking,

*‘Demerged Businesses™ viz,,

Q1]

()

(i)

Municipal solid waste business (“MSW Business™): the business of
sorting, segregatiag, undenaking material recovery, collecuon, storage,
shredding, baling, crushing, crushing, loading, unloadiag transporting,
processing and disposing of solid waste as an operator of a facility in teras
of the Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016, issued under the
Eavironment {Protection) Act, 19386:

Waste to energy business (“WTE Business”): the business of generating
electricity trom solid waste; and

*Middle East Business™: all businesses of the Demerged Subsidiaties in
Owan, Saudi Arabia and United Arab Emirates.

Sunilacly, the Amalgamated Company and/ or its subsidiaties currently have operations in
vanious different junisdictions, including:

(a)
(b)
()
(d)

)
&

(ndia;

Bangladesh;

Indonesia;

Malaysia

Oman;

Philippines;

Saudi Arabia;

Singapore;

The United Arab Emirates;

The Uaited States of America; and

Tanzania.

Each of thesc businesses and jurisdictions have different market dynamics which require
dilferentiated strategies and directions to grow and deliver value. The proposed Scheme
would be in the best interest of the Companies and their cespective shareholders,
employees, creditors and other stakeholders as the proposed restructuring pursuant to this
Scherae is expected, inter alia, to result in the following benefits:

Benefits of the Demerger

The prolile. operations, management nsk and nefum associnted with the Dene

Buuinesses ate distinet tronn thows of the, Retped Bavess and the Demofiege”
wipuld theretore leed to shasper loguw an thie teo s of husinesses (i &
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2

(b}

()

(d)

Segregation of the Retained Business from the Demerged Businesses will allow
sunplification of the organization, better resource allocation and an independent
tocus on the Dewerged Business and the Retained Business by the managements
of the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company vespectively,

Syaergies in operational processes and creation of efficiencies by reducing titme to
teacket and benefitting customers as well as optitnization of operations and capical
expendituce.

The growth and expansion of the Demerged Business would require a
differentiated steategy aligned to its industry specific risks, macket dynamics and
growth trajectory. The Demerged Business has now reached a wmeaaingful scate
and will be able to benefit by becoming an independently focused company.

Benefits of the Amalgamation

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

lategration of the Amalgamated Company and the Amalgamating Company's
business activities under a single entity through the amalgamation will result drncer
alie ia focused management atention, operational efficiencies, revenue and cost
syaergies, optinization of capital, and simplitication of averlapping infeastructure.

The amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with the Amalgamacted
Compaay would bring about synergy of operations and benefit of scale, and also
result in the legal and regulatory compliance requiremnents of both the entities being
unified and streanlined.

Consolidates the managerial expertise of the Amalgamating Company and the
Amalgamated Company thereby giving additional steength to the operations and
management of the Amalgamated Company cesulting in expansion of the
cotabined business.

Results in the reduction of and/ or optimization ia overhead costs, administeative,
managerial and other expenditure, operational cationalization, organizational
efficiency and optimnal utlisation of various resources.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided tinto following parts:

(a)

®)

(©

@

T

Part A deals with the definitions, interpretation and share capital steucture of the
Cowmpanies;

Pact B deals with the Amalgamation of the Amalgamating Comnpany with and into
the Amnalgamated Company, the consequent dissolution, without windiag up, of
the Amalgamating Company and mateers incidental thereto,; and

Part C deals with transfer and vesting of the Demerged Uadertaking (as defined
heremaficr) from the Demerged Company iato the Resulting Company and matters
tncidental theeeto,

Part D deals with the general tenms and conditions applicable to the Scheme.

5 Scheme also pravides {or sarmus other manter s conweguen1ia’, incidental or othe s i

inteeraily connected therew:th
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TREATMENT OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSES OF INCOME TAX ACT,
1961

The provisions of this Scheme have been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating
to “Amalgamation™ aad “Demerger” as defined under section 2(1B) and 2(19A.4) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, respectively. [f, at a later date, any of the tenns or provisions of the
Schee are found ot interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of section 2(t B) and
2(19AA) of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961, including as a result of an amendment of Applicable
Law or enactiment of new legislation or any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of
section 2(1 B) and 2(19AA) of the lacome Tax Act, 1961, or a corresponding provisions of
any amended or newly enacted Applicable Law, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand
modified to the extent detenmined aecessary to comply with section 2( [ B) and 2(19AA) of
the lncome Tax Act, 1961. Such modifications, if required o be made will, however, not
affect the other provisions {including those celating to accounting treatment) of the Schene.

DEFINITIONS

la this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the context of its use, capitalized tenns (i.e. tenms
used in form where the first letter is capitalized) shall have the meanings respectively
assigned against them in this Clause 5.2

(a) “Act" means the Cowmpanies Act, 2013, the cules and/ or cegulations made
thereunder and shall include any statutory wodilication(s) or ce-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force;

(b) “Amalgamating Company Employees” shall have the meaning ascribed to the
tenn in Clause 15.1 in Paret B of this Scheme;

(©) “Amaigamating Company Funds” shall have the meaniag ascnibed ta the tenn in
Clause 13.3 in Part B of this Scheme;

(d) “Applicable Law(s)" means (i) any applicable statute, enactment, law, bye-laws,
regulation, ordinaace, tule, judgnent, order, decree, policy, clearance, approval,
directive, guideline, press notes, requirement of any applicable couatry and/ or
Junisdiction; (i) writ, injunction, directions, directives, judgement, arbitral award,
decree, orders, scheme or approvals of, or agreements with, any Governmental
Authonity, in each case haviag the force of law, aad that is binding or applicable o
a person;

(e} ‘Appointed Date™ means the same date as the Effective Date;

(6 “Assets™ shall mean assets or properties of every kind, nature, character and
description (whether inovable, movable, tangible, intangible, absolute, accrued,
fixed or otherwise) as operated, hired, renced, owned, licensed ot leased by a person
or entity or body corporate from time to time, including Movable Assets,
[mmovable Assets, cash, cash equivalents, receivables, secunties, accounts and
aote receivables, loans and advances, real estate, plaat, tmachinery and equipment,
intcllectual peoperty, raw materials, inventory, fumiture, fixwres aad iasurance,
and properties;

Bowed™ in tespect of a Campany means the boord of director of such Company

w1 office 2 the relevant ime, and shal] i relation 10 any waner plan oclnigia. Foke

cannnitice {il any) duly constingtéd and authunced by the buard of dicoctons S
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@)
Q)

(k)

U

(m})

(n)

(0)

()

respect to such mattter,

“Books and Records™ means without limttation, all books. reconds, files, papers,
engincering and process nfonuation, software licenses (whether propnietary or
othenwise), test reports, drawings, maauals, datsbases including databases for
procureinent, commercial and management, catalogues, quotations, lists of present
and fonner customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer
wfonnation, and all other books and records, whethier ia physical or electronic
foan;

“CIN" means Corporate [dentity Nuwmber;

“Companies” means the Amalgamated Cowpany/Demerged Compaay, the
Awmalgamating Company and the Resulting Company collectively, and
“Company” shall mean any one ot them as the context may require;

“Commercial Rights and Decuments” means withaut limitation, all concession
agreements, requests for quotations/ proposals (whether subitted or issued), bids,
contracts, agresimnents, purchase orders/ service orders, operation and maintenance
contracts, memoranda of understanding undertukings/ agreements, tenders,
policics (including 1anff policies), expressions of iatevest, letters of intent, lease/
license agreements, agreement with customers, service providers, other
arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, trade union agreements,
collective bargzainiag schemes, and other instrumients of whatsoever namee and
descaiption, whether vested or poteatial and weitten, oral or otherwise and all rights,
title, interests, assurances, claims and benefits thereuader, and pre-qualifications,
bid accepiances, all other cights, privileges, benefits, libetties and advantages
{including but not limuted to vights to use and avail govds and/or services);

“Detnerged Business” or “Demerged Business{¢s)” means the MSW Business,
WTF Rusiness and Middle East Business;

*Demerged Company ESOPs™ shall mean alt ESOPs issued under the (i) 2019
Share Qption Plan For Key Employees Of Ramky Eaviro Engineers Limited And
lts Subsidiaries; and (ii) 2019 Share Option Plan For Key Employees Of Rawky
Enaviro Engineers Lumited [, and outstaading as on the Effective Date;

“Demerged Liabilities™ shall have the weaning ascribed to the tean in Clause 26.2
in Pact C of this Schene;

“Demerged Subsidiaries™ means the subsidianies of the Demerged Company
engaged in the Demerged Business, which as on the date whea this Schemne was
approved by the Boards of the Companies are the entities listed in SCHEDULE [;

“Demerged Undertaking™ means the Demerged Business as a going conoerm
comprising all its employees and the following nights, obligations, Assets, and
Liabilities, in each case to the extent pertaining to the Danerged Business(es) as
on the Appointed Date (including but aot linuted to units of the Dewmerged
Company engaged in the Demerged Business in Shimoga, Belgawmn and Delhi Jal
Board):

" all of the Demerged Company's interests in the immovable properties
which are listed iec SCHEDULE M1 including each of the following

relation to each such property: sights thereto i.e. cight of way, land 1t

with the hukfings ond srudiores sandics thoavon (whether [l
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leasehold, leave and licensed, right of way, tenamcies or
otherwisehncluding buildings, warehouses, offices, suctures, roads,
drains and culverts, civil works, foundations tar civil works, benefits of
any rental agreement for use of premises, share of any joint assets cte. and
all docwaeats (including panchnamas, declarations, receipts) of title, rights
and easements in relation thereto and all cights, covenaats, continuing
nghts, title and interest, benefits and interests of cental agreements tor lease
or license or other rights to use of premises, in conaection with the said
unmovable properties;

all Assets, as are movable ta nature and pertaining to and in velation to the
Demerged Business, whether present ot futuee or contingent, tangible or
intangible, whether recorded in the books or not or in pussession ot not,
corporeal or mcorporeal, in each case, wherever situated ({includiag plaat
and machinery, capital wark in progress, funituce, fixtures, fixed assets,
appliances, accessories, office equipment, conununication tacilities,
installations, vehicles, inventones, stock in trade, tools and plants),
investment of all kinds (includiag but aot limited o0 equity shaves,
preference shares, optionally convertible debentures, compulsorily
convertible debentures and other securities ia subsidiaries, joint ventures
in or outside India, current assets, eamest monies and suadry debtors,
prepaid expenses, bills of exchange, promissory notes, outstanding loans
and advances (specifically including but not lunited the advance of [INR
2,50,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Huadred aad Fifty Crores) exeended to
Rainky Integrated Towaship Lunited), recoverable ia cash or in kind or for
value to be received, receivables, funds (including Dewerged Underaking
Employee Fuads), cash and bank balances and deposits {excluding such
inter-corporate deposits as may be mucwally agreed among the Boaeds of
the Demerged Company and Resulting Company), including accrued
interest thereto with govemment, semi-government, local and other
authorities and bodies, banks, customers and other persons. interest
accrued thereon, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of all agreements,
bonds or pass through certificates, the benefits of any insurances, bank
guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit;

all perits, licenses, graats (inctuding govenunent grants aghts to receive
subsidies), Penmissions, approvals, authonsations, clearances, consents
(including environment consents and pertits), registrations, entitiements,
credits, certificates, awards, sanctions, privileges, wmemberships,
allonments, quotas, no objection certificates, exemptions;

all concession agreements, bids, contracts, agreements, purchase orders/
service orders, operation and maintenance contracts, wmemoranda of
understanding’ uedertakings/ agreements, tenders, canff policies,
expressions of interest, letters of intent, lease/ license agreements,
agreement with customers, service providers, other amrangements,
undertakungs, deeds, bonds, schewnes, trade union agreements, collective
bargainiag schemes, and other instruments of whatsoever nature and
description, whether vested or potential and written, otal or otherwise and
all rights, tide, intetests, assurances, ¢lawns and benefits thereunder, and
pre-qualifications, bid acceptances;

all insuraace policies, to the extent pertainiag to the Dowmerved Business.s

1 e

all intellectual property riglits twdiettiez owacd, liceased or otherwise ﬁu ¥
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(vii)

(viii)

()

(x)
(xi)

(RATN

It ishereby claritied that where st vt o

whether cegistered or unce@istered), applicauons (including hardware,
software, licenses, parameterisation and scripts), registeations, licenses,
goodwill, wademarks, trade and business names, cights in logos, wade
dress, geographical indication, service marks, copyaghts, moral cights and
related rights, patents, project designs, tnarketing intangibles, special
staus, domain names, designs, teade secrets, research and swdies,
technical know-how, confidential information and other benefits (in each
case tncluding the benefit of any applications made tor the same) and all
such rights of whatsoever description and natuce, aad whether subsisting
now of \n the future, having equivalent ot similac effect to the rights
referred to above;

all rights to use and avail telephones, telexes, facsitile, ewmail, iatanet,
leased line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other
services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or
other interests held i trusts, privileges and all other nghts, liberties and
advantages;

all Tax Assets and Credits;

all bhooks, vecords. files, papers, engineering and procvess infonnation,
software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), test ceports,
drawings, wmanuals, databases including databases for procurement,
commercial and management, catalogues, quotations, lists of present and
fonner customers and suppliers including service providers, other
custowner infornnation, and all other boaks and records, whether in physical
ot electronic fonu;

all Demerged Liabilities;

all legal proceediags, wncluding quasi-judicial, aebiteal and other
proceedings, of whatsoever nature (specifically including but not limited
to (a) Arbitration proceedings between Demerged Company and Ajmer
Municipal Corporation, Ajmer, Rajasthan arising out of concession
agreement dated September 24, 2008 where claims have been made by
Demerged Company aad proceedings were concluded and arbiteal award
dated July 07, 20(8 was passed; (b) Arbitration proceedings between
Demerged Company and Awuraagabad Muaicipal Corporation,
Aurangabad, Maharashtea arising out of concession agreement dated
October 3, 2008 where claims have been made by Dererged Company
and proceedings were concluded and arbiteal award dated July G3, 2018
was pronounced; (¢) Atbitcation proceediag between Demerged Company
and Jamnu & Kashmir Economic Reoconsteuction Agency (J&K FERA) in
celation to the disputes ansing frora and out of the agreement dated
November 26, 2008 and initiated vide arbitcation aotice dated August 31,
2017 issued by Demerged Company; (d) Arditration proceeding between
Demerged Company and Market Management Comnuttee, Koyambedu in
celation to the disputes ansing fromn and out of the agreement dated
November 4, 2009 and initiated vide arbitration aotice dated August 14,
2018 ssued by Demerged Company), and

All pertnanent and temporary emgloyees engaged by Demerged Campany
at various locations (“Demerged Uadertaking Empioyees™).

o 10 whellier any speeitic i
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whether tangible ov intangible, or liability or contract or employee or item or watter
or thing pertaing to or does not pertain to the Dawerged Undertaking, the same
shall be decided mutuslly by the Boards of the Demerved Company and the
Resulting Company.

{qQ) “Demerged Undertaking Employees™ shall have the meaniag ascribed o the
tenn 1 Clause 3. 1{p}xii) of this Scheme;

(v) “Demerged Undertaking Employee Fuads™ shall have the meaning ascribed to
the term in Clause 30.3 in Part C of this Schewe;

(s) “Effective Date” means the date on which the last of the conditions and watters
refeired o in Clause 43 have occurred or have been fulfilled, obtained or waived,
as applicable, in accordance with that Clause. References in this Scheme to date of
cowmiag into effect of the Scheme® or “effectiveness of the Scheme® shall be
construed accordingly:

(t) “Encumbraace" ot to “Encumber", along with the related tertn “Encumbered™
means without limitation (i) any options, ¢laim, pre-etaptive daglht, easement,
lunitation, atachinent, restraint, mortgage, charge {whether fixed or tloating),
pledge, lien, hypothecation, assigmunent, deed of lrust, title retention, secucity
iterest or other encumbrance or interest of any kind secuviag, or confemring any
priority of paytaent in cespect of any obligation of any person, including any right
graated by a teansaction which, in legal tenws, is aot the granting of secuvity but
which has an economic or financial effect similac ¢o the granting of securicy under
Applicable Law, including aay option or right of pre-ewmption, public cght,
cotmnon right, easement rights, any attachiaent, cestriction on use, traasfer, receipt
of income or exercise of any other atrribute of ownership, nght of set-off and/ or
any other interest held by a third pacty: (if) any votiag agreement, conditional sale
contracts, interest, aption, nght of fiest offer of transfter cestniction; (iti) any adverse
clatm as to title, possession or use; and/ or (iv) any agreement, conditional or
otherwise, to create any of the foregoing;

{(u}  “ESOPs" shall mean employee stock aptions issued in accordance with Applicable
Law.

(v)  “Gavernmental Authority™ means any supra-natioaal, national, state, provingial,
local or similac governmental, statutory, regulatory, administrative authority,
agency, comumission, legislative body, departinental or public body or authority,
board, branch, tnbuaal ov ¢ouct or other entity authorized to wmake laws, cules,
regulations, standards, requirements, procedures ot to pass divections or orders, in
each case having the force of law, or any non-govermmnental regulatory or
adwministrative authority, body or other organization to the exteat that the rules,
regulations and standacds, requirements, procedures or orders of such authority,
body or other organization have the force of law, ar any stock exchange of India or
any other country including the Registrar of Cowpanies, Regional Director,
Competition Comnwission of [ndia, Reserve Bank of India, National Company Law
Tribunal, and such other sectoral regulators or authorities as may be applicable;

(w)  “GST" means goods and services tax and shall include any staetory modifications,
re-enactments or amendments thereof and the rules made thereunder, for the time
being in force;

te) Immovable Assets” means 11098 ar e all immovable properties ol b |
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rights, title and interest thereto (.e. right of way, land together with the buildiags
and structures standing thereon (whether freehold, leasehold, leave and licensed,
tenancies or otherwise) includiag buildings, warehouses, offices, stuctures, roads,
drains and culverts, civil works, foundations for civil works, benefits of any rental
agresment tor use of premises, share of any joint assets, accretions and
appuctenances ei¢. and all documents (iacluding panchnamas, declarations,
receipts) of title, vights aud easements in celation thereto and all rights, covenants,
continuing cights, title and interest, benefits and interests of rencal agreements for
lease oc license ot other vights to use of premises, in connection with the said
inmovable properties;

“ladian Accounting Standards™ means the applicable accountiag principles as
prescribed under the Companies (ladian Accouating Standards) Rules, 2013 and
shall include any statutory modifications, ve-enactments or amendments thereof;

“IP Rights" means without limitation, all intetlectual property rights (whether
owned, licensed or otherwise and whether registered or uneegistered), applications
(including hardware, software, licenses, puarameterisation and  secipts),
registcations, licenses, goodwill, teademarks, trade and business names, eights in
logos, trade dress, geagraphical indication, service marks, copyrights, woral rights
and related nights, patents, project designs, marketing intaagibles, special status,
domain nawmes, designs, teade secrets, research and studies, techaical knowhow,
confidential information aad other beanefits (in each case including the benefit of
any applications made for the same) and all such rights of whatsoever desenption
and nature, and whether subsisting now or in the future, having equivaleat or
sumtlar effect to the rights referred to above;

“IT Act” weans the lacome Tax Act, 1961 and shall include any statutory
wmodifications, re-enactinents or amendwments thereof and the cules made
thereunder, tor the tune betng in force;

“Liabilities” means all debts (secured and unsecured), liabilities (including
contingent labilities, and obligations under any Penmissions or schemes),
guarantees, duties, taxes, obligations and undertakings of every kind or nawure, of
any description whatsoever whether present or future, and howsoever raised ot
incurred or utilized along with any Encumabrance thereon;

“Movable Assets™ means without [imitation, all assets as are movable in nature,
whether present ot future ar contingent, tangible or intangible, whether recorded in
the books or not or in possession or aot, cocporeal or incorporeal, in each case,
wherever situated (including plant and machinery, capital work in progress,
furnitwee, fixtures, €ixed assets, appliances, accessories, office equipment,
comraunication facilities, iastallations, vehicles, inventonies, stock a trade, tools
and plants), current assets, ¢amest monies and sundry debtors, prepaid expenses,
bills of exchaage, promissory aotes, outstanding loans and advances , recoverable
in cash or in kind ot for value to be received, ceceivables, funds (including the
Newmerged Undertaking Ewmployee Funds wherever applicable), cash and bank
balances and deposits, including accrued interest thereto with governiment, setai-
govermaent, local and other authorities and bodies, banks, customers and other
persons, iaterest accrued thereon, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of all
agreements, bonds or pass through certificates, the benefits of any insurances, bank
guarantees, perfonnance guarantees and letters of credit;
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National Company [aw Appellate Tabunal as constituted under the Act;

“Permissions™ means without limitation, all pennits, licenses, graats (including
govermment grants nghts to receive subsidies), pennissions, approvals,
authorisations, clearances, consents (including enviconment consents and permits),
registeations, entitlements, cvedits, certiticates, awaeds, sanctions, privileges,
wmemberships, allounents, guotas, no objection certificates, exemptions;

“Proceedings™ means without limitadon all legal proceedings, including writ
petition, review petition, special leave petition, application/ motion, suit, appeal,
legal, taxation, quasi-judicial, arbitral and other proceedings, ot whatsoever aatuee
(including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authocity or tribunal);

“Record Date™ means a date mutvally agreed between the Board of the Dewmerged
Cowmpany and the Board of the Resulting Company for the purpose of detennining
the shareholders of the Demerged Company to whom compulsorily convertible
preference shares of the Resulting Company would be issued and allotted pursuant
to the Demerger in accordance with Clause 37 of this Scheme;

“Registrar of Companies™ 7 “RoC” means the Registear of Companies at
Hyderabad, Telangana, ladia;

“*Resulting Company ESOPs™ shall mean ESGOPs that the Resulting Compaay
mnay issue to one or more holders of Demerged Company ESOPs by suitably
applyiag the Share Entitlement Ratio to the auwber of Demerged Company ESOPs
lield by thew and conversion ratio thereof.

“Rupeces™ or “Rs™ ot “INR™ means [ndian tupees, being the lawful currency of
Republic of {ndiy;

“Scheme” or “the Scheme™ or “this Scheme” means this composite scheme of
arrangement ia its preseat fonm as submitted to NCLT or this Scheme with such
modification(s), if any, made in accordance with the peovisions hereof;

“Share Eatitlement Ratio™ shall have the meaning ascabed to the term in Clause
36.1 ia Part C of dhis Schewme;

“Tax™ or “Taxes" means and includes any tax, whether dicect or indirect, including
income tax (iacludiag withholding tax, dividend distribution tax), GST, excise
duty, ceatral sales tax, service tax, self-assessment tax, regular tax, minimem
alternate tax, securities transaction tax, tax collected at source, itposts, octrot,
local body tax and customs duty, duties, charges, fees, levies (including
equalization levy), surcharge, cess ot other similar assessments by or payable to
Govemmental Authority, iacluding in celation to (1) incowe, services, gross
receipts, premium, wnnovable property, movable property, assets, profession,
entry, capital gains, municipal, interest, expenditure, waports, wealth, gift, sales,
use, transfer, licensing, withholding, employment, payroll and franchise taxes; and
(ii) any latetest, fines, penaltics, assesswments or additions 0 Tax resulting from,
attnbutable to or incurred in connection with any Proceedings or late payments in
respect thereof;

“Tax Assets and Credits™ means all Tax related assets/credits, whether foteign,
cenieat, atate ur tocal, mehidig hut oyt lunsdcd 1 gowds and wnvaces fax inpug
credits, seesce tan mpul civdins, sl & 2xpon henelits, vialue addds

Wiargs<

O
- L‘m



6.1

6.3

64

605

6.7

6.8

sales tax! excise/ entry tax credis or set-off, wncome tax holiday’ miainum
alternative tax, Taxes withheld/ paid wa a toreign country, deferred tax assets/
liabilities, accumulated losses under the (T Act and allowance tor unabsorbed
depreciation under the IT Act, losses brought forward aad unabsorbed depreciation
as per the books of account, tax cefunds (exctuding corporate tax refuads), aghes
of any claitn aot made in respect of any ectund of Tax including any erroneous or
excess payment thereot made and any interest thereon, with regard to any
Applicable Law, tax deferrals, exemptions or other benefits (in each ¢ase including
the benefit of any applications made for the same), aight to deduction for the
cesidual period, i.e., for the period remaining as on the Appointed Date out of the
total prriod for which the deduction ts available under Applicable Law, i€ sny;

(00) “Tax Laws" wean all the Applicable Law dealing with Taxes including but aot
lunited 10 any Tax liability under the IT Act, Custotmns Act 1962, Centrsl Excise
Act, 1944, Goods aad Services Tax Act, 2017, Staie Value Added Tax laws,
Central Sales Tax Act, (956 and/or other Applicable Law dealing with Taxes/
duties/ levies of similae natuee;

{pp) “TDS" means tax deductible at source, i accordance with the provisions of the 1T
Act,

INTERPRETATION

All terms and words used but not defined in this Scheme shall, ualess repugnant or conteary
to the context or meaning theveof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act,
(T Act and other Applicable Law, aules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be or any
statutory modification or re-enactinent thereof for the tine being in force.

References to clauses, vecitals and schedules, ualess otherwise provided, are to clauses,
recitals and schedules of and to this Schetne.

The headings hereia shall aot affect the consiauction of this Schieme.

Unless the context atherwise requires, ceference to any law or to any provision thereof shall
include references to (i) any such law or to any provision thereof as it may, after the dace
hereof, from time to time, be amended, supplemented or ce-cnacted; (ii) aay law or aay
provision which replaces it, aad any reference to a statutory provision shall include any
subordinate legislation made from time to time uader that provision; (iit) all subordinate
legislation made (com time to time under that provision (whether ot not anended, modified,
te-enacted oc consolidated); and (iv) all stanutory instrurments ot orders made pursuaat to a
statutory provision.

The singular shall include the plural and vice versa; and references to one gender iaclude
all geaders.

Reference to days, months and years are 0 calendar days, calendar months and calendar
years respectively.

Any ceference ta ‘weiting’ shall include e-mails, priatiag, typing, lithography and other
means of repreducing words ia visible fonu.

Aay phrase introduced by the tenus “including”, “include™, “in particular™ or aay sinilac
expiession skall be corstrued ns Mustrative, withows imeanor ang sastl not Lonit the 3ense
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References to a person include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether incorporated),
govermment, state or agency of a state or any joint venture, assoctation, parnership, works
couacil or employee representatives body (whether or not having separate legal
personality).

All reterences to Demerged Company in the Schame shall mean a ceference to Re
Sustainability Lunited after the Amalgamation has beea deemed to be given effect to in
accordance with Part B of this Scheme.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

On the Effective Date, the Scheme shall come into force and shall becore operative in the
sequence and in the order wmentioned hereunder but shall be deemed to have become
effective on the Appointed Date:

(a) First, Pact B of the Scheme, which provides for the Amalgamation shall be

operative; and

®) Thereafter and ivnediately afecr Pact B of the Scheme has becowe operative, Part
C of the Scheme, which provides for the Demerger (upon Part B of the Schewe
beconing effective), shall become operative.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authonzed share capital of the Amalgamated Company as on November 27, 2023 is as
uader:

S. Class of Security Number of Face Authorised Share
Ne. Securities Value Capital

L. Class A Equity Shares 20,25,22,450( (NR 10| MNR 2,02,52,24,500

2. Class B Equity Shares 100 NR 10 ANR 1,000

3. Class A Preterence Shares 1.00,000| RNR 100 NR 1,00,00,000

4, Optionally Convertible 13,434,000 INR 1S (NR 2,61,60,000
Redeemable Preterence
Shares (“OCRPS™)

5. Redeewnable Preference 71,145 INR 100 INR 7(,14,500
Shares

Total INR 2,06,25,00,000

The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Amalgamated Company as on
November 27, 2023 is as under:

S. Class of Secueities Number of Face Paid up Share
No. Securities Value Capital
L. Class A Equity Shaves 42.29,575 INR 10 Rs. 422,95.750
i Class B Equity Shaces 00| MmNRIC Rs. 1000
3. QCRPS 2,28,563| {NR IS Rs. 34,283,445
Cotal Rs. 4,57,25,195

The authorized share capital of the Amalgamating Company as on November 27, 2023
85 under:
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S. Class of Security Number of Face Authorised Share_|
No, Securities Value Capital
L Equity Shares 50.00,000] (NR 10| INR 35,00,00,000

The issued. subscnbed and paid up share capital of the Amalgamating Company as on
November 27, 2023 is as under:

S. Class of Secwrity Number of Face Paid up Share
No. Securities Value Capital
l. Equity Shares 49,90,000 INR 10 INR 4,99,00,000
Total INR 4,99,00,000

The authorized share capital of the Resulting Company as on November 27, 2023 is as

uader:
S. Class of Security Number of Face Authorised Share
No. Shares Value Capital
L. Equity Shares 1,00,000 10 10,00,000

The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company as on November

27, 2023 is as under:

S. Class and Number of Securities Paid up Share
No, Capital
l. 1,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each INR 10,000

16
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THE A\!ALGAM-\TFD COMPANY
TRANSFER AND VESTING

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and with effeet from the Appointed Date, and
subjece to the provisions of this Schewme and Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other
applicable provisions of the Act, Section 72A of the (T Act and Applicable Law, if aay, the
Amalgamating Company shall stand amalgamated nto and with the Amalgamated
Company and all of the Amalgamating Company's Assets, Liabilities, Pennissions,
Comsmnercial Rights and Documents, [P Rights, Tax Assets and Credits, Book and Records,
Proceedings, aghts and obligations shall be and stand transferred to and vested in or be
deemied 0 be transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company. En the case of Assets
and Liabilitics, they shall stand transferved 10 the Amalgamated Company at the values
appeaniag ta the boaks of accouats of the Amalgamating Company immediately betore the
amalgamation, as a going concern, in tenns of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, without any
fucther act, instrument, deed, watter or thing for the consideration provided in Clause 20.1,
50 as to beeome, the Assets and Liabilities ot the Amalgamated Company by virtue of the
Scheme and tn the manaer set out below.

TRANSFER OF ASSETS

In cespect of such of the Movable Assets or Assets that are otherwise capable ot tansfer by
manual or constructive delivery and: ar by novation and/ ot by endorsement and/or delivery
and/ or by the operation of law pursvant to the NCLT sanction, the same shall stand
transferred by the Amalgamating Company to the Amalgamated Company pursuant o the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section 2(1B) of the (T Act and all other
applicable provisions of Applicable Law, if any, without requiring any deed or instrument
of conveyaace for transfer of the sawe, and shall become the property of the Amalgamated
Compaay absolutely aad forever, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to
Encumbrances in favour ot banks and/ or financial insticutions, upon the Schemne becoming
effective, with effect from the Appointed Date.

All debts, actionable ¢laims, eamest monies, receivables, bills, credits, loans, advaaces and
deposits (including deposits with any Govermmental Authonties oc any other bodies and/
ar customers or any other person), whether recoverable in cash or in kind or foc value to be
received, shall stand teansferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company without any
aotice ot other intimation to aay third person in pursuance of the provisions of Sections
230 t0 232 of the Act and all ather applicable provisions of Applicable Law to the ead and
intent that the right of the Amalgamating Company to vecover ot cealize the same, stands
transferred to the Amalgamated Company, and that appropriate entaies should be passed in
their respective books to record the aforesaid chaage, without any notice or other intimation
t0 such debtors, depositors ot persons as the case imay be. The Amalgawated Company
may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged, give aotice wn such forn as it may
dexn it and proper, to such person, as the case may be, that the aforementioned stand
transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company and be paid ot made good or held
on accouat of the Armalgamated Company as the person entitied thereto.

All the nghts, title, interest, remedies, claims, rights of actions and authorities of the
Amalgamating Company, in any hinnovable Assets, whether or not included in the books
of the Amalgumating Cowmpany, shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law, without any further act or deed
or instrument, be teaasferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been teansterred to or

~ the Amalyatated Comprany on the ammmieree and coaditiens The .
Coetpany sholl upon the NCLY sanctiooii e Mebiaihe ond upon this Schene - iy
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effective, be entitled to exercise all vights and prvileges avtached to the aforesaid
lnunovable Assets and shall be liable to pay the ground rent and taxes and fulfil all
obligations in relation to or applicable to such lmmovable Assets. Upon this Scheme
becoming effective, the title to such lrunovable Assets shall be deemed to have been
mutated and recogaised 95 that of the Amalgamated Company. The Amalgamated
Cowmpany shall subsequeat to this Scheme becomiag eftective be eatitled to the delivery
and possession of all documents oftitle to such limmaovable Assets in this regard. [tis hereby
clavified that ail the vights, title and interest of the Amalgamating Company in any leasehold
properties shall without aay further act, tnstrmnent or deed, be vested in or deewed 1o have
been vested in the Amalgamated Company. [t is cladtied chat the Amalgamated Company
shall be entitled to cagage w such corvespondence and make such applications and such
repeesentations as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation snd/or
substitution. Notwithstandiag whether or aot the Amalgamated Company makes such
application and representation, and whether such applications or representations may be
pending, the transfer and absolute conveyance of all lnumovable Assets of the
Amalgamating Company to the Amalgamated Company shall take effect automatically
upon the effectiveness of this Scheme,

In so far as vacious Tax Assets and Credits, incentives, subsidies, excmptions, cemissions,
reductions, business losses, capital losses, unabsorbed depreciation aad other benefits or
exemptions or privileges enjoyed, graated by any Govenunental Authority or by any other
person, of availed of by the Amalgamating Company, shall, under the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law,
without any €ucther act, instrumnent or deed, vest with and shall be available o the
Aanalgamated Company on the same tertas and conditions as if they had been allotted and/
or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Aumalgamated Compaay to the end and
intent that the night of the Amalgamating Compaay to recover or realize them, stand
transferved to the Amalgamated Company and that appropriate entaies should be passed in
their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

Lhe beaefit of all balance relating to Taxes under the Tax Laws being balance pertaining
to the Amalgamating Compaany, if aay, shall stand vested in the Amalgamared Company
as if the ansaction giving vise to the said balance or ¢redit was a transaction camed out by
the Amalgamated Company. The Liabilities which were wmet by the Amalgamating
Compaay till the Effective Date, which shall be construed to have met by the Amaltgamated
Cowmpany as if the transaction giving cise to the said Liability was a transaction carried out
by Amalgamated Company.

Notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Amalgamating Company's business ovcurs
automatically by virtue of this Scheme, it is clarified that in order o ensure (i)
itmplementation of the provisions of the Scheme; (it) vaiatenrupred transter of the relevant
Permissions; and (i) continued vesting of the benefits, exemptions availsble to the
Amalgamating Company ia favoue of the Amalgamated Cotmpany, the Amalgamated
Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execute or enter into necessacy discussions
and dotumentation with any Govenunental Authonty or third pacties.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

Upon corming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Liabilities of the Amalgamating Company, whether or not recorded in the books of the
Amalgamating Company, shall, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section 2(1B) and
other celevant provisions of the IT Act, the Act and all other applicable provisions of
Applicable Law, if any without any fucther act, instrument or deed be and stand traastetred

to and vested in and be deemed to have been tamss—mwy to and vested in the Amalgam=i.

£ L7y, and the sawme shall be assumed ¢/ Usd Ml gvuated Compaay to the exteny
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they are outstandwng as on the Effecuve Date 50 as o become the Liabilities of the
Amalgamated Company which it uadertakes to weeet and discharcge. [tshall not be accessary
to obtain the consent of any third party ar other pecson who is a party to any contact or
arvangeinent by virtue of which such Liabilities have anisen, in ovder o give etfect to the
provisions of this Clause I'1.

All borrowings of the Amalgamating Company shall without any further act, insteument or
deed, becomme borrowiangs of the Amalgamated Company, and all cights, powers, duties and
obligations in relation thereto shall stand transferred to and vested in and shall be exercised
by or against the Amalgamated Company 2s if it had incurred such borowings. Thus, with
etfect from the Effective Date, the primary obligation to redeem ot repay such borrowings
pertaining to the Amalgamating Company's busieess shall be that of the Amalgamated
Company.

Save as mentioned in this Scheme, no aother tean or condition of the Liabalaies waasferred
to the Amalgamated Cotpany as part of the Schete is modified by virtue of this Scheme
except to the extent that such atendment is required by necessacy waplication.

Upon the coming o effect of this Schene and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Asmalgamated Company alone shall be liable to perform all obligations in tespect of
Liabilities ransterred from the Amalgamating Company.

ENCUMBRANCES

The wanster and vesting of the Assets comprised in the Amalgamating Company s business
1o and in the Amalgamated Company in tenns of the above shall be subject to the
Encumbrances, if any, atfecting the same as hereinafier provided.

(o so tar as the existing Encumbrances on Assets of the Aualgamating Company are
concemed, such Encumbrances shall contiaue aver those same Assets in respect of the
vaderlying Liabilities cansferred to the Amalgamnated Company pursuant to this Scheme.
Provided that if any of the Assets comprised in the Amalgamating Company's business
which ave being transferred to the Amalgamated Company pursuant to this Schemne have
not been Encumbered in respect of the Liabilities pertaining to the Awmalgamating
Company's business, such Assets shall remain unencumbered and the existing
Eacumbtances referred to above shall not be extended to and shall not operate over such
Assets.

Notwithstanding anything to the coateary in any contract of the Amalgamating Company,
the assumption by the Amalgamated Company of the Amalgamatiag Company's Liabilities
shall not increase the Assets over which the relevant counterparty has an Encumbrance.

la so far as the existing Encumbrances over the Assets of the Amalgamated Compaay or
any part thereof which celate to the Liabilities of the Amalgamated Company prior to the
Effective Date are concemed, such Encumbrances shall, without any further act, instrument
ot deed continue to relate 0 only such Assets and shall not extend or attach to any of the
Assets of the Amalgamating Company which are transferred to the Amalgamated Company
by virtue of the Scheme.

Any teference in any security documents or arrangements (to which the Amalgamating
Campany s a party) to the Amalgamating Company and its Assets, shall be construed as a

reference to the Amalgamated Company and o the Assets of the Amalgamating Company
transferved to the Amalgamated Compaay by virtue of the Scheine.
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Company and the Aunalgamated Company may sater into and execute such other deeds,
instruments, documents and/ or weitings and/ ot do all acts and deeds as may be cequired,
includiag the filing of necessary particulars aad/ or modi€ication(s) of charge, with the
Registrac of Cowmpanies to give formal effect to the provisions of dis Clause 12 and
faregoing Clauses, 1€ cequired.

PERMITS, CONSENTS, LICENSES

Upon the coming tato effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appoiated Date, all
Permissions, concessions, powers of attorney, issued to or granted to ot executed in favour
of the Amalgamating Company and the nights and benefits uader them which ace subsisting
ot in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date, shall, under the provisions of Sections
230 c0 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law, be transferred
to and vested in of deemed to have wansferred to or vested in the Amalgamated Company;
and the concemed concesswning authorities, licensors, grantors of such Pennissions,
concessions and powers of attorney (where the Amalgamated Company so requests)
endorse, where necessary, and record, in accordance with Applicable Law, the name of the
Amalgamated Company as the successor entity, so as to ewmpower and facilitate the
approval and vesting of the Awalgamating Company's business in the Amalgamated
Compaay and continuation of opecations fonming part of the Amalgamating Companys
business in the Amalgamated Company without hindrance, and that such Permissions,
concessions and powers of attomey shall cemain in full force and effect in favour of ar
against the Amalgamated Compaay, as the case may be, and may be enforced as fully and
effectually as if, instead of the Amalgamating Campany, the Amalgamated Comapany had
oniginally been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

Uatil such Penmnissions, concessions and powers of attormey are tansferred, vested,
recorded, effected and/or perfected i the record of the Govermmental Authority, in favour
of the Amalgamated Company, the Awalgamated Cowmpaty shall be deemed to be
authonized to carry on the business in the name and style of the Amalgamatiag Compaay
and uander the relevant Peanissions, concessions and powers of attomey in so far as they
relate to the Rerained Business, as the case may be. Upon coming itwto effect of this Scheme,
the past track record of the Amalgamating Company vis-a-vis the Amalgatating
Cowpanys business shall be deemed ta be the teack record of the Atmalgamated Compaany
for all commercial and regulatory purposes.

BANK ACCOUNTS

On and from the Eftective Date and thereafter, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled
to operate all bank accounts of the Amalgamating Comnpany.

All cheques and other aegotiable instruinents, pay orders, electronic fuad teansters (such as
NEFT, RIGS, etc) received or peesented for encashmeat which are in the nane of the
Aalgamating Corpaay atter the Eftective Date, as applicable, shall be deemed to have
been in the came of the Amalgamated Company and credited ¢ the account of the
Armalgamated Company, tf presented by the Amaigamated Company or received through
electronic transfers and shall be accepted by the relevant bankers and credited to the
accouats of the Amalgamated Company. Sunilarly, the banker of the Amalgamating
Cowmpany shall honour all cheques and other negotiable instruments, pay orders,
instructrions for electronic fund transfers (such as NEFT, RTGS, etc.) issued by the
Amalgamated Cowmpany for payninent prior to the Effective Date. [t is hereby expressly
clarified that any Proceedings by or agaiast the Amalgamating Company in relation to the
cheques and other negotiable insteutnents, pay orders, electeonic fund transfers (such as

NEFT, RTGS, etc.) received or presented “n <pcnatunent which are in the nane e,
SSatpuunng Compony shall be mainited W@ sdRMaBay be, continued by or aim'z'pg\
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the Amalgamated Company after the Effective Date.
STAFC, EMPLOYEES

On the Sclieme becoming eftective, all employees of the Amalgamating Cotnpany
nmedeately prior to the Effective Date (*Amalgamating Company Employces™) shall be
deemed to have become employees of the Amalgamated Company, with effect from the
Effective Date, in the same capacity as they were employed with the Amalgamating
Company, without any break or interruption i their service and with the benefit of
continuity of service, and the¢ tenns and conditions of their employment with the
Asnalgamated Company shall not be less favourable than those applicable to themn with
reference to their employment in the Ainalgamating Company inunediately prior to the
Effective Date and in comwliance with Applicable Law.

The Amalgamated Company agrees that the past service of all the Amalgamatiag Compaay
Ewployees shall be talcen into account for the purpose of any reticement benefits that may
be applicsble to them in the Amalgamating Compaay wnnediately prior 1o coming into
effect of this Schewme and which continue 0 be available to them as employees of the
Amalgamated Company. The Amalgamated Company fucther agrees that for the purpose
of payment of any retrenclunent or redundancy compensation, gratuity or other terminal
benefits, as may be applicable, such past service with the Amalgamating Company shali
also be taken into account and agrees to pay the same as and when payable in compliaance
with Applicable Law.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so far as the provideat fund, grawity fund,
superannuation fund ot any other special fund or trusts, if any, created or existing for the
benefit of the staff and employees of the Amalgamating Company are concemed, the
investinents made in the funds and liabilities which are aunbutable/referable to the
Awaigamating Company Ewmployees (collectively referred to as the “Amalgamating
Company Funds™) shall be teansferred to the similar funds or trusts ¢reated andfor
nominated by the Amalgamated Company and shall be heid for their benefit pursuant to
this Schewme, or at the sole discretion of the Amalgamated Company, maintained as separate
funds or trusts by the Amalgamated Company. Pending the teansfer as aforesaid, the
Amalgamating Compaay Funds may be continued to be deposited in the existing relevant
funds or trusts of the Amalgamating Company. Without prejudice to the aforesaid, the
Board of the Amalgamated Company, if it deems (it and subject to Applicable Laws, shall
be entitled to: (a) retain separate trusts or fuads within the Amalgamated Company for the
erstwhile fund(s) or trusts of the Amalgamating Company; ot (b) tmerge the pre-existing
funds or trusts of the Amalgamating Company with other siwmilar funds or trusts of the
Amalgamated Compaay; ot (¢} provision for the Amalgamating Cornpany Fuads, in any
other manner, as detennined by the Amalgamated Company, subject to Applicable Law.

Further to the transfer of the Amalgamating Cormpaay Funds, for all purposes whatsoever
in celation to the administration or operation of such the Amalgamating Company Funds or
in relation to the obligation to make contaibutions to the Amalgamating Company Funds in
accordance with the provisions thereof as per the tenns provided in the respective trust
deeds, i€ any, all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Amalgamating Company in
celation to the Amalgamating Company's business as on the Effective Date in rvelation to

Arslguranng Conpany Funds shall begoimne those of the Amulzamated Coimpany
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16.1

16.2
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17.2

In relation to any other fund (including any funds set up Ly the govemment for employee
benefits) created or existing for the benefit of the Awmalgamating Compaay Employees, the
Amalgamated Company shall staed substituted for the Amalgamating Company, for all
purposes whatseever, including relating to the obligation to make contabutions to the said
tunds in accordance with the provisions of such schemne, funds, bye laws, ete. in respect of
the Amalgamating Company Employeces.

Upoun the coming into effect of this Scheme, the divectors or key managerial personael of
the Amalgamating Company will not become directors or key managerial personnel of the
Awmalgamated Company unless and except 10 the exteat the Board of the Amalgamated
Company may specifically decide. [t is clacified that this Schewe will not affect any
directorship or key managenial position of a person who s already a divector / or key
managerial personnel in the Amalgamated Company as of the Effective Date, if any.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, i€ any Proccediags, by or against the
Asmalgamating Compaay, whether pending on the Effective Date or which may arise or be
instituted any time thereafter shall not abate or be discontinued ot in any way be
prejudicially affected by reason of or by arything contained in this Scheme, but the said
Proceedings shall be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Awmalgamated
Company, as the case may be, after the Etfective Date, in the same manner and to the sare
extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Amalgamating Company as (f this Scheme had not been made.

All Proceedings initiated by or against the Amalgamating Company, as applicable, reterred
(o above shall staad transferred to the name of the Amalgamated Company on aad after the
Appoiated Date and the same shall be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Amalgamated Company to the exclusion of the Amalgarnating Cowmpany. The
Amalgamated Company shall be eutitled to make all celevant applications for itself and
also on behalf of the Amalgamating Company {wherever required).

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, EVLC.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the other provisions of this Scheme,
all [P Rights, Comunercial Rights and Documents to which the Amalgamating Company is
a pary or to the benefit of which the Amalgamating Company is eligible and which is
subsistiag or having effect on the Effective Date, shall without any (utther act, instrument
or deed, continue in full force and effect against or in favour of the Amalgamated Company
and way be enforced by or against the Amalgamated Company as fully and effectually as
if, instead of the Awalgamating Company, the Amalgamated Corapany had been a party
thereto. [t shall not be necessary to abtain the consent of any thied party or other person
who is a paety to any such IP Rights, Commercial Rights and Docuients to give effect to
the provisions of this Clause 1 7 of the Scheme.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that
the vesting of the Amalgamating Company's business occues by virwue of the Scheme itself,
the Amalgamated Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme,
if required under any Applicable Law or at its sole discretion enter into and/ ot issue and/
or execute deeds, wnitings or confinnations ot enter into any tapariite arrangements,
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173  The Amalgamated Compaay shall be deemed to he authorised to execute any such deeds,
writings or confinnations on behalf of the Amalgamating Company and to implement or
carry out all tonmalities required to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme,

174  On aad from the Effectve Date, and thereafter, the Amalgamated Company shall be
eatitled to complete and enforee all Commercial Rights and Documents and transactions in
the aawe of the Amalgamating Company in 5o far as may be aecessary, until the transfer
of nghts and obligations of the Awmalgamating Company to the Amalgamated Company
under this Scheme has been given effect to under such Comenercial Rights and Documents
and such ransactions.

175  Any nter-se contracts between the Amalgamating Company (on the one hand) and the
Amalgamated Company (on the other hand) shall stand cancelled and cease to operate upon
the effectiveness of this Scheme.

176  On and from the date of effectiveness of this Scheme, the Amalgamated Company shall
have access to and benefit of Books and Records to which the Amalgamating Company has
access and of which the Amalgamating Compauy has the benefic,

18. VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions, if any, of the Amalgamating
Corapany which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid
and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of the Amalgamated Company.

19, TAXATION MATTERS

19.1  The Amalgamation is a tax-aeutral amalgamation in aceordance with Section 2( [B) of the
(T Act and other Applicable Law. With effect from the Appoiated Date and upon the
Schewme becoming effective, all Taxes receivable/payable by the Amalgamating Company,
ncluding all ov any Tax Assets and Credits /claims/tax losses /unabsorbed depreciation
relatiag thereto shall be treated as the assetliability or Tax Assets and Credits ¢laims/tax
losses /unabsorbed depreciation, as the case may be, of the Amalgamated Company. It is
also clarified that the Amalgamated Company shall have the right to claim Tax Assets and
Creduits and/or adjustments relating to the income or transactions it has eatered into, by
victue of this Scheme with effect from the Appoiated Date. The Taxes paid by, for, or on
behal€ of the Amalgamating Company, relating to the period up to the Effective Date, shall
be deemed to be the Taxes paid by the Amalgamated Company, which shall be eatitled to
claim Tax Assets and Credits for such Taxes.

19.2  Further, it will be deemed that the benefit of any Tax Assets and Credits availed by the
Amalgamating Company and the obligations, if any, for payment of Taxes on any Assets
etc. shall be deemed to have been availed by the Amalgamated Company.

193 The Amalgamated Company is expressly penmitted to revise its Tax retumns, either
electronically or physically, including TDS certificates/ retumns, wealth tax retuens GST,
service tax, excise duty, sales tax, value added tax, entry tax, cess, professional tax or any
other statutory returns, if required, and shall be entitled to claim Tax Assets and Credits,
credit for advance tax paid, claim for sums prescribed uader Section 438 of the [T Act on
paywment basis, ¢lain for deduction of provisions written back by the Amalgamating
Company previously disallowed in the hands of the Amalgamating Company uader the [T
Act, credit of Tax under section 1 15JB read with section LLSJAA of the IT Act, creditof
foreign Tax paidiwithheld, if any, pertaining to the Amalgamating Company consequent 7 "ot
unplementation of this Scheme and where aeuassi: to give effect to this Scheme, cueg & :
e greenibed time limie for iling or revigdfiuhdidiApion:is have lapsed without in i &
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any liability on accouant of interest, penalty or any other sum t claim Tax Assets and
Credits, on the basis ot the accounts of the Amalgamating Company upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme,

All Tax assessment Proceedings of whatsoever aature by ot agaiast the Amalgamating
Company pending and/or anising at the Appointed Date and relating to the Awmalgamating
Compaay shall be continued andior enforced uatil the Effective Date as desiced by the
Awmalgamated Company. As and from the Effective Date, the Tax Proceedings shall he
continued and enforced by or against the Amalzamated Company in the same manner and
(0 the same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the
Amalgamating Company. Further, all Tax Praceedings shall not abate or be discontinued
nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the wmerger of the Amalgamating
Company with the Amalgamated Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

CONSIDERATION FOR AMALGAMATION

Since the Amalgamating Company (s a subsidiacy of the Amalgamated Cowmpany, with
shares of the Amalgamating Company held by the Amalgamated Company, a subsidiary of
the Amalgamated Company, and their respective nominees, and since shares of a holding
company caanot be held by its subsidiaries pursuant to provisions of Section 19 ot the Act,
0o consideration shall be payable pursuant 0 the Amalgawmation, and theretore no shares
of the Awmalgamated Cowmpany shall be allotted in lieu or exchange of the holding of
shareholders 1n the Amalgamating Company (held dicectly and joiatly with the nominee
shaveholders).

CANCELLATION OF SHARES

Notwithstanding anything contained under the Act, putsuaat to the provisions of Sections
230 t0 232 of the Act, the existing shares of shareholders of the Amalgamating Company
shall stand cancelled and extinguished without any urther act, insteument or deed.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE AMALGAMATED
COMPANY

Notwithstanding anything else contained in the Scheme, upon the Scheme being effective,
the Amalgamated Company shall account for the Amalgamation in accordance with the
Pooling of lnterest method of accounting as latd down in Appendix C of Indian Accounting
Standard (“IndAS") 103 (Business Combinations of entities under comumnon conmol)
notified under Section 133 of the Act, under the Companies (ladian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2013, as may be amended trom time to titne, in its books of accounts such that:

(a) The Amalgamated Company shall record the assets and lishilities of the
Amalgamating Company vested wt it pucsuant to this Scheme, at the carcying
values as appraning @ the consolidated financial statements of the Amalgamated
Cowmpany,;

(b) The identity of the reserves of the Amalgamating Company shall be preserved and
the Amalgamated Company shall record the reserves of the Amalgamating
Company in the same fonn and at the canying amount as appearing in the
consolidated financial statements of the Aumalgamated Company;

te Pursuant to the merger of the Amalgamating Company with the Awulgammad -

Company, inter-company halances_if any, henveen the Amalgamating « oy WGY
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23.2

(2)

(t)

®

The carving amount of investinents in the shares of the Amalgamating Compaay
held by the Amalgamated Company, shall staad cancelled ia the books of the
Amalgamated Comgany, without any further act or deed;

The surplus ¢ deficit, if any, ansing after taking the effect of Clauses 22.1(a),
22.1¢{b) and 22.1(d), after adjustiment of Clause 22.1(¢) shall be transferced to
Capital Reserve in the financial statements of the Amalgamated Compaay;

ln case of any differences in accounting policies between the Amalgamating
Cowmpany and the Amalgamated Company, the accounting policies followed by the
Amalgamated Company shall prevail to ensuce that the financial statements reflect
the financial position on the basts of consistent accounting policies;

Cowparative financial infonnation in the financial statements of the Amalgamarted
Company shall be restated for the accounting impact of the merger of the
Amalgamating Compaay, as stated above, as if the merger had occurred feom the
begianing of the comparative period presented;

For accouating purposes, the Scheme will be given effect on the date when all
substantial conditions for the wanster of the Awmalgamating Company ace
completed;

Any matter not dealt with hereinabove shall be dealt with in accordance with the
requireiment of applicable Ind AS.

DISSOLUTION OF AMALGAMATING COMPANY

On the Effective Date, pursuant to the Amalgamation, the Amalgarating Company shall
staad dissolved without being wound-up and without aay further act, instrurnent or deed.

On and with cliect (vom the Effective Date, the status of the Amalgamating Company shall
be changed to “aralgamated’ in the records of the Registear of Compaaies, tyderabad. The
Amalgamated Company and the Amalgamating Company will make the aecessary filings
in this regaed.
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THE RESL LTING COMPANY

24, TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED GNDERTAKING

Upon the comiag into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Dae
pursvant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Act aud other applicable provisions of the Act, if
any, the Demerged Undertaking will be ansferred fom the Demerged Company to the
Resulting Company at the values appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged
Company unmediately before the dewerger, in accordance with Sections 2(19AA),
2(19AAA) read with Section 2(41A) of the [T Act and pursuant to the sanction of the
NCLT, the Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrurient or deed, be
demerged from the Demerged Company and stand transferred to and vested in orbe deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company as a going coacem, (or the
cousideration provided below so as to becotue the undettaking of the Resulting Company,
by virwe of the Scheme and in the manner set out below.

25.  TRANSFER OF ASSETS

231  (a respect of such of the Movable Assets or the Assets of the Demerged Undertaking as are
otherwise capable of transfer by manual or constructive delivery and/ or by novation and’
or by endorsement and/or detivery and/ or by the operation of law pursvant to the NCLT
sanction, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged Compaay to the Resulting
Company pucsuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section 2(19AA) of
the {T Act aad all ather applicable provisions of Applicable Law, i€ any, without requiring
any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same, and shall becowme the
property ot the Resulting Company as an integral part of the Dewmerged Undertaking
absolutely and forever, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to Enciunbraaces
in favour of banks, upon the Scheme becowming effective, with effect from the Appoiated
Date. Without aay prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses, the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Cowmpany may eater into and execute such other deeds,
instrutnents, docurnents and/ or weitings and/ ot do all acts and deweds as may be required,
including the €iling of necessary documents with any Person to give formal etfect to the
provisions of this Clause 25 and foregoing Clauses, if required.

252  All debus, actionable claums, camest monies, receivables, bills, ¢redits, loans, advances and
deposits (including deposits with any Governmental Authoritics ar aay other bodies and/
or custoraers or say other person), if aay, forming part of the Demerged Undertaking,
whether recoverable in ¢ash or in kind or for value to be received, shall stand transferted o
and vested in the Resulting Cowpany without any notice ot other intunation to any third
person in pursuance of the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other
applicable provisions of Applicable Law to the end and intent that the right o€ the Demerged
Compaay to recover ar realize thew stands teansferred to the Resulting Company, and that
appropriate entfies should be passed wn their respective books to record the aforesaid
change, without any notice or other intimation to such debtors, depositors or persons as the
case may be. The Resulting Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged,
dive notice in such form as it may deem (it and proper, to such person, as the case may be,
that the atorementioneds staad transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company and be
paid or wmade good or held on account of the Resulting Coinpany as the person entitled
thereto.

283 The rights, title, wnterest, claims, rights of actions and authorities in [mmovable Assets
fonning part of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand teansterced to the Resulting oo
“=Eunpany cither under the Scheme or b usy of a separa«. conveyance or agreemeng’ TR
LS paymem of consideration, at yam,}n ompany s discretion. The Resulm ;r : vel\
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26.
26.1

Company shall, upon this Scheme becoming effective, be entitled to exercise all nghts and
privileges artached to the aforesaid lmmovable Assets and shall be liable to pay the ground
rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation to or applicable to such [bumnovable
Assets. Upon this Scheme becomiag effective, the title to such immavable Assets shall be
deemed to have been wmutated and recognised as that of the Resulting Cowmpany. The
Resulting Company shall subsequent to this Scheme becoming etfective be entitled to the
delivery and possession of all documeats of title to such [mmovable Assets wn this regard.
l¢ is hereby clarified that all the rights, title and interest of the Dewerged Cowpany in any
leasehold properties fonning pact of the Demerged Undertaking shall without any further
act, instrument or deed, be vested in or deemed to have been vested in the Resulting
Company. It is clanified that the Resulting Cowmnpany shall be entitled to engage in such
correspondence and make such applications and eepresentations, as may be necessary tor
the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/or substitution. Nonwithstandiag whether or not
the Demerged Company wmakes such application and representation, and whether such
applications or representations tmay be pending, the transfer and sbsolute conveyaace of all
launovable Assets of the Demerged Company fonning part of the Demerged Undertaking
to the Resulting Compaay shall take effect automatically upon the effectiveness of this
Schewe.

[n so €ar as various Tax Assets and Credits, incentives, subsidies, exemptions, remissions,
reductions, business losses, capital losses, unabsothed depreciation and other beoefits or
exemptions or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Govermunental Authority or by any other
person, or availed of by the Dewmerged Company shall, uader the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Applicable Law, without any
further act, instrument or deed, in so tar as they relate to the Demnerged Undertaking, vest
with and be available to the Resulting Company on the same tenms and conditions as if the
same had beea allotted and/ ot granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Resulting
Company to the end and intent that the right of the Deinerged Compaay to recover ot cealize
the sawne, stands transferred o the Resulting Company and that appropriate eatries should
be passed in their respective books to cecord the aforesaid changes.

The benefit of all balances relating to Taxes uader the Tax Laws being balance pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking, if any, shall staad vested in the Resulting Compaay as if the
teansaction giving rise to the said balaace or credit was a transaction camed out by
Resulting Company. The Liabilities which were wet by the Demerged Undertaking till the
Effective Date, shall be constiued to have been met by the Resulting Company as i€ the
transaction giving cise to the said Liabtlity was a transaction carmed out by Resulting
Compaay.

Without prejudice to the fact that vesting of the Demerged Undertaking occurs
automatically by virtue of this Scheme, it ¢ clarified that in order to ensuce (1)
inplementation of the provisions of the Scheme; (ii) uninterrupied transfer of the relevaat
Pennissions, patents, licenses, registeations, certificates, ete.; and (iii) continued vesting of
the benefits, exemptions available to the Demerged Company n velation to the Demerged
Undertaking in favour of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Compaay shall be deemed
t0 be authorized to execute ot enter into aecessary discussions and documentations with
any Govenunental Authority or third parties.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
Demerged Liabilities (as defined herinafter) whether or aot cecorded in the baoks of the
Demerged Company, shall, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, Section 2(19AA) and

asher-gglevant provisions of the (T Act, S8 Baf i o | oiiwr spnbain oy s o
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to and vested in aud be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company, and the same shall be assunied by the Resulting Company 0 the extent that they
are outstanding as on the Effective Date so as to become the Liabilities of the Resulting
Company which it undertakes to meet, and dischaege. it shall not be necessary to obtain the
conseut of any third party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by
virtwe of which such Liabilities have arisen, w order to give effect to the provisions of this
Clause 26.

26,2  The tenn “Demerged Liabilities™ shall mean:
(a) the Liabilities pertaining to Demerged Business(es);

(L) the specific loans or borrowings, guarantees (including debentuces, i any) raised,
wcured and utilized for the activities or operations of the the Deinerged
Subsidiaries and/ or the Demerged Business;

{¢) wa cases other than those referred to above, so much of the amouats of general or
multipurpose borrowings, if any, ot the Demerged Company, as staading in the
same proportion which the value of the Assets transferred pursuaat to the Demerger
bears to the total value of the Assets of the Demerged Company invmediately priot
to the Appointed Date; and

(d) all Liabilities and obligations with regard to employees, coatractors, retained
personnel by whatever name or designation called, who are not, or wha consequent
to the Eftective Date cease to be, employees of the Retained Business.

26.3  The Demerged Liabilities transfeived to the Resulting Company in terms of this Clause 26
shall without any further act, instrument ot deed, become Liabilities of the Resulting
Company, and all rights, powers, duties and obligations in refation thereto shall stand
transterred to and vested in and shall be exercised by or against the Resulting Company as
i€it had entered into such Liabilities. Thus, with effect from the Eftectuive Date, the prinary
obligation to redeemn or repay such Demerged Liabilities shall be that of the Resulting
Cowmpany.

364  Save as wmentioned wn this Scheme, no other term oc condition of the Demerged Liabilities
transferred to the Resulting Company as part of the Schewe is maodified by victue of this
Scheme except to the exteat that such amendment is cequired by necessary iaplication,

265  Upon the comtng into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appoiated Date, the
Demerged Company alone shall be liable, to perform all obligations in respect of all
Liabilities pertaining to its Retained Business and the Resulting Company shall not have
any obligations in respect of the Lisbilities of the Retained Business. Further, upoa the
comung into effect of this Schene and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Resulting
Cowmpany alone shall be liable to perform all obligations in respect of the Demerged
Liabilities, which have been transterred to it in terws of this Scheme, and the Demerged
Company shall not have any obligations in respect of such Demerged Liabilities.

22, ENCUMBRANCES

27.1  The wansfer aad vesting of the Assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking to and in
the Resulting Company shall be subject to the Encumbrances, it any, atfecting the same as
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Demerged Liabilities are transterved to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme.
Provided that if any of the Assets comprised in the Demerged Underntaking which ave being
transfemred to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme have aot been Eacumbered
in vespect ot Demerged Liabilities, such Assets shall remain unencumbered and the existing
Eacumbrances referred to above shall not be extended to and shall aot operate over such
Assets.

273 Nowwithstanding anythiag to the contrary in any contvact of the Demerged Company, the
assumption by the Resulting Company of the Demerged Liabilities shall not increase the
Assets over which the relevant counterpacty has an Encumbrance.

274 Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, in so fav as the Assers forming part of the
Demerged Undertaking are concemed, the Encumbrances over such Assets, to the extent
they relate to any Liabilitics of the Retained Business of the Demerged Cowmpany, shall, as
and from the Effective Date, without any further act, instrwnent or deed, stand released and
discharged and shall ao longer be available as Encuinbrances in relation to those Liabilities
of the Demerged Company perwiaing to its Retained Business (and which shall continue
with the Demerged Company).

2735 o so far as the Assets of the Retained Businesses are concerned, the Encumbrances over
such Assets, to the extent they relate to any Demerged Liabilities, without any fuether act,
instrument or deed be released and discharged from such Encumbrances. The absence of
any formal amendweat which may be required by a bank and/ or financial institution or
trustee or thied party in order to eftect such release shall not affect the opevation of this
Clause 27.

276  [n so far as the existing Eacumbrances in respect of the Liabilities relating to a Rewined
Rusiness are concerned, such Encumbrances shall, without any further act, tnstrument or
deed be continued with the Dewmerged Company, only on the Assets relating to the Retained
Business and the Assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand celeased therefrom.

22.7  In so far as the existing Eacumbrances over the Assets of the Resulting Company ot any
part thereof which relate to the Liabilities of the Resulting Company prior to the Effective
Date are concerned, such Encwinbrance shall, without any further act, instrument or deed
continue 10 relate to only such Assets and shall not extend or attach to any of the Assets of
the Demerged Undertaking transferred t0 and vested in the Resultng Company by vicwe
of the Scheme.

278  Any reference wn any security docuwaents or arcangements (to which the Demerged
Company i$ a party) to the Demerged Company and its Assets, which relate o the
Demerged Undertaking, shall be constrsed as a reference to the Resulting Company and
the Assecs of the Deimerged Company transferred to the Resulting Company by virtue of
the Scheme.

27,9  Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses, the Dewmerged Company and
the Resulting Company thay eunter into and execute such other deeds, instruments,
documents and/ or writings and; or do all acts and deeds as may be requited, including the
filing of necessary particwlars and! or modification(s) of charge, with the Registrar of
Cowpanies to give fonmal effect to the provisions of this Clause 27 and foregoing Clauses,
it required.

28. PERMITS, CONSENTS, LICENSES

WA Upeon the contuing anto etfect of this Schane agyd with effect fram the Appmnted Dae T,
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29.2

30.
3o.1

favour of the Demerged Company and the aghts and benefits under the sane, each to the
extent they relate to the Demerged Undeciaking, shall be teansferred to and vested wn o
deemed to have transferved to or vested in the Resulting Company; and the concerned
concessioning authorities, licensors, grantors of such Pennissions, concessions and powers
of attorney shall (where the the Resulting Company so requests) endorse, and record, in
accordance with law, the nawme of the Resulting Company as the successor entity, s as o
empower and facilitate the approval and vesting of the Demerged Undertakiag in the
Resulting Company and continuation of operations forming part of the Dewmerged
Uadertaking in the Resulting Compaay without hindrance, and that such Penuissions,
concessions and powers of attomey shall cemain W full force and effect in favour of or
agaiast the Resulting Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced as tully and
effectually as i€, instcad of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Conpany had originally
been a pacty or beneficiacy or abligee thereto,

Untit such Penmissions, concessions and powers of attorney are teansferred, vested,
recorded, effected andior perfected in the record of the Governmental Authoricy, in €avour
of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall be deemed to be authonzed o
carry on the Demerged Undertaking in the aame aad style of the Demerged Company and
under the relevant Pennissions, concessions snd powers of atorney ia so fac as they relate
to the Demerged Undertaking, as the case may be. Upan corning inte effect of this Schewe,
the past teack record of the Demerged Company vis-a-vis the Demerged Undertaking shall
be deemed to Le the track record of the Resulting Company for all comunercial and
regulatory purposes.

BANK ACCOUNTS

On and from the Effective Date and thereafier, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to
operate all bank accounts of the Demerged Compaay listed in SCHEDULE (I, which are
its baak accounts n relation to or in connection with the Dewerged Undertaking, and
realize all monies in relation to the Demerged Undertaking.

All cheques and other negotigble instruments, pay ovders, elecrronic fund traasfers (such as
NEFT, RTGS, etc)) teceived or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company on or after the Effective Date, as applicable, in so fac as the same
torms part of the Demerged Undertaking on the Effective Date, shall be deemed to have
been in the name of the Resulting Company and credited to the account of the Resulting
Cowmpany, if presented by the Resulting Company or received theough electronic transfers
and shall be accepted by the relevant bankers and credited to the accounts of the Resulting
Cowpany. Similarly, the banker of the Resulting Company shall honour all cheques and
other negotiable instruments, pay orders, instructtions for electronic fuad transfers (such as
NEFT, RTGS, etc.) wssued by the Demerged Company (in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking) for paymeant priot to the Effective Date. (t is hereby expressly ¢larnified that
aay Proceedings by or against the Demerged Company in celation to or in connection with
the Demerged Undertaking, in relation to the cheques and other acgotiable insteuments, pay
orders, insteuctrions for electronic fund transfers (such as NEFT, RTGS, etc.) received or
presented for encashunent which are in the name of the Demerged Company shall be
wstituted, or as the case may be, continued by or against the Resulting Company on and
atter the Fffective Date.

STAFF, EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme becoming effective, all the Demerged Uadettaking Employees shall be

deemed to have become employees of the Resulting Company, with effect from e~
{as tve Date, in the same capacity as e’ FER; employed with the Demerged i mpat g0
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service, and the terms and conditions of their employment with the Resulting Company
shall not be less favourable than those applicable o them with reference to their
employnent in the Demerged Company inunediately poor to the Effective Date and in
cowpliance with Applicable Law.

The Resulting Company agrees that the past secvice of all Dewerged Uadertaking
Ewployees shall be taken into account for the purpose of any retirement benefits that may
be applicable to them in the Demerged Campaay innmediately prior to coming into etfect
of this Schene and which continue to be available to thewn as employees of the Resulting
Cowmpany the Resulting Comnpany further agrees that for the purpose of payinent of any
retrenchment ot redundancy compensation, gratuity or other tenninal benefits, as may be
applicable, such past service with the Demerged Cowmpany shall also be taken tnto account
and agrees to pay the same as and when payable in corapliance with Applicable Law. Afier
the Effective Date, the Resulting Company alone shall be lisble €or any and all dues to
Demerged Undenaking Ewmployees and the Demerged Company shall have no liability
whatsoever for any dues towaeds any Demerged Undertaking Employee.

On the Scheme becoming effective, in so fae as the provident fund, grawity fued,
superannuation fuad or any other special fund or trusts, if any, created by the Demerged
Company or existing for the benefit of the statf and employees of the Demerged Company
are concerued, such proportion of the investimernds made ia the funds and liabilities which
are atiibutable/referable to the Demerged Uadertaking Emplayees (collectively referved to
as the “Demerged Undertaking Employee Funds™) shall be tansferred to the similar
funds or trusts created and/or nominated by the Resulting Compaay and shall be held for
theit benefit pursuant o this Schiewe, or at the sole disceetion of the Resulting Company,
maiatained as separate fuads or trusts by the Resulting Company pending the teansfer as
aforesaid, the Demerged Undertaking Employee Funds may be continued to be deposited
i the existing celevant funds ot trusts of the Demerged Compaay. Without prejudice to the
atoresaid, the Boaed of the Resulting Company, if it deems fit and subject to Applicable
Laws, shall be entitled to: (a) retain separate trusts ot funds within the Resulting Company
for the erstwhile fund(s) or teusts of the Demerged Compaay; or (b) merge the pre-exising
tunds or trusts of the Demerged Company with other similar funds of the Resulting
Compauny; or (¢} provision for the Demerged Uadertaking Employee Fuads, in any other
maanaer, as detenmined by the Resulting Cowpaay, subject to Applicable Law.

Subsequent to the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking Employee Fuads, for all purposes
whatsoever in relation to the administration or opecation of such Demerged Undertaking
Employee Funds or in relation to the obligation to make conteibutions to the Demerged
Undertaking Ewployee Fuads in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms
provided tn the respective trust deeds, if any, all cights, duties, powers and obligations of
the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Uadertaking Employee Funds as on
the Effective Date shall becomne those of the Resulting Company.

la celation to any other fund (including any funds set up by the government for employee
benefits) created or existing for the benefit of the Demerged Undertaking Employees, the
Resulting Company shall staad substituted for the Demerged Company, for all purposes
whatsoever, including ia relation to the obligation to take contributions to the said funds
in accordance with the provisions of such scheme, funds, bye laws, etc. in respect of the
Dewerged Uandertaking Employees. The Resulting Comnpany undertakes to abide by aay
agreement/ settlement, i€ any, entered into by the Demerged Company with any Demerged
Undertaking Employee / union thereof.

la so far as the existing benefits or funds created by the Demerged Company for o
employees other than the Demerged Undepekme=fannloyees, they shall continue and s’

{35 % e Company shall continue to weit MEEETE Jae), benefits or funds in sccordanea
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with the provisions thereof, and the Resulting Comnpany shall have no liability in respect
thereof.

The Boards ol the Demerged Compaty and the Resulting Company may at theie respective
discretions undertake such measuces as they respectively consider appropriate to protect
the interest of individuals holding Demerged Compaay ESOPs. Without peejudice to the
generality of the forgoing sentence, these measures may include: (i) the issvance of
Resulting Company ESOPs by the Resulting Company to the extent penmissible under
Applicable Law, (i) issuance of additional ESOPRs by the Demerged Company, (iti)
compensatory todifications to the teans of the vested and/or uavested Dewerged
Cornpany ESOPs as the Boatd of the Deinerged Cowpany tnay deem appropriate including
but not linited to modifications to their exercise price, exercise penod, vestiag periods and/
or conversion ratio; (iv) continuation of vesting periods and continued vesting of unvested
Demerged Company ESOPs to Demerged Undertaking Employees after cessation of
employment with Demerged Company (i accordance with imoedifications pursuaat to (i)
above);

For the avoidance of doubt, all the measures adopted by the Demerged Company aad or
the Resulting Compaay as mentioned hereinbefore shall be effected as an integral pact of
this Scheme and the approval of relevaat Govermmental Authorities and the shareholders
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to this Schewe shall be deemed to
be their consent in relation to all matters pertawing to such measures, includiag without
limitation, €or the pucposes of creating any new employee stock option plans or other
scheines and/ or modifying the ters of the Demerged Company ESOPS, incressing the
maximum awnber of equity shares that can be issued consequent to the exercise of the
Deinerged Campany ESOPs, and/ or wmodifying the exercise price of the Demerged
Company ESOPs and all celated matters. No fucther approval of the shareholders of the
Demerged Company or Resulting Company or any other person would be required in this
connection.

It is hereby claritied that in relation to the Resulting Company ESOPs (if aay), the period
during which the corresponding Demecged Company ESOPs were held by the relevant
individual as an employee of Demerged Company shall be taken into accovat for
detennining, and adjusted against, the minimumn vesting period, lock-in penod, or exercise
petiod required under Applicable Law or agreements for Resulting Conmpany ESOPs.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into eflect of this Schewme, if any Proceediags exist by or agaiast the
Demerged Company in telation to the Demerged Undertaking, whether pending on the
E€fective Date or which may arise or be instituted any time thereafter, the same shall not
abate or be discontinued ot in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or by anything
contained in this Scheme, but the said Proceeding shall be continued, prosecuted and
enforced by ot against the Resulting Company, as the case may be, after the Effective Date,
in the same manner and t0 the same extent as it would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Compaay as if this Scheme had aot
been made.

It any Proceeding is commenced against the Demerged Company after the Effective Date
in respect of the marters relating to the Denerged Uadertaking, the Demerged Company

shall defend them at the cost of the Resulting Company, and the Resulting Company shall
ceimburse snd indcmnify the Demerged Company against all Liabilities and obllt'auog.ﬁ' :

incurred by the Demerged Company a respect thereof. ) [
L Pigceedngs initiated by or against the Dunuw Civeiu 32, as applicable, refer| {

\f,:, ‘ﬂ

e I|
ne § -
'



32
321

32.2

323

324

325

above in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall stand trans(erred o the aame of the
Resulting Conpany on aud after the Effective Date and the same shall be contiaued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the exclusion of the
Dewmerged Company. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall make
celevant applications in that behalt.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

Upon cotag into ¢tfect of this Scheme and subject to the other provisions of this Scheme,
all IP Rights, Commercial Rights and Documents fonming part of the Demerged
Undertaking, to which the Dewerged Company is a party oc to the benefit of which the
Demerged Corapaay is eligible and which is subsisting or having effect on the Effective
Date, shall without any further act, insteuient or deed, continue in full focee and effect
agaiast ov in favour of the Resulting Company and may be enforced by or against the
Resulting Cotpaay as lully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Cowmpany, the
Resulting Company had been a party thereto. [t shall not be necessary to abtain the consent
of any third party or other person whe is a party to any such [P Rights, Conunercial Rights
and Documents to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 32 ot the Schemne.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and aotwithstanding the fact that
the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking occurs by virtue of the Scheme self, the
Resulting Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme n
accordance with the provisions heveof, if cequived under any Applicable Law or at its sole
discretion enter into and/ or issue and/ or execute deeds, watings or confinnations or enter
Wt any tripartite acrangenents, confinnations ot novatioas in order to give formal cffect
to the provisions of this Scheme,

The Resulting Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any such deeds,
writings or confinnations on behalf of the Demerged Company and to inplement ot carry
out all fonmalities required to give effect to the provisioas of this Schee,

On aad from the Effective Date, and theceafter, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to
complete and enforce all Commercial Rights and Documents and teansactions and to accept
stock returns and issue cvedit notes in respect of the Demerged Company, ia the name of
the Demerged Company i s0 far as may be necessary, in relation to the Demerged
Underiaking, uatil the transfer of nights and obligations of the Demerged Company to the
Resulting Company uader this Scheme has been given effect to under such Comuwmercial
Rights and Documents and such teansactions.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it ts clanfied that i any Assets or any Corunercial
Rights and Documents or other insteuments o€ whatsoever nature tn relation to a Demerged
Undertaking which the Demerged Company owns or to which the Demerged Company is
a party to, cannot be transferred to the Resulting Company for any reason whatsoever:

{a) the Demerged Company shall hold such Asset or Comwmercial Rights and
Documents i trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company, insofar as it s
penuissible so to do, till such time as the transfer is effected;

) the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall, however, between
themselves, treat each other as if all Assets relation to the Demerged Undertaking
aad Commercial Rights and Documnents in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
had been teansferred to the Resulting Company on the Effective Date; and

n the Resulting Company shall peiiswss v assist the Demerged oonpany @t
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to be discharged after the Effective Date,

326 [t s clacified that the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company may enter into
CONLYacts or arrangenents, as may be required to cecord their understanding i respect of
and give effect to the provisions of this Clause 32 or ather provisions of this Schewe and
such contracts ot artangements shall not be cancelled or rendered inoperative pursuant to
Clauses below.

327 WNowwithstanding any such mechanism or arrangewment between the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Cotmpany, the said Companies agree that the Demerged Company shall
upon effectiveness of the Schigne, (i) not be responsible for perfonnance of any obligations
or for any Demerged Liabilities; and (ii) not be entitled to any cights or o receive any
Lenefits whatsoever in velation to the Demerged Undertaking, the economic, financial,
technical and opevational responsibility aad all related costs and expenses, Liabilities and
Taxes in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, shall rest aad be borne eatively and
exclusively by the Resulung Company after the Effective Date. The Resulting Company
shall prowptly pay, indemaify and hold haanless the Demerged Compaay tor and frota any
such costs and expenses, losses, damages, Liabitities and Taxes or requirewents under any
Conunercial Rights and Documents after the Effective Date if avising pursusat to the
arrangement between the Dewerged Company and the Resulting Company.

328  On and from the date of effectiveness of this Schene, Resulting Company shall have aceess
to and benefit of Books and Records forming pact of Demerged Undertaking which the
Demerged Company has the aceess to and benetit of.

33.  VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions, if any, of the Demerged
Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking, which are valid and subsisting oa the
Cftective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions
of the Resulting Company.

34. TAXATION MATTERS

341 The Demerger is a tax-neutral demerger in accordance with Section 2(19AA) of the (T Act
and other Applicable Law. With etfect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the benefits of any Tax Assets and Credits availed in relation to the
Dewerged Undertaking and the obligations, if any (including the past penad), for payment
of Taxes on any Assets of the Demerged Uadertaking shall be deeied to have been availed
by the Resulting Company, or as the case may be deemed to be the obligation of the
Resulting Company.

34.2  With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all Taxes,
receivables/payables by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Uadertaking
including all or any Tax Assets and Credits avaited in celation to the Demerged Underiaking
fclaums/tax losses/unabsorbed depreciation celating thereto shall be treated as the
assets/liability or Tax Assets and Ceedits /claims/tax losses/unabsorbed depreciation, as the
case may-be, of the Resulting Company.

343  The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly pemuitted to revise thewr
Tax rerums, electronically or physically, after taking credit for taxes paid including TDS
certificates/ retuens, wealth tax rerurns, service tax, excise duty, sales tax, value added tax,
GST, enfry tax, cess, protessional tax or any other statutory returus, (f required, and it

b entitted to claim Tax Assets and Credpsscdit for advance tax paid, claim for o als A0 )
fe s hed under Section 438 of G YA GRNpayment basis, claim for fedu @i ol

LN R .~l'k

"»‘
\ s " A v ~ e f"



provisions written back by the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged Undertaking,
previously disallowed in the haads of the Demerged Company uader the IT Act, credit of
tax under section 115JB read with section 1USJAA of the [T Act, credit of foreign tax
eaid/withheld, i€ any, pettaiaing to Demerged Undeitaking of the Demerged Company,
consequent 1o umplementation of this Scheme and where aecessacy to give elfect to this
Scheme, even if the prescabed time linit for filiag or cevising such retums have lapsed
without incurring any liabilicy on account o€interest, penalty ot any other sum to claim Tax
Assets and Credits, on the basis of the accounts of the Demerged Undertaking of the
Demerged Company, upon the coming into affact of this Scheme.

344 All Tax assessment Proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Demerged
Undertaking pending at the Appoiated Date or ansing thereafier until the Effective Date
and celating to the Demerged Undertaking shall be continued andior enforced uatil the
Efective Date as desired by the Resulting Company. As and from the Effective Date, the
Tax Proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in
the same manncr and to the same extent as would or might have beea continued and
enforced by or against the Demerged Undertaking. Further, all Tax Proceedings shall not
abate or be discontinved nor be in any way prejudicially affeceed by reason of the demerger
of the Demerged Undertaking with the Resulting Company or anything contained in the
Schee.

33. REMAINING BUSINESS OF 'THE DEMERGED COMPANY

35.0  The Retained Business and all the Assets, Liabilities, Panissions, Comumercial Rights and
Docunients, [P Rights, Tax Assets and Credits, Book and Records, rights and obligations
pertainiag thereto shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the
Demerged Company, and the Resulting Company shall have ao cight, claim or obligation
in relation to these or the Retained Business of the Dewmerged Company pursuant 1o the
Demerger.

352 Al Proceedings by ot against the Demerged Company with cespect to the Retained
Business, uader any statute, whether relating to the period prioe to ot after the Appointed
Date and whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in future,
whether or not in respect of any matter anising before the Appointed Date and relating to
the Retained Business ot the Demerged Company, (including those relating to any Assets,
Liabilities, Permissions, Commercial Rights and Documents, (P Rights, Tax Assets and
Credits. Book and Records, nght, power, liability, obligation ot duty of the Demerged
Company in respect of the Retained Business and any income tax celated liabilities) shall
be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, as applicable.

36. CONSIDERATION

36.L  Upon this Scheine becaming effective and in consideration of wansfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undcenaking in the Resulting Company in tenns of this Scheme, the Resulting
Company shall, without aay further application, act or deed, issue and allot, credited as
tully paid-up, to the members of the Demerged Company, whose names appeat ia the
register of mewber on the Record Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representative or other successors in tite as on the Record
Date in the following manner:

“For Class A Equity Shaveholders of Demerged Company: 89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand
Sex Hlundeced amd Tty Froed Ouss 3 Comprdsanify Comantdde Poctenomcy Shias =
tCIare A CCES) of Rosedring Coampany of INK 10 wieh, finlly peasd sp G evees 3890 (Do Sl
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For Class B Equity Shareholders of Demerged Company: 89,62 (Eightv-Nine Thousand
Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
{Class A CCPS) of Resulring Company of INR 10+ cach, fully paid up for every 100 (One
Hundred) Class B equity shares of Denterged Company of INR 10:- each, fully paid up.

For Preference Shareliolders of the Demerged Company: 896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety-
$ix) Class B Compubsorily Converiible Preference Shaves (Class B CCPS) of Resulting
Company each of INR 16 each, fully paid up for ail the 2.28.363 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight
Thousand Five Hundved and Sixty Three) Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares of Demerged Company of INR 15/~ each fully paid up.” (“Share Entitlement
Ratio"}.

The consideration in the forn of computsotily convertible prefereace shares having tenus
set out in Schedule [V pursuant to the Clause above shall be issued and allotied to all the
members of the Demerged Company, respectively, in demat fonn i.e. dematerialized shares
into the account in which shares ot the Demerged Company are held or such other accouat
as is intimated in wdting by the shareholders to the Demerged Cowmpany and/ or its
cegistear.

ln the event of any increase in the issued, subscribed or paid up share capital of the
Damerged Company or the Resulting Company (other than any such increase contemplated
or specified in this Schewme), issuance of any instruments convertible into equity shares or
restructuring of their respective equity share capital including by way of consolidation,
share split, issue of banus shaces, or other similac action, that accurs in accordance with
Applicable Law before the issuance of compulsorily convertible preference shares to the
sharehalders of the Demerged Company pursuant ¢o the above, the Share Eatitlement Ratio,
as applicable, may be appropriately adjusted to take into account the effect of such issuance
or corporate actions and assumiag coaversion of any such issued instraments convertible
into equity shares.

The compulsorily convertible preference shares to be issued and allotted by the Resulting
Company shall be subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the memorandum and articles
of assoctation of the Resulting Company, Applicable Law and shall have the tenns set out
in SCHEDULE LV,

No shares shall be allotted in cespect of fractional entitlements by the Resulting Compaay.
[a such case, the €ractional entitlement shall be rounded off to the next lower integer.

The Boards of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Cowpany, acting with mutual
agreement, shall be empowered ta remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of
unplemnentation of this Scheme and registration of aew shareholders in the Resulting
Company on account of difficulties faced in the transaction period.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause above, the Board of the Resulting Company
shall, i€ and to the extent required, apply €or and obtain any approvals from concerned
Governmental Authonty and undertake necessary compliance for the issue and allotment
of compulsonly convertible preference shares, pursuant to the Scheme.

The shares to be issued by the Resulting Cowmpany, in respect of any compulsorily
convertible preference shares of the Demerged Company which ace held in abeyance under
Applicable Law (including the provisions of Section (26 of the Act) ar which the Resulting
Company 11 unable 1 ssaue due to non-receipt of relesant appeovats or due to Applicable

Loaw or otherwise shall, pending atlotment or sestdement of dispie by onder of NCI TfRsy 598
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Approval of this Schewe by the shareholders of the Resulting Company shall be deemed
to be the due compliance of the provisions of Sections 42 and 62 of the Act, and other
relevant aad applicable provisions of the Act and rules made theceueler for the issue and
allotent of the compulsorily convertible prefecence shares by the Resulting Compaay to
the mambers ot the Demerged Company, pursuant to Clause the above, as on the Appointed
Date, as provided in this Schetne and no sepavate approval from the shaceholders to that
extent shall be required to be sought for the matters specitied i this Schewme.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE COMPANIES
[a the books of the Demerged Company

Notwithstanding anything else contained in the Scheme, the Demerged Company shail
accouat for the Scheme in its books of accounts in accordance with Appeandix A of ludian
Accounting Standacds ([ad AS) 10 *Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owaers' prescribed
uader Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 cead with the Companies (Indian
Accouating Standards) Rules, 2013, as mnay be amended from tite to time. Accordingly,
the Demerged Company shall provide the following accounting treatment in its books of
accounts:

(a) Recognise liability for Disteibution of Non-Cash Assets to owaers as dividend, to
the extent of faic value of the Dewcerged Bustuess with a comresponding debit to the
Retained Earning. The liability is subject to review at each reporting date and at
the date of setiletnent, with any changes in the carrying amount of the liability
recognised tn the Retained Earaings as an adjustiment to the amount of distaibution;

(b) Reduce the camrying amount of all assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged
Buginess, being transfenved to the Resulting Company, from the respective book
value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged Cowmpany;

(c) The Danerged Company shall recognise the difference, if any, benween the
carrying anouat of the assets and liabilities distributed and the carrying amount of
the liability derecognised in the statemeat of profit aed toss;

(d) For accouating purpose, the Scheme will be givea effect on the date when all
substantial conditions for the transfer of Demerged Busiaess are completed; and

(e) Any mawet not dealt with in Clause 37.1 hercinabove shall be dealt with ia
accordance with the accounting standacds applicable to the Demerged Company.

{a the books of the Resulting Company

With effect frowm the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall accouat for the Scheme
in its books of accounts in accordance with lndian Accounting Scandaeds (Ind AS) noulied
uader Section [33 of the Act, under the Companies (Indian Accouating Standard) Rules,
2013, as may be amended from time to time and generally accepted accounting principles
in lodia, Accordingly, the Resulting Compaay shall provide the following accounting
treatment in its books of accounts:

(a) Record the assets and liabilities of the Demerged Business of the Demerged
Company vested in it pucsuant to this Scheme at their respective carrying values as
appeariag in the books of Demerged Company,;
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Scheme and excess, if any, of the fair value of preterence shares issued aver tace
value of prelcrence shares shall be classilied as “Secucities Premium™ uwader the
head “Other Equity™;

(¢} The difference between the faie value of the compulsorily convertible preference
shaves (CCPS) issued by the Resulting Company to the sharcholders of the
Demerged Company as consideration as per Clause 37 of the Scheme aad the book
value of the assets and liabilites of Demerged Undertaking received from the
Dewmerged Company will be debited/ credued to equity and ¢lassified as “Capital
Reserve™ under the head “Other Equity™;

{d) la case of any differences in accounting policies between the Demerged
Undertaking of the Dewmerged Company and the Resulting Company, the
accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company shall peevail to ensure that
the financial stateients reflect the financial position based on the consistent
accounting policies;

(e) For accouating pucpose, the Scheme will be given effect on the date when all
substantial conditions for the transfer of Demerged Business are completed;

(6 Any wmatter not dealt with in Clause 37.2 hereinabove shall be dealt with in
accordance with the accounting standaeds applicable to the Resulting Compaay;

€3] Post giving eftect 10 the Demerger as per Clause 37.2 above, the debit balance of
capital reserve, it any, uader the head “Other equity™ ansing in terms of Clause
37.2 (c) above, shall be adjusted against the cotresponding credit balance of
securities premium account arisiag in teans of Clause 37.2 (b), in the books of
Resulting Company; and

(h) The Resulting Compaay will pass appropnate adjustment entries ia 2 prudent and
conunercially acceptably maaner.

WRONG POCKET ASSETS

L€ any part of any the Demerged Undertaking is aot transferred to the Resulting Compaany
on the Effective Date pursuaat to the Demerger, the Demerged Company, shall take such
actons as may be reasonably required to ensure that such part of the Deinerged Uadertaking
is transferred to the Resulting Company prowmptly and for no further consideration.

No part of the Retained Bustness shall be transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant
to the Demerger. [f any part of the Rerained Business is inadverteatly held by the Resulting
Cowmpany after the Cffective Date, the Resulting Company shall take such actions as may
be reasonably required to ensure that such part of the Retained Busiacss is teansferred back
to the Demerged Company, promptly and for no consideration.

(€ the Demerged Conapany reatizes any atouats after the Effective Date that form part of
the Demerged Undertaking, it shatl make paywent of such amouats 10 the Resulting
Company aet of expenses. [t is clanfied that all receivables relating o the Demerged
Undertaking, relsting to the period prior to the Effective Date, but received after the
Effective Date, shall be paid to the Resulting Compaay for no additional consideration. f
the Resulting Cowmpany realizes any amouants afier the Effective Date that pertains to the

Rctained Business, the Resulting Compaay shall immmediately pay such amouats to the

Demerged Company net of and expenses.



384 (Fany payables (from before the Effective Date) of the Demerged Uadertaking ace sought
to be recovered from the Demerged Company then the Resulting Company shall pay such
payables oft and shall otherwise hold the Demerged Compaay hanuless against all such
claims. [Fany payables (from before the Effective Date) of the Retained Business are sought
to be recovered from the Resulting Company then the Demerged Company shall pay such
payables off and shail otherwise hold the Resulting Company haanless against atl such
¢laumns.

38.3  Each Company shall bear its own respective ¢osts in giving effect to this Clause 38,
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39.

393

394

The provisions of this Part D shall be applicable to both the Amalgamation pursuant to
Part B and Demerger pursuant to Part C heveof.

INCREASE OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE AMALGAMATED
COMPANY

As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon this Scheme beconming effective, the
authonised shave capital of the Amalgamating Company shall stand transterred to and
combined with the authorised share capital of the Amalgamated Company. The authorized
share capital of the Amalgamated Company will automatically stand increased to INR
2,11,25,00,000 (Two Hundred and Eleven Crores Twenty Five Lakhs only) by filing the
requisite forms with the Govermmental Authority and no separate procedure or instrunent
or deed shall be required to be executed and/ or process shall be required to be followed
uader the Act. The filing fees and starnp duty already paid by the Amalgamating Company
on s authonsed shace capital shall be deemed to have been $o paid by the Amalgamated
Company on the combined authorised share capital and accordingly the Amalgamated
Coupany shall not be required to pay any fees/stamp duty on the authorised shace capital
$0 increased.

Consequently, Clause V of the memorandun of assaciation of the Amalgamated Company
shall without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, moditied and amended
pursuant to Sections |3 and 61 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act, as the
case may be, aud be replaced by the following Clause:

“¥. The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 2,11,23.00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred and Eleven Croves Twenty Five Lakhs only) divided into: (4) 20,75,22,450
(Dwventy Crove Seventy Five Lakh Twenty Two Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty) equity
shares (“the Class A Equity Shaves™) of par value Rs. 10/ (Rupees Ten only); (B) 100
(one hundred) equity shaves with the differential voting rights specified in Schedule A of
this Memorandum of Association (“the Class B Equity Shaves™) of par value Rs. 10/
{Rupees Ten only) cach: (C) 1.00.000 (one hundred thousand} cumulative compulsorily
convertible preference shares (convertible into filly paid up Class A Equity Shares refevred
to i (4) above in accordance with, and having rights specified in Part 4 of Schedule 8 of
this Memorandum of Association) (“the Class A Preference Shares ) of par value Rs. 10/
(Rupees ten only) each. (D) 13,414,000 fone million three hundred and forty fowr thousand)
Opiionally Convertible RedeemablePreference Shaves of par vatue Ry. 15/ (Rupees Fifteen
only) each; and (E) 71,145 (seventy one thousand one hundred and forty five) redeemable
prefevence shaves of par value Rs. 100/- (Rupees one hundred only) cach, with the pover
(0 increuse and veduce the capital of the Company or to divide the shaves in the capital for
the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively any preferential,
deferved, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or
in accordance with the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such
righes, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time provided by the
Articles of the Company and the legislative provisions for the time being in force. "

Pursuant to this Schene, the Amalgamated Company shall file the requisite forns with the
jurisdictional Regstrar of Compacnies for alteration of its authorized share capital and
amendment of its memorandum of association.

Uader the accepted principle of single window clearance, it is hereby provided that the
amendwents pucsuaat to this Clause 39 shall become operative on the Scheme iecuming

effective by virtue of the fact that the shareladdemel (he Aoz e L ompiny o
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40,

40.1

40.2

4L
41l

41.2

H3

vequived under the Act for amcndment of the memorandum of association of the
Amalgamated Company and shall not be required to pass sepacate resolutions uader the
applicable provisions of the Act.

[t is hereby clarified that the consent of the shareholders of the Companies to the Scheme
shall be deewmed to be their consent/ approval also to the consequential alteration of their
vespective articles of association, memorandun of association and the Companies shall not
be required to seek separate consent/ approval of their shareholders for such altecation as
tequired under Sections |3 and Section §1 of the Act or any other applicable provisions of
the Act.

APPLICATION TO NCLT

The Campanies shall simultareously make all necessary applications and petitions to the
jurisdictional NCLTs for saactioning this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Actand
other applicable provisions of the Act, and obtaining such other approvals, as required
under Applicable Law,

The Companies shall be eatitled, pending the effectiveness of the Scheme, to apply to any
CGiovernmenal Authonity or other persons, it required, under any Applicable Law for such
conseats and approvals, as agreed between the Companies, which the Companies may
require to effect the transactions contemplated under the Scheme, subject to the terms as
taay be mutually agreed betveen the Companies.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Compaanies (acting theough their Board) may, in their full and absolute discretion,
jointly and as mutually agreed in wating, modify, vary or withdeaw this Scheme at an time
prior to the Effective Date i any manaer (including pursuant to any direction by any
Govermnmental Authority), provided that any modification or variation after receipt of the
sanction by the NCLT shall be made with the prior approval of the NCLT and/ or any other
appropriate Govermmental Authority, if such approval is required to be sought in
accordance with Applicable Law.

Each of the Companies agree that if, at any time, either of the NCLT or any Governmental
Authonty directs or requires any modification or amendment of the Scheme, such
wodification or amendment shall not, to the exteat it adversely affects the nterests of any
of the Companies, be binding on each of the Companies, as the case may be, except where
the prior wattea consent of the aftected partty, as the case may be, has been obtained for
such modification or amendment,

The Companies through mutual consent and acting through their respective Boards, joiatly
and as mwtually agreed in writing may:

(a) give such directions (acting jointly) and agree to take steps, as raay be necessary,
desirable or praper, to resalve all doubts, difticulties or questions anising under this
Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of NCLT or of any directive or orders of
any Governmental Authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the
arrangement contetnplated i this Scheme and/ or inatters conceming or connected
therewith or tn regard (0 and of the weaning or interpeetation of this Scheme ot
implemeniation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected thecewith, or to

review the position relating to the satisfaction of vanious conditions of this Scheme

,1 o

and if necessary, to waive any of thasg 1o the extent penmissible under Applicatig™
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(b) do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desivable or expedient for
carryiny the Scheme into effact.

414  [n case of any question that may arise as to whether any particular employee, Assets,
Liabilities, Penuissions, Commercial Rights and Documents, [P Rights, Tax Assets and
Credits, Book and Records, Proceedings, nights and obligations pertain or do not periaia to
the Demerged Undertaking, the same shall be decided by mutual agreement between the
Boacd of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

415 [fany of the terms or provisions of the Schewme are fouad or interpreted to be inconsistent
with the provisions of Section 2(1B) or Sections 2(19AA), 2019AAA) read with Section
241 A)of the [T Act with respect to the Amalgamation or the Demerger, respectively, at a
later date, including as a result of any ameadwment of law or for any ather reason whatsoever,
the provisions of Section 2(1 B) and Sections 2(19AA), 2(19AAA) read with section 2(41A)
of the [T Act, shall peevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent detennined
necessary o comply with Section 2(1B) and Sections 2(19A4), 2([IAAA) read with
section 2(41A) of the IT Act. Such modifications shall however not affect the other parts
of the Scheme.

42. DIVIDENDS

421  The Companies shall be entitled 10 declare and pay dividends, whether interim or fiaal, to
their respective shareholders in respect of the accountiag peniod prioe to the Effective Date.
Any distribution of dividend or other distcibution of capital oc incowme by the Companies
shall be consistent with the past practice of such Company.

422  Prior to the effectiveness ot the Scheme, the holders of the shares of each of the Companies
shall, save as expressly provided otherwise in this Scheme, continue (o egjoy their existing
aghts under their cespective articles of association including the nght to receive dividends.

423  ltisclarified that the aforesatd provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabliag
provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any night on any shareholder of the
Cowmpanies to demand or clain any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act,
shall be entirely at the discretion of the respective Board ot the Companies, aad subject to
the approval, if required, of the respective shareholders of such of the Companies.

43. CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
43.1  This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

(a) the fulfilment, satisfaction or waiver (as the case may be) of any approvals ot
consents from third parties, as may be mutually agreed by the Companies as being
reguiced for completion of the teansactions contemplated under this Scheme;

(b) the Scheme being approved by the requisite tmajority of each class of mewmbers
and/or creditors (where applicable) of the Companies in accordance with the Act
and as may be directed by the NCLT;

(¢) the Schewe being sanctioned by the NCLT(s) in terms of Section 230 to Section
232 and other celevant provisions of the Act on ters acceptable to the Companies;
and

al the certified copies of the sanction order, u =£.the NCLT(s) approving this b W =
' S o liled with the relevant RoCs b, JV=miihon over the Corpanies. 4
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432  Upon fulfillment of the conditions specified herein, the Cowmpanies shall mutually
acknowledge (n writing that all the conditions specified above have been tulfilled and/or

waived.

433  Upon the sanction of the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming effective pursuant to this
Clause 43, the Amalgamation shall take effect and subsequently the Demerger shall be
made eftective.

44.  RESIDUAL PROVISIONS

44.1  The Companies shall be eatitled to file/ revise their respective income tax cetums, financial
stateiments, TDS certificates, TDS rewms, wealth tax ceturns and other statutory Tax
ceturns, ifcequired, and shall have the right to claim Tax Assets and Creduts, if any, as may
be required consequent ta inplementation of this Schewe.

442  Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of the Companies, as on the Appointed
Date shall be reconstructed, as may be required, in accordance with the tenms of this
Scheme.

443  Except as specifically provided otherwise, the provisions of this Scheme shall operate
aotwithstanding anything to the contracy contained in any instrument, deed or contract, all
of which shall be decmned to have been moditicd and: oc superseded by the provisions of
the Scheme,

45. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

45.0  Uaul any Assets, Liabilities, Penmissions, Commercial Rights and Documents, P Rights,
Tax Assets aad Credits, Book and Records, Proceedings, obligations, rights and benetits
aristng therefrotn are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or perfected, w the records
of sny Governental Authonty, regulatory body or otherwise, (a) from the Amalgamating
Company in favoue of Amalgamated Compauny for purposes of the Amalgamation; aad/or
(b) from the Dewmerged Company in favour of the Resulting Cotmpany for purposes of the
Demerger, the Amalgamated Company and/or Resulticg Company (as the case may be) are
deemned to be authorized to enjoy rights and benefits associated with such Assets,
Liabilities, Permissions, Commercial Rights and Documents, [P Rights, Tax Assets and
Credits, Book and Records, Proceedings, obligations, nights and benefits as if it were the
owner thereof. It is clanified that tll entry is made in the records of the relevant
Govenunental Authority and till such titne as may be mutually agreed by the Companies,
the Amalgamating Cowmpany aund/or Demerged Company (as applicable for the
Amalgamation or the Demerger) will continue to hold these in trust on behalf of the
Asnalgamated Company and/or Resulting Company (as required for the Amalgamation ot
the Demerger).

43.2  For purposes of the Amalgamation andsor the Demerger the Cotmpanies shall, however,
among themselves, treat each other as if all Assets, Liabilities, Pennissions, Cowunercial
Rights and Docuwents, [P Rights, Tax Assets and Credits, Book and Records, Proceedings,
obligations, rights and berefits (2) of the Amalgamating Company for purposes of the
Amalgamation and (b) in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for pugposes of the
Demerger, had been mansferred to the Amalgamated Company/Resulting Company (as
applicable) on the effectiveness of this Scheme with deemed effect feom the Appointed
Date, together with the econotnic benefits and buedens thereofas of and from the Appoiated
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46.

47,

obligations, rights and benefits pursuant to the Amalgamation and/or the Demerger the
Compantes will reader such assistance o each other as their cespective Boards may
mwtually agree to ensure that obligations pertaining to the foregoing are duly and tiueely
pecfonned. The Companies shall assist each other in pertonuing all of the acts as deseribed
above until the rranster to the Amalgamated Company/Resulting Cowmpany as applicable.
ln ovder to support each other to comply with aforesaid provisions, the Companies may
enter into any such agreement as the Boards of the respective Companies may detennine.

For purpuses of the Amalgamation and/or the Demerger (as applicable), all profits and
InCome accruing or arising to the Amalgamatiag Company and to the DumergedCompany
(for pucposes of the Demerger, those pertaining to Deinerged Uadertaking in both cases),
aad losses and expenditure acising or incucred (including Taxes, i€ any, accruing or paid in
rclation to any profits or income) by Amalgamating Company and the Demerged Company
(tor purposes of the Demerger, those penaining to Demerged Undertaking in both cases)
for the period cornmencing from the Appointed Date shall, for all purposes, be treated as
and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses ot expenditure (including Taxes), as the
case may be, of the Awmalgamated Cowmpany/Resulting Company (as required for
Amalgamation or Demerger).

COMPOSITE SCHEME AS AN INTEGRAL WHOLE AND SEVERASBILITY

Each provision contained in this composite Schewne are inextricably inter-linked with its
other provisions and the Scheme constitutes an integral whole. Unless all Companies agree
otherwise in writing, the Scheme would be miven effect to only if the Scheme is approved
in its entirety and are given etfect to in accordance with the tenns of the Scheme.

COSTS, CHARGES & EXPENSES

Subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the costs, charges and expenses, in relation to ot
in connection with or incidental to the Scheme in respect of each Company shall be bome
by the respective Companies unless otherwise mutually agreed between the Companies.
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SCHEDULE [ - DEMERGED SUBSIDIARIES
Chenaai Enviro Solutions Private Limited
Cliennai MSW Private Lunited
Dehradua Waste Moanagement Private Limited
Delli MSW Solutions Limited
Dhanbad Integrated MSW Limited
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited
[P MSW Solution Prvate Limited
Katni MSW Managewent Private Linited
Saagar MSW Solutions Private Liwited
Re Sustainability Urbaa Solutions Private Limited
Dhanbad (ntegrated Waste 2 Eaergy Peivate Limited
Duadigal Waste 2 Energy Private Limited
Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited
Rewa MSW Energy Soluttons Private Limited
Rewa MSW Holding Limited
Rewa MSW Management Solutions Limited
Rewa Waste 2 Energy Project Limited
Hyderabad RDF WTE Private Linited
Sapta lnvestinents Pte Led
Chhattisgach Energy Consortium (India) Private Limited
Ramky Tanzania Limited
Ramky Al-Tucki Environmental Services LLC
Farz LLC
Al Ahlia Waste Treatment LLC
Al Ahlia Environtnental Services Co LLC

fmdaad Al Batinah Eaviromueatal Services LLC



28. Re Sustainability Environmental Services LLC (One Person)
29, Owman Maritime Waste Treatwmeat LLC

30. Re Sustainability Middle East £2-LLC
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SCHEDULE Ul - DEMERGED UNDERTAKING PROPERTIES

Survey. No. 198, 202 to 206, 208 o 210, and 214, Anupingkatte (V), Puradal Road,
Shimoga — 577204

Survey No. 19, 40/1/2 B, 42, Near RK Agro, Turmwun Village, Vengurla Road, Belgaum -
591128
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SCHEDULE Il - BANK ACCOUNCS

Account Number| Name OF Bank/ | (FSC Code Site Type of Accoumt| Puepose of
Financial Account
Institution
Q10020034114375 AXIS BANK LTO (UTIBO000I3] | Belgaum | Escrow Account |Closure & Post
Closure
Monitoring
Puepose
133010200009270(AX(S BANK LTD |UTIB0000138 | Belgaum | Current Account | Withdrawal
91102005862301 JAX(S BANK LTO [t 1180000008 {11.0. Current Account {H.Q.
008010200069433|A XIS BANK LTO |UTIB0000008 |Kolhapur | Curvent Account | Withdrawal
910020007010632]A XIS 8ANK LTD {LT1B0000016 | Koyambedu | Current Account | Withdrawal
90902004434349[[AXIS BANK LTO JUTIBOOG022S | MCGM Current Account | Deposit
916020045939025|AXIS BANK LTD |LTIB0000003 |Newiown |Curvent Account | Withdeawat
Kolkata
91002001 3338390(A XIS BANK LTD [UTIBOO00L3S | Shicnoga Curvent Account | Depasit
91202001033764 A4 X1S BANK LTO [UTIBOGOLOL3 [Seinagar | Qurvent Account | Withdrawal
40639536964 STATE BANK OF|SBIN0003536 |Belgawn | Escrow Account |Closure & Post
(NDIA Closure '
Monitoring
Purpose
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SCHEDULE v

TERMS OF COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES OF THE

RESULTING COMPANY
PART A

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CLASS A CCPS

The Class A CCPS shall have the following characteristics, which are in addition to, and without
prejudice to, the other rnights of the Investor as may be mucually agreed between the lavestor and
the Company and/or the other Shareholders.

L.
2

we
b

4.1

Face Value: INR 10/ (Rupees ten only) each.

Dividends: Each Class A CCPS shall entitle the holder thereof to receive out of funds
legally available for distribution as dividend in preference to the Equity Shareholders of the
Company non-cumulative cash dividends at the rate of 0.001% (zero point zero 2et6 One
percent) per annum of the face value af each Class A CCPS.

Non-Participating: The Class A CCPS shall be non-participating i.e. thetr holder{s) shall
not pacticipate pro-rata in distabutions to the Equity Sharcholders.

Conversion Terms:

All Class & CCPS shall convert into Equity Shares on the earlier of: (A) the day
inunediately following the expicy of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) imonths o the
date of thetr issuance, or (B) unmediately prior to the closiag of any sale of the Class A
CCPS as may be contemplated in any agreement inter alia between the Company aad the
celevant Class A CCPS holder, ot (C) such earlier date as the Company and the holder of
each Class A CCPS may mutually agree in writiag with the Company. On the date of
conversion, the Company shall issue Equity Shares in respect of the Class A CCPS to be
converted and shall ensuce that all necessary corporate actions are taken on or before such
date.

Each Class A CCPS shall convert inte Equity Share(s) of the Company at an initial
conversion ratio of 1:1 ("Coaversion Ratio™). The Conversion Ratio shall be continuously
adjusted until the date of conversion for all bonus issues, stock splits, consolidations ot
such othcr similar events or corporate actions,

Status of Converted Shaves:

The Company covenants that: (i) it shall ceserve and wmaintain adequate authonized equity
share caputal from time 1o time which is sufficient to effect conversion of all Class A CCPS;
(i) all Equity Shaces to be issued upon the conversion of any Class A CCPS shall, upon
issuance and delivery, be duly and validly issued, fully paid and free from all
Encumbrances, and all pre-emptive cights of all other Persons with respect to the such
issuances, shall be waived; (iii) all Equity Shares to be issued upon the conversion shall be
freely transterable subject only to cestrictions in this Agrecment; (tv) it shall take all such
actions aecessary to provide for the issuance of the Equity Shares upon conversion of any
Class A CCPS in accordance with Applicable Law and this Agveewent.
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Voting Rights: The Class A CCPS shall not carry any voting rights at any shareholders
meeting except at a class meeting convened or required to be conveaed of the holders of
Class A CCPS in which case the Class A CCPS shall each entitle theie holders to vote in
proporiion o the amount paid up on the Class A CCPS relative to the amount paid up on
all Class A CCPS.

PART B

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CLASS B CCPS

The Class B CCPS shall have the following chacacteristics, which are i addition to, and without
prejudice to, the other aights of the lnvestor as may be muwally agreed between the Investor and
the Company andror the other Shareholders.

L.
2.

o

4.1

42

Face Value: INR 10/« (Rupees tea only) each.

Dividends: Each Class B CCPS shall entitle the holder thereof to receive out of funds
legally available for distribution as dividend w prefereace to the Equity Shareholders of the
Compuny non-cumulative cash dividends at the cate of 0.001% (zero poiat zero zero one
percent) per amem ot the €ace value of each Class B CCPS.

Noa-Pacticipating: The Class B CCPS shall be non-participating i.¢. their holder(s) shalt
Aot participate pro-cata in distributions to the Equity Sharcholders.

Conversion Terms:

All Class B CCPS shall convert into Equity Shares on the earlier of: (A) the day
unwediately following the expiry of 19 (nincteen) years and LU (cleven) months frorm the
date of their issuance, or (B) immediately prior to the closing of any sale of the Class B
CCPS as may be contemplated in any agreement inter alia berween the Company and the
Class B CCPS holder, or (C) such earlier date as the Company and the holder of the Class
B CCPS may mutually agree in writing. On the date ot ¢onversion, the Company shall issue
Equity Shares in respect of the Class B CCPS to be converted and shall ensure that all
necessary corporate actions are taken on ot before such date.

Each Class B CCPS shall convert into Equity Share(s) of the Company at an initial
conversion ratio of L:1 (“Conversion Ratia™). The Conversion Ratio shall be continuously
adjusted until the date of conversion for all bonus issues, stock splits, consolidations or
such other similar events or ¢corporate actions.

Status of Converted Shares:

The Company covenants that: (i) it shall reserve and maincan adequate authorized equity
share capital from time to time which is sufficieat to effect conversion of all Class B CCPS;
(ii) all Equity Shaces to be issued upon the conversion of any Class B CCPS shall, upon
issuance and delivery, be duly and validly tssued, fully paid and free from all
Encumbeances, and all pre-emptive cights of all other Persons with respect to the such
issuances, shall be waived, {iii) all Equity Shares to be issued upon the conversion shall be
freely transferable subject only to restrictions in this Agreamnent; (iv) it shall take all such
actions necessary o provide for the issuaace of the Equity Shares upon conversion of aay
Class B CCPS ia accordance with Applicable Law and this Agreainent.

Amendment’ Yarfathn A



2

Voting Rights: The Class B CCPS shall oot cary any voting nights at any shaceholders
meeting except at a class meeting convened or required to be convened of the holders of
Class B CCPS in which case the tiolder(s) of the Class B CCPS shall be entitled to vote in
proportion to the amount paid up on the Class B CCPS refative to the amount paid up on
all Class B CCPS.
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ANNEXURE 2

N KATLA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants, Registered Valuers & Social Auditors
101, First floor Fortune Plaza, Friends Colony, Manikonda, Hyderabad- 500089
Call Us: Mobile 9177407375, Email: Katlaandassociates@gmail.com

REPORT ON RECOMMENDATION OF SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO FOR
THE PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF MUMBAI WASTE
MANAGEMENT LIMITED (‘MWML) WITH RE SUSTAINABILITY
LIMITED (‘RESL’)

AND

REPORT ON RECOMMENDATION OF SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO
FOR THE PROPOSED DEMERGER OF DEMERGED BUSINESSES OF RE
SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED (‘RESL’) INTO RAMKY SUSTAINABILITY
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘RSSPL’)
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Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation and share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger
To,
Board of Directors,
Re Sustainability Limited,
Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City,
Hitech City Road, Hyderabad TG 500081.

To, To,

Board of Directors, Board of Directors,

Mumbai Waste Management Limited Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited
Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, 15 Floor, Ramky Grandios, Opp. Aphb Anjaiah
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Nagar, Gachibowli, Seri Lingampally

Hitech City Road, Hyderabad TG 500081. K.V.Rangareddy, Telangana — 500032

Subject:

Part A: Report on recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of
Mumbai Waste Management Limited (‘MWML’) with Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’); and

Part B: Report on recommendation of share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of
‘Demerged Business’ of Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’) into Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private
Limited (‘RSSPL’)

Dear Sir/Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated September 01, 2023 and discussion with the Management of Re
Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Demerged Company’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’), Mumbai Waste
Management Limited (‘MWML’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’) and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private
Limited (‘RSSPL’ or ‘Resulting Company’), wherein the Management of RESL, MWML and RSSPL has
requested Santhosh Kumar, (“Registered Valuer” or “me”), for carrying out valuation exercise and submit
valuation report recommending:

a. fair share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Mumbai Waste Management Limited
(‘MWML’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’) with Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Amalgamated
Company’); and

b. fair share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of ‘Demerged Business’ of Re Sustainability
Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Demerged Company) into Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (‘RSSPL’
or ‘Resulting Company’).
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Hereinafter the aforesaid proposed transaction referred to in Step a. shall be referred to as the ‘proposed
amalgamation’ and the transaction referred to in Step b. shall be referred to as the ‘proposed demerger’;
the Management including the Board of Directors of RESL, MWML and RSSPL shall together be referred to
as ‘the Management’; and Amalgamating Company, Amalgamated Company/Demerged Company and
Resulting Company shall together be referred to as ‘Transacting Companies’.

In this valuation report, we have summarized the value of Demerged Business and Resulting Company as at
valuation date, together with the description of methodologies used and limitation on our Scope of work.

Our Analysis and report are in conformity with the “ICAl Valuation Standards” issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as ‘IVS’). Our Valuation is subject to the scope,
assumptions, limitations and disclaimers detailed herein. As such the report has to be read in totality and
not in parts. The valuation report is in relation to the information provided by the client.

We appreciate the co-operation received by us from your executives during this assignment.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
Katla & Associates

Santhosh Kumar Katla

Chartered Accountant & Registered Valuer
ICAI Membership No.243893

Firm Reg.N0.020835S

UDIN: 23243893BGUVHB6115

Date: September 30, 2023
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I. BACKGROUND OF TRANSACTING COMPANIES

Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Demerged Company’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’) (formerly known
as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited) was incorporated on 28 November 1994 and is engaged in the
business of providing integrated waste management solutions for industrial waste, municipal waste,
biomedical waste, electronic waste and other incidental services. Further Demerged Company is also
engaged in the business of integrated environment services, Consultancy and Research & Development
services and generating electricity from solid waste.

Mumbai Waste Management Limited (‘MWML’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’) was incorporated on 20
September 2001 and is engaged in the business of Integrated waste management solutions for industrial
waste and bio medical waste. The range of services includes collection, transportation, storage and
disposal of industrial and medical waste. Re Sustainability Limited and Re Sustainability Industrial
Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter together referred to as RESL and RSISPL) hold 74% and 26% equity
stake respectively in MWMIL. RSISPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of RESL, hence MWML is effectively the
wholly owned subsidiary of RESL.

Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (‘RSSPL’ or ‘Resulting Company’) was incorporated on 16
August 2023 with an objective to engage in the business of developing and implementing scientifically
managed integrated municipal solid waste management system, waste to energy (WTE) solutions,
construction and destruction debris services, biomedical waste services and other waste management,
collection and disposal related services in India or worldwide.

The demerged business of RESL agreed to be transferred by way of demerger (hereinafter referred to as
‘Demerged Business’) would comprise of the following:

a) Municipal solid waste business (“MSW Business”): is engaged in the business of sorting, segregating,
undertaking material recovery, collection, storage, shredding, baling, crushing, crushing, loading,
unloading transporting, processing and disposing of solid waste as an operator of a facility in terms of
the Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016, issued under the Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.

b) Waste to energy business (“WTE Business”): involves business of generating electricity from
municipal solid waste. It includes developing and operating waste processing units with a
combination of technologies / systems including Material Recycling Facility (MRF), Compositing and
Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF), Waste to Energy Power Plant as well as new processing technologies
which would maximize waste recycling / treatment.
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c) Middle East Business (hereinafter together referred to as “ME Business”): includes all businesses of

the subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associates of the Demerged Company in Oman, Saudi Arabia and
United Arab Emirates. It is engaged in executing Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
and Operation and Maintenance (O&M) of the waste management projects in the middle east
countries.

APPOINTING AUTHORITY, APPOINTED DATE, VALUATION DATE & REPORT DATE

The Management of The company, appointed on September 01 2023, Santhosh Kumar Katla, RV
registered under Section 247 of Companies Act (“Valuer”), having Registration No.
IBBI/RV/06/2022/14859, to determine the EXCHANGE/ ENTITLEMENT Ratio for the proposed
Amalgamation/ Demerger. The date of valuation is considered as on 30.09.2023. The valuation
report is issued on September 30 2023.

DISCLOSURE OF VALUER INTEREST AND IDENTITY OF VALUER

| have no present or prospective contemplated financial interest in Mumbai Waste Management
Limited (‘MWML’), Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’); and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private
Limited (‘RSSPL’). Further | have no personal interest with respect to the Promoters & Board of
Directors of Mumbai Waste Management Limited (‘MWML’), Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’);
and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (‘RSSPL’). | have no bias/prejudice with respect
to any matter that is the subject of the valuation report or to the parties involved with this
engagement. My professional fees for this valuation are based upon my normal billing rates and not
contingent upon the results or the value of the business or in any other manner.

Identity of the Registered Valuer:

Santhosh Kumar Katla is a Registered Valuer as required under The Companies (Registered Valuers &
Valuation) Rules, 2017.

INFORMATION RELIED UPON BY US

The valuation exercise was undertaken on the basis of the following information relating to the
Transacting Companies, furnished to us by the Management of the Transacting Companies and
information available in the public domain:

(a) Latest shareholding pattern of the Transacting Companies;

(b) Audited financial statements of RESL for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (‘FY23’)
and 31 March 2022 (‘FY22’);

(c) Consolidated provisional financial statements of Demerged Business (i.e. MSW, WTE and
Middle East Business) for the financial year ended March 31 2023;
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(d) Consolidated financial projections of Demerged Businesses for the explicit period from FY
2023-24 to FY 2031-32 as prepared and certified by the Management;

(e) Draft composite scheme of arrangement pursuant to which proposed amalgamation and
proposed demerger is to be undertaken between the Transacting Companies;

(f) Terms of Class A and Class B 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (‘CCPS’)
proposed to be issued by RSSPL as a consideration for proposed demerger;

(g) Discussions with the Management to understand the perception of the historical and
expected future performance, macro-economic parameters and key value drivers of the
Companies; and

(h) Information available from the public domains like bond yields, market return etc.

Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the client which may not be
perused by me in any detail, if not considered relevant for my defined purpose.

Discussion (in person/call) with the Management of Transacting Companies to understand the
business and fundamental factors that affect its earning- generating capacity including strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities and threats analysis and historical financial performance. During the
discussions with the Management, | have also obtained explanations and information considered
reasonably necessary for this exercise.

V. PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Following are the procedures used in our valuation analysis:
a) Reviewed the latest shareholding pattern of the Transacting Companies;

b) Reviewed the audited financial statements of RESL for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
(‘FY23’) and 31 March 2022 (‘FY22’);

c) Reviewed the consolidated provisional financial statements of Demerged Business (i.e. MSW,
WTE and Middle East Business) for the financial year period ended March 31 2023;

d) Reviewed the consolidated financial projections of Demerged Businesses for the explicit period
from FY 2023-24 to FY 2031-32 as prepared and certified by the Management;

e) Reviewed the draft composite scheme of arrangement pursuant to which proposed
amalgamation and proposed demerger is to be undertaken;
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f) Reviewed the terms of Class A and Class B 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(‘CCPS’) proposed to be issued by RSSPL as a consideration for proposed demerger;

g) User data available in the public domain related to the Transacting Companies;

h) Selection of valuation approach and valuation methodology/ (ies), in accordance with IVS, as
considered appropriate and relevant by us; and

i) Arrived at the final share exchange ratio and share entitlement ratio for the proposed
amalgamation and proposed demerger respectively;

VI. SECURITY AND FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Demerged Company’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’) (formerly known
as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited) is engaged in the business of providing integrated waste
management solutions for industrial waste, municipal waste, biomedical waste, electronic waste and
other incidental services.

RESL has issued a mix of Class A and Class B equity shares. Share holding pattern both the class of shares
as the report date is set out below:

Name of the shareholders Number of shares Percentage
(Face Value of INR 10 each) (%)
Class A shares
A lshaan 14,24 851 33.7%
Metropolis Investments Holdings PTE Limited 2537,705 60.0%
Others 267,019 6.3%
Total 42,229,575 100.0%
Name of the shareholders Number of shares Percentage
(Face Value of INR 10 each) (%)
Class B shares
Metropolis Investments Holdings PTE Limited 100 100.0%
Total 100 100.0%

Basis our discussion with the Management we understand that Class A and Class B equity shareholders
have similar rights and economic interest in RESL.

In addition to equity shares RESL has also issued Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(‘OCRPS’). Key terms and shareholding pattern for OCRPS of is set out below:
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Shareholding pattern for OCRPS:

Name of the shareholders Number of shares Percentage
(%)

OCRPS

Metropolis Investments Holdings PTE Limited 228,563 100%

Total 2,28,563 100.0%

As per the terms of the OCRPS, the same are convertible into 1 equity share in RESL.

Snapshot of the consolidated unaudited financial statements of Demerged business of RESL for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

Amount in INR Millions
P&L March 31, 2023
TPD
Existing sites 13,116
New sites 368
Total TPD 13,484
Revenue
Existing sites 14,108
New sites 141
Total Revenue 14,249
Cost
Existing sites 9,413
New sites 193
Total Cost 9,607
EBITDA
Existing sites 4,777
New sites (52)
Total EBITDA 4,725
EBITDA Margin (%)
Existing sites 34%
New sites -37%
Total EBITDA % 33%
Less: Depreciation 1,839
EBIT 2,886
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Less: Interest Expense 1,281
Add: Other income 55
Elimination / Exception items -
Ind-AS PAT Impact (568)
PBT 1,092
PBT Margin (%) 8%
Less: Tax 417
PAT 675
PAT Margin (%) 5%
Less: Minority Interest 31
Effective PAT 644
feg. Mo,
Amount in INR Millions
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Balance Sheet March 31, 2023
Share Capital 9,362
Reserves and Surplus 2,709

Non-Controlling Interest -

Equity 12,071
Borrowings 6,881
Debentures 771
Provisions 6,356
Other non-current liabilities 12
Total non-current 14,021
Short term borrowings 157
Account Payables & provisions 2,020
Other current liabilities 1,583
Inter-corporate deposits -
Total Current Liabilities 3,760
Total Liabilities 29,852
Fixed & Intangible Asset (Net) (See table) 20,888
Long-term Loans and Advances 1,147
Non-current investments 776
Goodwill -
Other Non-current assets 2,626
Total Non-current assets 25,437
Cash and Equivalents (See table) 286
Escrow and DSRA balances 1,547
Accounts Receivable (Net) 9,240
Inventory 396
Other current assets 1,550
Inter-company group transactions (8,605)
Total current assets 4,415
Total Assets 29,852
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Mumbai Waste Management Limited (‘MWML’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’) is engaged in the business
of Integrated waste management solutions for industrial waste and bio medical waste. The range of
services includes collection, transportation, storage and disposal of industrial and medical waste.

Re Sustainability Limited and Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter together
referred to as RESL and RSISPL) hold 74% and 26% equity stake respectively in MWML. RSISPL is a wholly
owned subsidiary of RESL, hence MWML is effectively the wholly owned subsidiary of RESL.

The equity shareholding pattern of MWML as at the report date is set out below:

Name of the shareholders Number of shares Percentage
(Face Value of INR10 each) (%)

Re Sustainability Limited 36,92,600 74.0%

Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited 1297400 26.0%

Total 49,90,000 100.0%

As per Part B of the Scheme, after amalgamation of MWML with RESL, the equity shares held by the
shareholders of MWMIL i.e., RESL and RSISPL, shall stand cancelled.

Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (‘RSSPL’ or ‘Resulting Company’) was formed with an
objective to engage in the business of developing and implementing scientifically managed integrated
municipal solid waste management system, waste to energy (WTE), construction and destruction debris
services, biomedical waste services and other waste management, collection and disposal related services
in India or worldwide.

The equity shareholding pattern of RSSPL as at the report date is set out below:

Name of shareholders Number of shares Percentage
(Face value of INR10 each) (%)

Alshaan 980 98%

A Dakshayani 10 1%

A Sharan 10 1%

Total 1,000 100%

Key terms of Class A and Class B 0.001% compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) proposed to be
issued by RSSPL as consideration for the proposed demerger is set out below:

Particulars

Type of Security Class A and B Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ('Class A and Class B CCPS')

Nature Non-Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Dividend rate 0.001%

Face value INR10 each

Tenure 19 years and 11 months from the date of issuance

Conversion terms Class A and Class B CCPS shall be converted into Equity Share(s) of the Company at an conversion ratio of

1:1 before the expiry of tenure orimmediately prior to closing of any sale of Class A and Class B CCPS or
such other earlier date as the company and the CCPS holders may mutually agree upon.
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VII. INTENDED USERS OF THE VALUATION AND RESTRICTION ON THE USE OF REPORT:

The report contains confidential information that has been provided at your request and the same should
not be disclosed or circulated in whole or in part without express written consent of Santhosh Kumar
(Registered Valuer). The document should not be duplicated or used, in whole or in part.

This report is being provided solely for the benefit of the company and is not on behalf of, and shall not
confer right or remedies upon, any other person other than Management. The report may not be used or
relied upon, or disclosed, referred to, or communicated by Management to any third party for any purpose
whatsoever without our prior consent in each instance. This document should not be duplicated or used, in
whole or in part.

In furnishing the report, we reserve the right to amend or replace the report at any time. Our views are
necessarily based on economic, market, and other conditions currently in effect, and the information made
available to us, as of date hereof. It should be understood that subsequent development may affect our
views and that we do not have any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm the views expressed in the
Report.

Nothing contained in this report is or should be upon as promise or representation as to the future.

VIll. VALUATION METHODOLOGIES

Valuation by its nature, cannot be regarded as an exact science and the conclusions arrived at in
many cases will be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. Given the
same set of facts and using the same assumptions, expert opinion may differ due to the number of
separate judgement decisions. There can therefore be no standard formulae to establish an
indisputable value, although certain formulae are helpful in assessing reasonableness.

For the purpose of determining the equity value, a valuer may use any of the approaches as per
Indian Valuation Standard 103. Different valuation approaches has been proposed and the same

has been considered below along with the justification.

IX. APPROACHES OF VALUATION

There are three approaches for valuation of a company, such as:
(a) Income Approach;
(b) Market Approach:

(c) Asset Based Approach;
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Each of these approaches has its suitability, depending upon the facts of the case and the
objectives of the valuation. For the sake of ready reference, these methods are explained below in
brief.

(i) Income Approach

Income approach is the valuation approach that converts maintainable or future amounts (e.g.,
cash flows or income and expenses) to a single current (i.e., discounted or capitalized) amount.
The fair value measurement is determined on the basis of the value indicated by current market
expectations about those future amounts. The most commonly used income approach is
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method.

DCF Method

Based on our discussion with the Management, we understand that Demerged Business of RESL is
profit making business and generates surplus cash, going forward as well the Demerged Business is
expected to make profits and generate surplus cash in the foreseeable future, we have therefore
used Income Approach (DCF cash flow method) which is one of the most commonly used and
internationally accepted pricing methodology of valuation for valuing the demerged businesses.

Further | understand that Resulting Company was recently incorporated and is yet to commence
its business operations, hence we have not used DCF method for the purpose of arriving at the fair

value of Resulting Company.

(ii) Market Approach

Under this approach the valuation is done on the basis of the quoted market price of the Company
in case it is a publicly traded company, or publicly traded comparable businesses date is reviewed
in order to identify a peer group similar to the subject company and then their multiples are
applied to the entity being valued to determine the fair value.

Market approach is a valuation approach that uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable (i.e., similar) assets, liabilities
or a group of assets and liabilities, such as a business.

The following are the common methodologies for the market approach:
e Market Price Method;
e Comparable Companies Multiple Method; and
e Comparable Transaction Multiple Method
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Market Price Method

In case of a company, the equity shares of which are listed, the market price of an equity share as
guoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the fair value of the equity shares of that
company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly and freely traded in.

In current case, shares of Transacting companies are not listed on any on any stock exchange and
also Demerged Business does not have an independent quoted market price, Hence, | have not
used this method to arrive at the fair value of Transacting companies.

CCM Method

Under this method, the value of equity shares of a company is measured by applying the derived
market multiples based on the market quotations of comparable listed companies possessing
attributes similar to the business of the company that is being valued to the company metrics after
making adjustments to such multiples on account of dissimilarities with the comparable
companies and the strengths, weaknesses and other factors peculiar to the company being valued.
These valuations are based on the principal that such market valuations take place between
informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate factors relevant to valuation.

CCM Method derives equity value of a subject company basis the average multiple of a listed peer
group. We find that there are no broadly comparable listed companies which operate in a similar
line of business and have similar business model as that of Demerged Business of RESL. Hence, |
have not used CCM method to arrive at the fair value of Demerged Business.

Further | understand that Resulting Company was recently incorporated and is yet to commence
its business operations, hence we have not used this method for the purpose of arriving at the fair
value of Resulting Company.

CTM Method

Comparable Transaction Multiple Method, also known as ‘Guideline Transaction Method,” involves
valuing an asset based on transaction multiples derived from prices paid in transactions of asset to
be valued / market comparable (comparable transaction).

We find that there are no comparable transactions involving companies which operate in similar
line of business and having similar operating/ financial metrics as that of the Demerged Business a.
Hence, | have not used CTM method to arrive at the fair value of Demerged Business.

Further | understand that Resulting Company was recently incorporated and is yet to commence
its business operations, hence we have not used this method for the purpose of arriving at the fair
value of Resulting Company.
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(iii) Asset Approach

NAV Method

This valuation method is based on the value of underlying net assets of the business, either on a
book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. This valuation method is
mainly used in a case where the firm is to be liquidated i.e. it does not meet the ‘going concern’
criteria or in a case where the asset base dominates earnings capability.

In the present case, demerged business would merge into resulting company on a ‘going concern
basis’ and further there is no intention to dispose off the assets. In such a going concern scenario
the relative earnings power, as reflected under the income and market approaches is of greater
importance for arriving at the value as compared to the value arrived on the Net Asset Value basis
considering the realizable value of the assets recorded in the books.

Given the above background, | have not used this method for arriving at the equity value of
Demerged Business of RESL.

Further | understand that Resulting Company was recently incorporated and is yet to commence
its business operations, hence we have used this method for the purpose of arriving at the fair
value of Resulting Company.

X. RECOMMENDATION OF FAIR SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO AND SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO FOR THE
PROPOSED AMALGAMATION AND DEMERGER

The fair share entitlement ratio has been arrived at on the basis of equity value of the Demerged
Business and Resulting Company for the proposed demerger based on the various methodologies
mentioned herein earlier. Suitable rounding off have been carried out wherever necessary to
arrive at the entitlement ratio.

Based on the consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed and outlined
herein above, we recommend the share exchange ratio and share entitlement ratio as follows:

a) Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Mumbai Waste
Management Limited (‘MWML’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’) with Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’
or ‘Amalgamated Company’) under Part B of the Scheme.

Based on the shareholding pattern of MWML as at the valuation date, we understand that the
entire existing equity share capital of MWML is held by RESL and its wholly owned subsidiary
RSISPL and hence as a result of which an economic interest of shareholders is same in MWML,
RESL and its subsidiary RSISPL.
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Since MWML is effectively a wholly owned subsidiary RESL, upon the Scheme being effective, the
entire existing equity share capital of MWML held by RESL and its subsidiary RSISPL would get
cancelled and extinguished and no further equity shares would be required to be issued to equity
shareholders of MWML i.e., RESL and RSISPL. We have therefore not carried out any independent
valuation of MWML for the purpose of arriving at share exchange ratio for the aforesaid proposed
amalgamation.

To the equity shareholders of MWML

“No equity shares of RESL would be required to be issued to the equity shareholders of MWML
(i.e. RESL and RSISPL) for the proposed amalgamation of MWML with RESL”

b) Recommendation of share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of ‘Demerged Business’ of
Re Sustainability Limited (‘RESL’ or ‘Demerged Company) into Ramky Sustainability Solutions
Private Limited (‘RSSPL’ or ‘Resulting Company’) under Part C of the Scheme.

To the Class A equity shareholders of RESL:

“89,625 (Eighty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Five) Class A compulsory convertible
preference share (Class A CCPS) of RSSPL of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued
and allotted for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in
RESL”.

To the Class B equity shareholders of RESL:

“89,625 (Eighty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Five) Class A compulsory convertible
preference share (Class A CCPS) of RSSPL of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued
and allotted for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in
RESL”.

To the preference shareholders of the RESL:

896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety Six) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (Class B
CCPS) of the Resulting Company of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued against all
outstanding 2,28,563 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-Three) Optionally
Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) of RESL of face value of INR 15 each fully
paid up held in RESL”.

The rationale for the recommendation of above share entitlement ratio is covered in the next
section (XI).

. No.
::17“1061

2022/1 4859
HYDERABAD
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VALUATION OF DEMERGED BUSINESS AND RESULTING COMPANY

Premise of the valuation:

Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is deployed.

In a given set of circumstances, a single premise of value may be adopted while in some situations
multiple premises of value may be adopted. Some common premises of value are as follows:

(a) highest and best use;
(b) going concern value;
(c) as is where is value;
(d) orderly liquidation; or
(e) forced transaction.

For valuing, the premise used is going concern value

Basis of the valuation:

Valuation base means the indication of the type of value being used in an engagement. Different
valuation bases may lead to different conclusions of value. Therefore, it is important for the valuer
to identify the bases of value pertinent to the engagement. This Standard defines the following
valuation bases:

(a) Fair value;

(b) Participant specific value; and

(c) Liquidation value

For valuing, the Base used is Fair value

Standards of Valuation:
The Valuation report is prepared as per the ICAl Valuation standards

Method and Approach of valuation:

For valuing, we have adopted the DCF method under Income approach using the projections
Under this method, the valuation comprises of 2 components as described below.
. The Free cash flows from the period from FY 2023-24 to FY 2031-32;

. The terminal value at the end of FY 2031-32.

The Sum of above two components is discounted with suitable factor considering expected return
as discount rate to arrive present value of cash flows.

£eg. NO.
8B1/RV/06/

2022/14859
HYDERABAD
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Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation and share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger

The sum of the present values of the free cash flows to equity for explicit period and the terminal

value gives the fair value of the enterprise.

Please refer below for the calculations of the value:

Amount in INR Millions (Revised tables to be inserted)

Particulars 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031 | 2032

Free Cash Flows* 984 124 -71 1,451 | -1,250 | 380 -23 | 5,156 | 2,529

Discount Period 1.00 | 2.00 | 3.00 | 4.00 5.00 6.00 | 7.00 | 8.00 9.00

Discount Factor 0.85 | 0.72 | 0.61 | 0.52 0.44 0.37 | 0.32 | 0.27 0.23

Present Value of Free Cash Flows 835 89 -43 753 -550 142 -7 1,388 | 578
*Refer Annexure

Terminal value - Capitalization method

Particulars Amount in INR Millions
FCF FY 2032 2,529
Add: Capex FY 31-32 8,556
Add: Debt repaid FY 31-32 20,013
Add: Finance cost FY 31-32 5,215
Less: Intergroup financing FY 31-32 9,900
Normalized FCF FY 31-32 before re investment

provision for capex 26,412
Provision for perpetual capex investments, debt

repayments, finance cost of debt @25% of NFCF 6,603
Normalized FCF FY 31-32 19,809
Discounted NFCF FY 31-32 4,528
Terminal growth rate 3.0%
Terminal value 31,468
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Valuation Summary

Particulars Amount in INR Millions

Present Value of Free Cash Flows 3,185
Add: Terminal Value 31,468
Equity Value before stub factor 34,653
Stub Factor 1.09
Equity Value after stub factor 37,623
Add: Cash & Bank Balances 286
Value for Equity Shareholders 37,909

Conclusion: The Fair Value of MSW, W2E, ME-OWN & ME-JV Businesses as per Discounted Cash
Flow Method as on September 30, 2023 is INR 37,908.80/- Millions

Valuation of Resulting Company

Based on our discussion with the Management and review of the financial statements of
Resulting Company as at report date we understand that Company has not commenced its
business operations. We have therefore used NAV Method for the purpose of valuation analysis
of equity shares of Resulting Company. Accordingly, the value of the Resulting Company shall be
INR 10 per share.

Share Entitlement Ratio:

Particulars Amount in INR
Value of Demerged Business 37,908.8 million
No of shares in Demerged Company 42,29,676
Relative Value per share 8,962.5
Value of Resulting Company 10,000
No of shares in Resulting Company 1,000
Relative Value per share of Resulting Company 10
Share Entitlement Ratio 8,962.5:10
i.e., 89,625 shares of Resulting
Company for every 100 equity
shares of the Demerged Company
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We understand that the Resulting Company is proposing to issue Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares in respect of equity shares held in Demerged Company and Class B
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares in respect of Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares held in the Demerged Company. Accordingly, the below share entitlement ratio may be
fair:

To the Class A equity shareholders of RESL:

“89,625 (Eighty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Five) Class A compulsory convertible
preference share (Class A CCPS) of RSSPL of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued
and allotted for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in
RESL”.

To the Class B equity shareholders of RESL:

“89,625 (Eighty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Five) Class A compulsory convertible
preference share (Class A CCPS) of RSSPL of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued
and allotted for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in
RESL”.

To the preference shareholders of the RESL:

“896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety Six) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share (Class B
CCPS) of the Resulting Company of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued against all
outstanding 2,28,563 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-Three) Optionally
Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) of RESL of face value of INR 15 each fully
paid up held in RESL”, given the OCRPS shall be convertible into 1 equity share of RESL.

Xll.  DISCLAIMER

a. We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information that was publicly available for the purpose of this report. Our work
does not constitute an audit or certification or due diligence of the working results, financial
statements of the Company.

b. The valuation of Companies and businesses is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in
many cases will of necessity be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment.
While we have provided assessment of the value of the share based on information available and
within the scope and constraints of engagement, others may place a different value on the same
and actual value realized may differ significantly.
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It may be pointed out that the Valuation is based on opinion that represent reasonable
expectations at a particular point in time, but such estimates or opinions are not offered as
predictions or as assurances that a particular level of income of profit will be achieved, that events
will occur, or that a particular price will be offered or accepted.

Santhosh Kumar, Katla & Associates has acted in the capacity of Registered Valuer, registered with
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI) for providing valuation services and will receive a
fee for our services.

In no circumstances however, will our firm or our associates, or our employees accept any
responsibility or liability to any third party and in the unforeseen event of any such responsibility or
liability being imposed on our firm or our associates, or our employees by any third party, RESL shall
indemnify them.

This Valuation Report is furnished solely for the purpose mentioned above and should not be used
for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

Assumptions Used:

i)

1)
2)
3)

4)

Xil.

Cost of Equity
Particulars %
Risk Free rate of Return 7.32%
Beta 1.1
Market Risk Premium 4.10%
Additional Risk Premium 6%
Cost of Equity 17.82%

India 10 year Bond yield rate as on March 31 ,2023 is considered as Risk Free rate Source:
https://in.investing.com/rates-bonds/india-10-year-bond-yield-historical-data

Market rate of return is computed based on 05 vyears return on Nifty Source:
https://in.investing.com/indices/s-p-cnx-nifty-historical-data

There are no listed peers who have a similar business in the same size or specific model of
operations in which Company operates. The Beta is considered as 1.1 on judgmental basis
Considering the size of the company and the industry in which it operates, on judgmental basis 08%
additional Risk Premium has been assumed for the purpose of computing cost of equity capital.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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XIV. ANNEXURE

Cash flow projections of demerged businesses:

Particulars 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031 | 2032
Adj. EBITDA 6,208 9,812 | 10,379 | 14,325 | 17,366 | 21,328 | 24,012 | 27,991 | 32,115
Less: Taxes 732 1,204 1,684 2,103 2,734 3,456 4,258 5,352 6,632
- (Increase)/Decrease in Net Working
Capital
- Account receivables (234) (1,292) (188) 374 (1,722) | (1,748) | (1,907) | (1,952) (2,442)
- Inventory (62) (184) 92 (259) (141) (247) (47) (168) (194)
- Account payables & provisions 451 140 443 583 595 564 735 712 846
- Other NWC 28 23 26 34 39 47 58 70 82
Cash Flow from Ops (CFO) 5,658 7,294 9,068 | 12,953 | 13,403 | 16,487 | 18,594 | 21,301 | 23,775
% of Revenue 31% 32% 35% 40% 34% 36% 35% 36% 34%
% of EBITDA 91% 73% 84% 89% 76% 77% 77% 76% 74%
Less: Capex 5695 | 16,353 | 16,939 | 15,999 | 15,534 | 12,289 | 19,661 | 12,469 8,556
Add: Grant 717 1,000 1,375 1,140 | 1,469 2,611 1,723 2,996 2,033
Less: Investment - - - - - - - - -
Add/Less: Other 307 - - - - - - - -
Unlevered FCE 987 (8,059) | (6,495) | (1,905) | (662) 6,809 656 11,829 | 17,253
% of Revenue 5% (35%) | (25%) (6%) (2%) 15% 1% 20% 25%
% of EBITDA 16% (81%) | (60%) | (13%) (4%) 32% 3% 42% 54%
Add: Interest Income 87 127 172 389 501 629 818 1,310 2,112
Add: External Borrowings (Long term) 2,201 7,786 8936 | 5,510 784 (3,631) | (2,312) | (5,388) | (20,013)
Add: Proceeds from minority - - - - - - - - -
Add: External Borrowings (short term) - - - - - - - - -
Less: Lease Rentals 1 - - - - - - - -
Less: Finance cost 1,389 1,551 1,750 | 2,761 | 4,066 4,996 5,496 5,525 5,215
Less: DSRA/Margin Money/escrow 415 865 1,014 950 1,022 1,097 1,400 1,464 1,508
Add: Intergroup financing Activity (485) 2,686 80 1,168 | 3,215 2,666 7,711 4,395 9,900
Change in Other Liquid funds - - - - - - - - -
Levered ECF 984 124 (71) 1,451 | (1,250) 380 (23)

*********End Of the report*****
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Annexure 3

Sustainability

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RE SUSTAINABLLITY
LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS RAMKY ENYIRO ENGINEERS LIMITED) AT THEIR
MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 18™ JANUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING THE. EFFECT OF
THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS, PROMOTER
AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

'

181

1.2

Background

The proposed composite scheme of arrangement among amongst Re Sustainability Limited
(“Company™), Mumbai Waste Management Limiled ("MWML"), Ramky Sustainability
Solutions Private Limited ("Resulting Company™) and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Compantes Act, 2013
(*Seheme™) and in accordance with Sections 2(1B), 2(19AA), 2(19AAA) and 2(41 A) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 was approved by the Board of Dircctors of the Company (*Board™) vide
resolution dated 8" Junuary, 2024, The scheme was approved by the audit committec of the
Company on the same day as well.

The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) requires the directors
to adopt a report explaining: (i) the effect of the arrangement undec the Scheme on each class
of shareholders, promoter and non-promater sharcholders and key managerial personnel; and
(11} laying oul in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special vatuation difficulties
and the same is required to be circulated to the equity shareholders at the time of seeking their
approval o the Scheme as may be directed by the Hoa’ble National Company Law of Tribunal,
Hyderabad bench (“*NCLT")}. Caputalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the
meaning ascribed to it in the Scheme.

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Secuon
232(2)(c) of the Act.

The following documents were placed befoce the Board:
1.4.1  Draft of the Scheme;

1.42  Valuation report issued by Katla & Associates (Firm Reg.No.020835S), on the share
entitlement ratio and share exchangc ratio for the Scheme (“Valuation Report™); and

1.4.3  Draft auditors cerlificate pursuant to Section 232(3) of the Act confirmmung that the
accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme (s in conformity with the accounting
slandards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and other applicahle laws.

Re Sustainabdity Limited

{Furmerly known 35 Ramky tnvire Engineare Lmnza)
Registered Office;
Level 11B, Aurobindo Gaiaxy,

Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road. ’ },1
Hyderabad, Telangana- S0008¢. e 4

CIN No. U74140TG1954PLCO18833 T +91 40 24442000 rd

E: tnfodresustainabiity.com
rasustainability.com
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Effect of the Scheme on shareholders (promoter and non-promoter shareholders) of the
Company

The Company has Class A and Class B equity shares and optionally convertible redeemable
preterence shares in issuance. Upoa the Scheme becoming etfective and in consideration of
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking of the Company in the Resulting Company in terms of
the Scherme, the Resulting Company shall allot the following shares, credited as tully paid-up,
to the members ol the Company, holding fully paid up shares in the Company and whose names
appear in the register of members ot the Company on the Record Date or to such of their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in
title as on the Record Date in the following manner:

A) For Class A Equity Shareholders of the Compaay:

“89,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Resulting Company of INR 10/-
each, fully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A equity shares of the Company
of INR 10/- each, fully paid up™.

B) For Class B Equitv Sharcholders of the Company:

“39,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Resulting Conpany of INR. 10/-
each, fully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares of the Company
of INR 10/- each, fully paid up™.

C) For Preference Shareholders of the Compaay:

“896 (Eight Hundred and Nincty-Six} Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (Class B CCPS) of the Resulting Cotnpany each of [NR 10/- each, fully paid up
for all the 2,28,563 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-Three)
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of the Company of [INR | 5/- each
fully paid up.™

Further, 74% shares of MWML are held by the Company and the remaining 26% are held by
Re Sustainability Industcial Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky [WM Private
Limited), which is a wholly owned subsidiary ot the Company. Therefore, upon the merger of
MWML into the Company by virtue of the Scheme being effective, the shareholders o MWML
shall not be entitled to receive any shares of the Company and the existing sharcs of
shareholders of MWML shall stand cancelled and extinguished.

Re Sustainability Limited
(Formerly known as Ramky Envirg Epgneers Limred)

Registared Office:

Level 118, Aurobindo Galaxy, ",
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road. /L
Hyderabad, Telangana- S00081.

CIN No. U74140TGL994PLCO18333 T: +9] 40 24446000

E: info@resustainability.com
resustainability.com
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23 The said share entitlement ratios are based on the Valuation Report which has been duly
considered by the Board and the Board has come to the conclusion that said share entitlement
ratios are fair and reasonabie.

3. Effect of the Scheme on key managerial personnel of the Company

31 Under Clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the Scheme hecoming effective, all the Demerged
Undertaking Employees shall be deeined to have become employees of the Resulting Company,
with effect from the Effective Date, in the same capacity as they were employed with the
Company, without any break or interruption in their service and with the benetit of coatinuity
of service, and the terms and conditions of their employment with the Resulting Company shall
not be less tavourable than those applicable to them with reference to their employment in the
Company immediately prior to the Effective Date and in compliance with Applicable Law.

32 Uader Clause 15 of the Scheme, upon the Scheme becotning effective, all employees of
MWML imumediately prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have become employees of
the Company, with effect from the Effective Date, in the same capacity as they were employed
with MWML, without any break or interruption in their service and with the benefit of
continuity of service, and the terms and conditions of their employment with the Company shall
not be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference to their employmient in
MWML immediately prior to the Effective Date and in compliance with Applicable Law.

4. INo special valuation difficulties were reported.

[n the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the Company, its
shareholders and other stakeholders and the terms thereof ave tair and reasonable.

By Order of the Board
Re Sustainability Limited
{Farmerly known av Ramky Eovieo Engincers Limited)

e

,\iamc:/M wansd Alien Maltick
Designation: CEO and Wholetime Birector
DIN: 01059902

Date: 18 January 2024
Place: Hyderabad

Re Sustainability Limited
{Foemerty known as Ramky Emwito Bagineers imited)

Registered Office:
Level 118, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowtedge City, Hitech City Road.

Hyderabad, Telangana- 500081.
CIN tNo. U?4140TG1994PLCO18833 T: +91 40 24446000

E: info@resusiainability.com
resustainability.com
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MUMBAI WASTE MANAGEMENT
LIMITED AT THEIR MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 18TH JANUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING THE
EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS,
PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

L. Background

L.l The proposed compositc scheme of arrangement among amongst Re Sustainability Limited
(“RESL”), Mumbai Waste Management Limited (“Company”), Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private
Limited ("Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Section 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Cotnpanies Act, 2013 (“Scheme™) and in accordance with Scctions 2(1B),
2(19AA), 2(19AAA) and 2(41 A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company (“Board™) vide resolution dated January 18, 2024,

[.2 The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) ot the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”™) requires the directors to
adopt a report explaining: (i) the effect of the arrangement under the Scheme on each class of shareholders,
promoter and non-promoter sharcholders and key managerial personnel; and (ii) laying out in particular the
share exchange ratio, specitying any special valuation difficulties and the same is required to be circulated to
the equity shareholders at the time of seeking their approval to the Scheme as may be directed by the Hon'ble
National Company Law of Tribunal, Hyderabad bench (“NCLT"). Capitalised terms used herein but not defined
shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Scheme.

1.3 Thus report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2){c) of the Act.
.4 The following documents were placed before the Board:

1.4.1 Draft of the Scheme;

1.4.2 Valuation report dated September 30, 2023 issued by Katla & Associates (Firm Reg.No.020835S) on
the share entitlcment ratio for the Scheme (“Valuation Report™); and

14.3 Draft auditors certificate pursuant to Section 232(3) of the Act confirming that the accounting
treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Act and other applicable laws.

7% Effect of the Scheme on shareholders (promoter and naon-promoter shareholders) of the
Company
2.1 RESI. has Class A and Class B equity shares and optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

in issuance. Upon the Scherne becoming effective and in consideration of vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
of RESL in the Resulting Company in terms of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall allot the following
shares, credited as fully paid-up, to the members of RESL, holding fully paid up shares in RESL and whose
names appear in the register of members of RESI. on the Record Date or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title as on the Record Date in the
following manner:

Mumbai Waste Management Limited T: +91 40 2444 6000
A Subguhary 91 Re Sistanabatine | iued) I L tainabiiis t

CIN No. U90001TG2001PLCQ37329

Registered Ollice: f”é/f
[.evel 11B, Aurcbmdo Galaxy.

Hyvderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road. Hydevabad - 300081,
lelangana.
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Sustainabillity
to the members of the Company, holding fully paid up shares in the Company and whose nanes
appear in the register of members of the Company on the Record Date or to such of their
respective hetrs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in
title as on the Record Date in the following manner:

A) For Class A Equitv Shareholders of the Compaay:

“89,6235 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of Resulting Company of INR 10/- each,
tully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class A equity shares of the Company of [INR
10/- each, fully paid up™.

B) For Class B Equity Shareholders of the Compauny:

~89,6235 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of Resulting Company of INR 10/- each,
fully paid up for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares the Company of INR
L0/~ each, fully paid up™.

C) For Preference Shareholders of the Company:

“896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety-Six) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (Class B CCPS) of Resulting Company each of INR 10/- each, tully paid up for
all the 2,28,563 (Two Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Flundred and Sixty-Three)
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of the Company of INR 15/- each
fully paid up.”

Further, 74% shares of MWML are held by the Company and the remaining 26% are held by
Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky [WM Private
Limited), which is a wholly owned substdiary of the Company. Therefore, upon the merger of
MWML. into the Company by virtue of the Scheme being effective, the shareholders of MWMI.
shall not be entitled to receive any shares of the Company and the existing shares of
shareholders of MWML shall stand cancelled and extinguished.

The said share entitlement ratios are based on the Valuation Report which has been duly
counsidered by the Board and the Board has come to the conclusion that said share exchange
ratio and share entitlement ratios are fair and reasonable.

Eftect of the Scheme on key managerial personnel of the Company
Under Clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the Demerged

Undertaking Employees shall be deemed to have become employees of the Resulting Company,
with effect from the Effective Date, in the same capacity as they were employed with the

Re Sustainability Limited

{Facmeddy known 3s RIMky Envied Enginaers Limsted)

Registered Offica:

Level 118, Aurobindo Galaxy,

Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road.

Hyderabad, Telangana- 500081,

CIN No. U74140TG1994PLCOL3833 T: +91 40 24446000

€: nfo@resustainability.com
resustainability.com
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In the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage and beneticial to the Company, its shareholders
and other stakeholders and the terms thereof are faw and reasonable.

By Order of the Board

For Mumbai Waste Management Limited

w1 .

Name: Pankaj Maharaj
Designation: Director
DIN No: 00135140

Date:
Place: Hyderabad

Mumbai Waste Management Limited T2 =91 40 2444 6000
1 Subakhn of Re Sustaingtility b unitcdl E: infoteresustainability.com

CIN No. U%000LTG2001PLC037829

Registered Ollice:

Level 11B. Aurobinde Galaxy.

Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road. Hyderabad -~ 300081,
Telangana.



Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U382(0TS20230TCI176073

Registeced Oftfice: 15th Floor Ramky Grandios, Opp.
Aphb, Anjaiah Nagar, Gachibowli, Seri Lingampally, K.V,
Rangaceddy-300032,

Telangana, ladia

T 91 40 24346000

E-mail: gs.tssplé@ramky.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RAMKY SUSTAINABILITY
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AT THEIR MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 18™
JANUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT ON SLUAREHOLDERS, PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER
SHAREHOLDERS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1. Background

1.1 The proposed composite scheme of arrangement among amongst Re Sustainability Limited
{(“RESL™), Mumbai Waste Management Limited (“MWML"), Ramky Sustainability Solutions
Private Limited (“Company™) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Section
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Scheme™) and in
accordance with Sections 2(1B), 2(19AA), 2(19AAA) and 2(41 A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (*Board”) vide resolution dated
January 8, 2024,

[.2  The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) requires the directors
to adopt a report explaining: (i) the effect ot the arrangetnent under the Scheme on each class
of shareholders, promoter and non-promoter shaceholders and key managerial personnel; and
(ii) laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties
and the same is required to be circulated to the equity sharcholders at the time of seeking their
approval to the Scheme as may be directed by the Hon'ble National Company Law of Tribunal,
Hyderabad bench (“NCLT"). Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the
meaning ascribed to it in the Scheme.

1.3 This report ot the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2)(¢) of the Act.

1.4 The following documents were placed before the Board:
1.4.1 Duraft of the Scheme;

1.4.2 Valuation report dated September 30, 2023 issued by Katla & Associates (Fiem
Reg.No0.0208358S) on the share entitlement ratio for the Scheme (“Valuation Report™);
and

.43 Draft auditors’ certificate pursuant to Section 232(3) of the Act confinming that the
accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and other applicable laws.

2. Effect of ¢the Scheme on shareholders (promoter and non-promoter shareholders) of the
Company

2.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking of RESL in the Company in terms of the Scheme, the Company shall allot the
following shares, credited as fully paid-up, to the members of RESL, holding fully paid up
shares in RESL and whose names appear in the register of members of RESL on the Record
Date or to such of their respective heirs, exccutors, administrators or other legal representative
or other successors (n title as on the Record Date in the following manner:




Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U382(0TS2023PTC176073

Registered Otfice: [(3th Floor Ramky Grandios, Opp.
Aphb. Anjaiah Nagar, Gachibowli, Sert Lingampally, K.V.
Rangareddy-500032,

Telangana, ladia

T: 91 40 24446000

E-mail: gsasspl@ rankyv.com

A) For Class A Equitv Shareholders of RESL:

+89,623 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Company of INR 10/- each, tully paid up
tor every 100 {Onc Hundred) Class A equity shares of RESL of INR 10/- each, fully paid up™.

B) For Class B Equity Shareholders of RESL.:

“39,625 (Eighty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-Five) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (Class A CCPS) of the Company of INR 10/- each, fully paid up
for every 100 (One Hundred) Class B equity shares of RESL of INR 10/- each, fully paid up™.

C) For Preference Shareholders of RESL;

“896 (Eight Hundred and Ninety-Six) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(Class B CCPS) of the Company each of INR 10/- each, fully paid up for all the 2,28,563 (Two
Lakh Twenty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty Three) Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preterence Shares of RESL of INR 15/- each tully patd up.”

22 The existing shareholders of the Company shall continue to remain as sharcholdars of the
Company even after the effectiveness of the Scheme and the Scheme will not have any adverse
effect on the existing shareholders of the Company.

KN Effect of the Scheme on key managerial personnel of the Company

i1 The key managerial personnel of the Company shall continue as key managerial personnel of
the Company even after the effectiveness of the Scheme and the Scheme will not have any
adverse effect on the key managerial personnel of the Company.

4, No special valuation difficulties were reported.

[n the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the Company, its
sharchalders and other stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and reasonable.

By Order of the Board
For Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited

|

' , I
NameSoiikodtile Sehcanthredds
Designation: Daector

‘.l\: nl'\‘i_\“l.‘\

Date:
Place: Hyderabad
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Natos to inaacial statements for the vear cadad 30 Novemhber 2023
LA amvuats in tadian Rupees in lakhs qntess stated atherwiseh

(8. Revenue fram conteacty with costomers

30 Noveaher 2} 0 Seprember 2023 3¢ Maceh 2023

Renderiag of services

« Revenue fromn waste dispasal activities 30,127 o L IRIY)]

« Ravenue feom cowntercial and CONSETVIRLY SN ives . S

+ Revenue rom tumkey comeasts ~ (R 92

- Reveuue frare consultancy and other setvices 962 R6? 3.26?

« Revenue from semice coneession asuivity 4 3 3

« Reveaue from sale of goods 97 33 3%

IR 24,162 43.36%
19. Grher income
36 November 2023 30 Scpeenber 202) 31 Maech 2023
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Re Sustaieabiliey Limited
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(CINLTQTCHIRIPLLVLES3Y)

Notes to (inancial stacements for e yvear ended X0 Nosenther 2023
AL anvuats on tndan Rupees an lakhs anless stated otherwised
20, Cose of eaw ataterial 3ad companents consumett

taventon at the beginniay o the yeae
Add: Purchases ducing the year
L4535 wnvantorny at the 2nd of the yeue

21, Constraction cxprases

CONStAUCEION COST AN SIS CONCLIINON Aotitety

22. Emploxee henelie expenss

Salariss. altowanses and wages

Conueibutivn © provident fund and othst fuads
Staff weltaes expenses

Gieatuity expense

Shae-based pavfaent axpenses teefer note 31)

13, Finance custs

laterest on debt aud harowings

lagerest expenses {using the effective interest method)

(aterest athees
Bank charges

24. Depreciation aerd amortization expense

Depreciation of proprerty ptant and squipment (note JAN

Amornzation of intangible assets (nore 3CY
Ocprecianon of Raght-ofuse assets (nate 3€)

30 Moveaber 2028 30 Scpeeaber 2023 3 Macct 2023
€954 22y
2460} 1387 4081
. 11.23%) 11934
2623 2103 3333

0 Novemlier 2023 30 Septembur 2023 30 Maceh 3023
X

1 3
4 3 3

30 November 2023 10 September 2023 31 March 2023
3096 339 6,182
202 151 k1L
e 14 293
69 31 1on
£? 33 1%
200 4,248 7267

30 November 2023 30 Seprember 2033 31 Maech 3023
362 S68 3
30 234 623
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CNCMHOTCIMPLCOLSSIY)

Notes to fiaaacial stateenents for the vear ended 30 November 202}
G amounts i ladaan Rugess w lakis unless stated athenwisel

13, Other expenses

30 dorvember 2023 39 Sepreaber 2023 30 March 2023

Sub conteact expenses 67 364 FXkT]
Laboue contract sharges 6 1,363 13353
Power and Lt L} LIs2 1733
Traaspore chacges 2000 1342 2884
Repats and araineaivince

- Plant aad wachinery 97 BY 1 305

- Orlwers 1,133 1297 2432
Hice charges Tob 62 (8 )
Capping tar tand Gl ¢eefer note 16} 13 33 634
Past closure mamtenance expenses (refet qote 16) 198 144 261
tncineration expenses (rfee note £6) 4 W
Security charges mn 16! 06
Rates and taxes 199 () 17
Legal and profossional shanges 194 863 1.632
Teavelling and wotvevanee Sud o9 LURS
Rent 85 o4 (B3
(nsurance RS 519 1,029
Donations .
CSR Expenditsre 4 (b 13t
Adrvettisemnent and Business promSticn 153 L2 142
Camnmunisstion sxpenses 33 42 9
Paating and staticnaey | (13 33
Oltiae maintenance 148 (1 {1] 161
Membershep & subscription | 43 196
Bad dabits - advancss writien off 3 5
Lass on sale of fined asseis qnal 33 N -
Peavesion for doubtful teade receivables and advanes RITH T S
Payment ¢0 auditars (eafer datmls hefow) Kt §6 108
Misssllaneous expenses Lt 26 20

14,879 13,473 23,190
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Maatai Waste Mareageatent Linited
(COCONN PG00 P, CUITR2Y)

Staterment of Protit and £.053 for the pevint ended 3¢ Noveombier 2023
(AN sty in dadian Rupees w lakdis, except for shine data o as othernise staed)

tar period ended For perivd caded

For Vear Ended

—_
avticatars 30 Novomber 2013 30 September 2023 30 March 2023

lacone
Revenue feom contracts with custonens 36N 16932 19063
Other income 2949 2160 .92
Fatal income (1) 26,573 19097 44155
Expeases
(lacrease) ¢« doeceease ut inventones of (ished goods . S
Construction expanses - N
Enployee benefits cyponse 1038 264 1288
Finance cants 235 40 24
Dupreciation expenrses 220 682 L1163
Other expenses 393 pRE 14,503
Total expense (L) 10,786 7.404 3%
Ceofit before cax (TIL =1 - 11} 15,787 11693 26,783
Tax expense
Current tax AN | B 2458 6509
Loss: MAT crudit entidenent . .
Adjustent of 1ax celating o <aclier petivds )
Vefened wax - . 790
Total tax expense (IV) Jan Y458 2.504
Profit for the vear (V=1U.1V) 012673 9233 [RXE]
Sunumaey of sigaificant accounting plicies . —
The accompanying rotes eeferntd € above fonm an aegeal part of the financiat statements,

Cor and va behalf of Board of Divectots of

Mombai Waste Managetent Linited

Panliaj Maharsj Sunmath Matgar

Dircctor Whole time Drevtor

DIN: 00133140 DRN: 08241307
Place: Eivderalwd Clace: Hyderabad
Date: 1301 2024 Dot Sp—
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Mumbiai \vaste Managemeat Cimited
(CINUP TGO PLE 03 T820)

Notes to finsacial statcimenes for the periml ended 30 November 2033

Al aronnts @ Indian Rupees i takhs, except for share data ot as chenwvese stated)

Invesimeuts
Non current investavents

Right-vf-use Assets
Right-of-use Assets

48, Loans « Lasecured and considered goodl unless athetwise stated
Non cucecat

Loon teceivable considerad good « Unsedured

Financial asset componem of avestaens

latercorporats depousits to related parties® (Refer Note 20)
Loan teceivable « credit impaired

Finducial asset component of investmients

Less: allowanee for doubtful loans

Cucrent
lorer corporate deposits o related parties *(Refer Nove 29)

4C. Other financial assets (Unsecured and considered 2ood)

Non cuerent

Security deposiis

Eamest money deposits

ON CUITENT ACCOUNTS {3CIOW ACLOUMS)

Oreposit with remaining mamnty more chan (X months®

Uasecuced, considered goud
Qihers

Cuerent
Retention money receivable
(neerest accrued on fixed deposits

40, Teade receivables

Cuerent
Unsecured, considered good
- Rolated Paries
- Others
Trade receivables which have significant inceease in credit nsk
Unsecured, considered doubiful
Receivables feom an associate (Note 43)

| : LY §

bL"‘I‘Fi" D £ MA -.‘.‘
‘:A 'nq-'\..-‘
m’ o

30 Novembrer 2023 30 Septembier 2023 31 Maech 2023

53,400 $3.000 53,4

3,400 XD $3.000
Q 0 L
D 19 .

30 November 2023 30 Scptembier 2023 30 Mareh 2023

23 3N R
34644 33935 32033
42 . $34
(476) - {334)
37.518 Jo.829 34.76)
37518 3J6.8%9 34.76)
15353 10420 1974
15,353 10420 4974

30 Novemhor 2023 30 Septetahier 2023 30 Maech 2023

235 02 90
3 3 35

2 242 58
1993 R L33
13 U 12
2275 2370 18
2% 2 u
86 86 69
Qe D %

JO Novembor 2023 30 Scptember 2023 31 March 2033

e s 133
6,260 6,185 6,662
1,892 LS 1505
8471 8.2 8.360
(1,49) (1.530) (1.515)
6979 6,704 6,843




Mambai Waste Manageaens Limited

(CINLIOPN TG PLCGITE2N

Notes to Anancial statcmeuts foe the perivd eaded 39 Novemtier 2003
CAN amounts in (adian Rupess o takhs, except Tor shate dats of as othen s statedy
4E. Cash and cash cquivaleats

M Novemher 2023

3 Seprotntior 2023

31 Maech 2023

Cash on hand
Balances with bhunhs:

|

On cuerent account A)s wn 34
On cash credit account
Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 wonths
436 1,623 135
4F, Bank halaace vther than cash aad cash eyaivalent
Curreat 30 Nowembier 2023 30 September 2023 30 Maech 20123
Balance with banks:
Other Gank Batanres
Deposit with eemaining smatucity less than {3 months 3 3 37
] 3 3?
3. laventorivs (valued at lower of ¢ost aad act reatisabile value)
30 Norvember 2038 30 Soptembur 2033 31 March 2023
Raw matenals, Wols and spares ne 266 $ 1]
Funeshed goods
26 266 Jal
6. Deferved tax assets
30 Novemiber 2023 30 Scptember 2003 30 Muech 2023
Deforred tax asset gnel) deeter aote 24y 59
. 39
oA, NonCurrent Tav atsets
30 November 202} 30 September 2023 31 Maech 2023
Advance incom tax (e of pravision tot wcome tax) 106 360 13
196 360 3
7. Othver assets (Lasccneed aad consideted zood ualess otherwise stated)
X0 Noveaher 2023 M) Septomber 2033 31 Maech 2013
Nonsturreat
Capital advances 132 3N R
432 I 2R
Conteact Assets
« Unbilled eevenue . M
< Unbilled eevenue tater Compnay 3295 4430
taspasament allowance Doubtful asset -
3.295.00 4,430.00 213400
Cureent
Advances 10 suppliet and service providers 292 50 1,787
Less: Provision for doubtlul advances (30 (50) (30)
28715 (453 1.73?
Advance to employees 39 2R 24
Balances with government authority E COPY 260 294 2
Prepoid expenses F1ED TRU 10 153 37
SERT 6579 6360 4883




Muaibar Waste Management §imited

CORUHMNI TGP 0NN

Noter to Gnanvial statements (or the perivd onded 30 Movember 028
AN amounts 1 ndian Ropres an Lalhs, eToupt tor Sats At 62 a3 athofe 1ge tede
19, Botronings

WA, Natt Cuceent horronings
Unsccueed
Loans From retated party
(nteroomurate deposit from holding comgay * (Rebr Nute 294

8, Current hoeronings
Seeueed (at amortized cost)
Cash ensdit « §0 Morzan Clase

*Vehicle toans from banks
(a) ICIC) Bank Limnited
(b) Kotak Matondem 8ank bawnited
Vehieke ioans feom othess
Chnlamandatom tavesnieat and Finanve Company | amaed

Casceuced
1 6an from eclated party
Intercumporate deposit frond hohdmg company ® (Reter Nute 29)
Carrgit Maturitivs ot ladyg term darowngs
T Lo liabititics
Now cureens
t case dobilitiss (rotet Note 3C)

(1. Teade payables

Total OVLAIRdME Jes (0 WRicew enenpnses Ind saall eatetprises (eeter aote 301

lotal outsianding dues of ceeditons othet than ansro satemnses and sivall entemprises.

Total outstanting duws of related pattics

1 2. Other Ginanciat liabilities G amocined emt)

C urcemt

Copital credinors®

Setunty deposil payable®

taaterest dowened but awt due on durrowings
Retentind money payable *

latetest on MSME Payable (Reter Note 30)

L3, Deferred tax Wahilities (nel)

Qeterred wax Batalitees (ozas (ReRr Note 24y

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

T

~ e
o » N,
Wi '_A-ﬂ,‘,'-?

A4 Noveaher 302N

M Septombee 023

3N Mareh a2t

NS I3 3
942 Nn$ N3
30 Navemher WIS M Septewbier 3033 3 Maech 2023
.06 S .
2
3 3 10
e > 4
6o %3
164}
4,602 S4% »n
JU Novewber 2033 I September 2033 30 Maech 2933
9 0
b 10

3 Novemher 233

30 September 38

3 Mareh 2023

426 6%

4950 AR 2903

1234 9 $

4009 4,362 $3%
3 November 2023 30 Seprembice M8 30 Maech 2023
(1] 33 s02

3.998 3.5%0 32

(5 53 Ll

433 4149 n?

2? 1? 2?

4,238 427 4089
3 November 02 30 September 2033 31 March 2023
3% 33800 129.00

1% TR0 72000

%/f;




Muaibai Waste Management Lanited

LN 9NN RGNLEL.CNI MR29)

Notes to Grastciat staienients (oe the period ended 39 November 2023
M amounts in Jndian Rapees in bekhs, cxaep far shame Jata of as wiliefvise el

14, Liabilities for cacecnt tax {ncl)

Provisinn (O tates (et of advance taxe
(8. Provivions

Now current
Peovision for cmployee henedits
« Grawity (reter aote 22y
« Compensated absences
Mdher provisions
~Capping oMligatinns
-Past closure odbtizaions

Current
Provision for cmployee brnefirs
- Giratonty (refer aote 27)
« Compensaed absences
Olher provisions
- Copping ohligations
« tavineration

16. Otier Nabilitics

Cuerent
Contravt Gability

+ Advantes tom custoters
Stanutery dues payables

3 Noveiher MAX M veptemtior 223 X1 Maceh 2023
. . 1433
. L4388
3 November 2033 M) September 2033 30 Mareh 2023
13 e ta7
3? 57 14
LYH 613 2
623 403 $4L
1478 144 1,287
3 3 33
N 11 ]
1.2% 12 120
34 42 (323
1328 1,332 LG
30 Novemher 22N 3D Scptambier 20383 31 March 203)
196 450 m
345 430 366
T4 bl 94}




Mambai Waste Manageswn Limited

ANV TG00 M. COI TR

Notes to financial statements for dic period cuded 38 Novewber 2023

1A anounts in Indian Rupress in lakhs, sxcept for share dwa o o atherwise sateds

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

12, Revenne from Contract with castomers Fue perind ended { or peeiod ended Foe b eae Ended
JU Novemher 2023 30 Septembee 2083 30 Mareh 3N
Rendering of segvices
Reverue leom waste dispresal acuivities 19509 “sn 39887
- Revenue oo otinmsrcial atd cotsetvancy Sy ines
- Revenue trom tarnkey conteacts 043 p R 173 3
Other aperating reveaties
Qher openatiog revenues . 573
23,634 16987 I 963
I8, Oihee income
30 November 3032 39 September 2028 30 March 2038
(atersst incowe on e
Coun 1o celated panty {Refor Note 29) 2697 1.9% 4336
Bank and other deposits 33 “ 92
tonerest dvsonwe (using the effostive imerest maihodl (Retor vote 29 4o ([} x2
Léabilitivs o tonger required wiittien hack 36 .
Net gain on sabe of propurty, plant and Sguipment . b33
Coofil on sake of investinents . . |
Qiliee quneaperting eonw t? 13 16
2940 2060 $.492
19. Employee heacfic expense
30 Noverher 223 30 September 2033 31 Mareh W2y
Sataries. allowanwes and wages 347 623 1,053
Comribution to provident tund T} 33 $6
Maragerial comuneration .
Salf wellare expodses W 93 149
Grawity expense teetotave 27) (M " 0
Ewrployee stock aption schiame trelet e 335) b} [ 3
[KIAL 164 1 200
20. Finance tosts
39 Novermber 2033 30 Soptember 3028 31 March 2023
(nterest on hoteawings 154 6 2
taterest on loan Trom sclated pagics (It Note 29) . . $
(0lerest exgufsns (using the Sfleotive interest mettwdy 6% St "3
laterest ot delived purnvent of Uiwenw tax '
Interest others 1”2 12 2
Othuer barrowing <ost . . .
Bank charges | \ |
tnierest exprases on MIMLD . . -
238 (XL 404
20, Duepreciation expense
30 Novemiber 3023 30 Neptember 2023 3 Maech B2
Oepreciation of propetty, phant and squipmwat {ecfer note 3A) N2 67 1160
Aawrtsalioh of imangibie assols 8 [ $
220 682 1,165




Mumbiai Waste Managemceat | anited

(CON LGP COIR2Y)

Notes 10 Guancial vtatements for the petiod andod 30 Mavebhee 2028

A s it Indiais Rupoes i falkhis, excopt (0r shure 3413 o as vilkerwise statods

212 Mher expenses
M November 2633 30 Sepromber M2V 31 March 2030

Conswplion o $tores und spares W 3 30
Suh contract exponses ENE 4% 74509
Cabour comeaut <hargcs 130 9w 1683
Power o o) B 60? 31
Vransport charges 24 36 W3
Repaics and imainichanee
- Maet ond wiashinery N 162 206
- Vehale 230 3% 3
- Others 3 3 113
Royalty 34 29 »
Hure charges 163 2 w?
Capping fot land il (reter awte 13) (]| 9? 4
Post clusure maintenanee expanses {reler aute 154 37 i "
lacineration capotises (peter ame 15) . . (K10
Secunty chatovs 144 ws m
Oiber eperating expenses -
Ratss and taxes 61 1} ] 32
[ opal and protassional dweges 108 7 s
Taavelling and convaeyance o L 43
Rent H 4 14
tnswrancy ] [} 1?
Ouvnanons .
CSR exponses (Rt Note (i) belowd 12 248 N
Adverisernem and busiovss promution .
Communicatinn Sxpenses D ] 0
Consulancy Charges .
Prianing and SauOnary [} ] b1 W
Othice movmenance 3 ]} 3?
Peavisivn (or doubttied ieade coccivables and advansss QA 23 He
Cayaent w auditons ¢reter dotaib Hulow) ? 3 0
Misceltancous expunses 36 1] 38

8.393 5818 14.30)




Ramky Suntainabilits Solutions Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 30 November 2023

{All amonts in fucdian Rupees i lakhs. exeept or share data or as atherwise stated)

(Notes Lol
30 Novearber 2023
Assets
Current assets
Financial assets
(1) Cash and <ash equivaleat 0.10
0.10
Total assety 0.10
Equity and liabilities
Cquity
Share capital 3} 0.10
Other equity E| {0.30)
L otal equity (0.20)
Current liabilities
Financial liablities
(1) Trade payables 3
-total outstanding dues of micro and small enteprises
-total outstanding dues of crechiars other than 0.30
nuceo and smal! enterprises
0.30
Total cquity ana liabilities 0.10

The accompanying notes referred to above torm an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repot attached of even date.

For and on behalt of the Roard of Directors of
Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited

- [ , ,

~
. »_ :_’_’ f-.\"_

e W Vizasahumer  Sanikonwnu Seikanth Reddy
hrector Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 40 0342024



Ramky Sustainabilicy Solutions Private U wnited

Seatemcat ol Peofic and Loss for chie poviod Mrom 16 Awvgust 2022 to 0 Norverber 2923
LALLM I Gdian Rupoos ia lakhis, exeept 8 share daed o as otliers ise staed

Soees For the periad

16 Auguest 2023 ¢0 30 Narembier 2023

{acome
Ry cvue Frony contracts with castomets
Total income (t)

Expenses

Finanes costs
Qther xpanses
Tatal expense ¢

Pratitf(loss) beforve cax (LkI= [A1)
Tax eapense
Octerred tax

Total tax expense (1N}

Protit! (loss) lor the pevied (V= [1-1V)
Other comprehensive incoae

frems that will not b veclussitied 10 profit or loss

4.0t
0.0

0.0

(0.30)

(0.30)

Romsasutement tlosses): 2ains on detined benetit plans
lncome tax ettect
et othier comprehensive incone not ta be reclassitied to profitar
loss ih subsequent peviods
Other compretiensive income for the period (net of tax) (V)
Total comprehensive incame for the peried (act of tan) (VII=V+\V)

Earaings per oquity share of face value of 10 cach
Basic and diluted earmings per shane

The accompanying aotes tetenrad to abuve fonm an integeal part of the Ginancial statemeits,

{0.30)

As pet our report attachad of even date

For anid on beald of ihe Baan! o Duestons of

Kand s Suvtainadidln, Sdarvanmy Mo | iman et

(J 0‘,’]\” «_L ' )
fi
' P S LA
A ' - ’ : e e

Pace: Hydeibad - SERTIFIED TRUE COPY
Law: 18+ 01 .2020

(30N



Ramky Sustainabilits Sotuetions Private [ imited

Statetnent ot Cash Flows lor the peciod from 16 August 2023 ¢o 30 November 2023
(AN auvounts in tadiaon Repees in Wllig, exeopt far share dita of as otioraise stated)

For the petiad

16 August 2023 to X0

Navemver 2023
A, Cash @ons tram operatiag activities
Pratit (loss) betore tax 0.30)
Adpusunents to reconaile profic bofore ax w net cash flovws:
Operating protit befove changes in assets and liabilities 10.30)
Working Capital Adjustments
{Devreasel laceease in trade payables 0.30
Cash geacrated from aperating activitics {0.00)
lacote tax patd (net of cetund) .
Net ¢cash flaws from opecating activities (1) {0.00)
8. Cash flows team investing activities
Net cash (used)itrom in énvestiag activities (B) S
C. Cash Mows frawm financing activities
Proceads fram tssuanee of squity shares 0.10
Net cash Qow gencrated(used) in linancing activities ( €) 9.10
Net incecasel{decrease) in eash and cash equivatents (A +B+C) 0.0
Cash and cash ayuivaleats at the begianing of the perind -
Cash and cash equivalents at vear end 0.19

At The abuve Cash Flow Statement has bewn prepated under the “ladircet Method™ as set out ia the fadian Acvounting Standaed (Ind AS-7) -

Seatement of Cash Flow

b Cash and cash equivalents comprises ot
Cash on haad
Balaavwws with baaks
« Cuerent Accouats
Cash and cash equivalent as pee balance sheet

30 November 2023

.10

0.10

The accompanying notes reteored to above fonn an integral part of the tinancial statements

As per our report attached of even date

For and un buehalt of the Bourd ot Dicectars ot
Ranmky Sustainability Solutians Peivate Limited

W, |

'..n.n_((v:'\-j-'-t. v -‘J ‘

| Doty

o~ o~

Plave: Hvderabad
Date: 18.04.2024

CERTIFIED TRUE SOFY




Ramkr Mestainabilits Solutions Ccivate Limited
Nates te Gvancial statenents tur the 1eae cnded 3 Noscmbor 2023
LA et 6 tndzaae Regpaes o laks, et tiet shaee data or 3s vthiers e statal)

3 Cash and cash equisateats
Batancos widi banka
On currem aveounts
Break up of tinaaciat assets caericd at anortised cost

Cash and cash equivalent
Total financial assets carricd at anortised cost

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

M November 2023

10
g.e

e e,

3 Novewher 2023
AL
0.10

l
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A3 shaan ; Wit
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Retameil coming
Qpemhy balance
AS) Brotit 11585) G the pernd (LR} 1030
Cintveg totance [R))] LA
Toral athet eguity (MY ' m
Nature and puePose of ceserves:
Retained cacnings
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Rawky Nastaraslilite Yolotions Privaee Licited
Notey ta Giantiat stacements fur e reae ended 39 Novembics 20210
1A aawuaes o lndian (Rupees i 1a0RS, €80t L0 shate datd of 35 othesnese sty

3 Veade parabley

M Narember Mid}

« Torat quissanding dues W victs emeqtises and sall ciseprives
Toial cuastantding dues of cealitats other 1han avice catenprises and siall emeptiaes 0.3%
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Ramky Sustainability Solutions I'rivate Limited
Statement of Prolit and Lass for the peviod (ot 16 August 2023 to 30 November 2023
LAl amowats i lodian Rupees in lakhs, exvept tor share data of a3 otheewise stated)

6 Finance Cost

Bank charges

7 Other expenses

Preliminacy expenses

16 August 2022 ¢ 30
November 2023

0.00

0.90

16 Angust 2023 ta M
November 2023

0.30

0.30




NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
HYDERABAD BENCH, HYDERABAD
CA (CAA) No.08/230/2024
In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Re Sustainability Limited, Mumbai Waste
Management Limited and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors:
BETWEEN
RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED,
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,
and having its registered office at Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081
... Applicant Company / Amalgamated Company

AND

MUMBAI WASTE MANAGEMENT LIMITED,

A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
and having its registered office at Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy,
Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road,

Hyderabad, Telangana, 500 081

... Amalgamating Company
AND

RAMKY SUSTAINABILITY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and having its registered office at 15th Floor Ramky Grandios, Opp. Aphb,
Anjaiah Nagar Gachibowli Seri Lingampally K.V. Rangareddy TG 500 032
... Resulting Company

FORM MGT - 11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014)
Name Of the SECUIEA CrEUITON(S)....uuevieieiie e i ettt e et e e e e e e et e s re e s teeste e teeaeeaseeesseaseesbeesseesteesaeareeaneesseesneeneas

Registered Address .........cccceeennne.

EmailID i,
FOIIONO. oo
I/We, being secured creditors of Re » hereby appoint :
Sustainability Limited
TNAME
AdAress : ...oovveeieeeee e

E-mailid:.....ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee
SIgNatUre .....cvevveeicee e

B NAME & oo e
AdAress & .oovveveeeeiecceece e

E-mail id : .o

SIGNAtUre ..o . )
Co NAME © oo e ; or failing him/her

AAAreSS & oo,
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YT o ULU TSSOSO UP PRSP

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the meeting of the Secured Creditors of Re
Sustainability Limited convened pursuant to an Order dated May 6, 2024 of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Hyderabad
Bench (read with corrigendum dated May 9, 2024), to be held on Thursday, July 4, 2024 at 11.00 am.at Avasa, Madhapur -
Survey No. 64, 15, 24, 25 & 26, Hitech City Rd, HUDA Techno Enclave, HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081 and
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Sr. No Resolutions o n\{;rtlf (Optional) (Please put a
For Against
1. Approval of the arrangement between Re Sustainability Limited, Mumbai Waste
Management Limited, and Ramky Sustainability Solutions Private Limited,
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, Section 2(1B), 2(19AA),
2(19AAA), 2(41A), conditions, if any, notified under sub-section (5) of Section
72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant provisions of the IT Act
Signedthis__ day of 2024
Signature of the Member
Affix
Signature of the Proxy holder(s) Revenue
Stamp

Note:
1. Please affix revenue stamp not less than Re.1 before putting signature.
2. Proxy need not be an Secured Creditor of the Company.

3. The Proxy Form in order to be effective shall be duly filled in and signed by the Secured Creditor(s) across Revenue Stamp and should
reach the Company’s Registered Office at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

4. Corporate Secured Creditors intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the meeting are requested to send a certified
copy of the Board resolution authorizing their representative(s)to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

5. Itis optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for and against column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will
be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may think appropriate.

6.In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.
7.No person shall be appointed as a Proxy who is a minor.
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RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED
Regd. Office : Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India, 500081
CIN: U74140TG1994PLC018833
Website : www.resustainability.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF RE SUSTAINABILITY LIMITED CONVENED BY THE HON’BLE
NATIONAL
COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL ON JULY 4, 2024 at 11 AM

I Certify that I am an Secured Creditor/ proxy/ authorized representative for the Secured Creditor of the Company

I hereby record my presence at the meeting of the Secured Creditors of Re Sustainability Limited convened pursuant to an order
dated May 6, 2024 of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (read with corrigendum dated May 9, 2024) at
U74140TG1994PLC018833 on Thursday, July 4, 2024 at 11.15 am

Name of Member/Proxy (Block Letters)

Signature of the Member/Proxy

Notes:
1. Only Secured Creditors would be allowed to attend the meeting. No Minors would be allowed at the meeting.

2. The Secured Creditors, Proxy Holder or the Authorized Representative attending the meeting must bring this attendance slip to
the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly signed for admission to the meeting hall.

3. The Secured Creditors, Proxy Holder or the Authorized Representative are requested to bring their copy of notice of reference
at the Meeting.

4. The authorised representative of a body corporate which is a Secured Creditor of the Company must bring a certified true copy
of the Resolution of the board meeting authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the said meeting.
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